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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), |
am pleased to present the first annual results of Contel
Technology Company Limited (the “Company” or
“Contel”) and its subsidiaries (together referred to as
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2019 (the
"Year") after the successful listing of the shares of the
Company (the “Listing”) on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) on
16 July 2019 (“Listing Date”).

For the year ended 31 December 2019, revenue of
Contel amounted to US$101.5 million, representing an
increase of 50.8% as compared to US$67.3 million for
the year ended 31 December 2018. Profit attributable
to shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”)
amounted to US$2.5 million, representing a decrease of
3.8% as compared to US$2.6 million for the year ended
31 December 2018. For the year ended 31 December
2019, basic earnings per share amounted to 2.8 HK
cents, representing a decrease of 17.6% as compared to
last year. Profit attributable to Shareholders in 2019 was
lower as a result of listing expenses of US$2.7 million
incurred during the year (2018: US$1.5 million).

SUMMARY

The Group’s performance benefited from the
accelerating growth of Internet of Things (“loT”) solution
in the Year and recorded uptrend starting from the
second half of 2019. Capitalising on its successful
business model and industry-leading competitive
strengths, the Group delivered remarkable performance
that outperformed the overall market. For the year
ended 31 December 2019, the Group has delivered total
revenue growth of 50.8% year-on-year.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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BUSINESS REVIEW
Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2019, revenue derived
from mobile devices and smart charging was US$76.6
million, representing an increase of 121.5% as compared
to last year, which was mainly boosted by rising
demand of the fast technology advancements and wide
applications of mobile phones and loT devices, etc., in
the world, especially in the PRC. Owing to the decrease
in the sales demand of the variable-frequency drive
electronic products in entry level new energy automotive
in the PRC, the revenue of motor control recorded was
US$11.8 million, representing a decrease of 26.8% as
compared to last year. For sensors and automation, the
revenue was US$4.6 million, representing an increase
of 96.6% as compared to last year, which was mainly
boosted by (i) capitalise on this exponentially growing
sector by, including developing applications to be
used different sensors which would be applied and
incorporated in personal mobile devices and smart
lighting systems in buildings; and (ii) devoting resources
and expanding our capabilities in the sensors and
automation category in order to fully harness the huge
potential prospects that are to be brought about by loT.
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BUSINESS OUTLOOK

In 2020, integrated circuits (“IC”) application solutions
and IC related services remain highly competitive. We
will continue to operate diligently with a view to make the
Company prosper, so as to further develop and grow.

For our primary business, the Group will continue to
grow our strengths in expertise for semiconductor
products with focus on quality, environmentally-
friendly and energy-saving solutions. We will keep on
investing resources in circuitry design, transferring and
fitting the circuitry layout onto printed circuit boards
(“PCBs”), designing appropriate software where needed,
developing prototype evaluation boards, sourcing and
suggesting specific brands of ICs required, and then
producing reference designs according to customers’
requirements or specifications.

During our long research and development history,
we have accumulated much experience and capacity
in the development of application solutions and have
established an outstanding technical team. We would
make every endeavor to explore more business
opportunities in different application solution so as to
strengthen the Group’s financial position.

In addition, the Company will actively explore the
possibilities of external strategic investment and
cooperation, in particular business opportunities which
can enhance the stability and diversity of our product
offerings and revenue.

In March 2020, the World Health Organisation
announced COVID-19 as a pandemic, as such it is likely
to bring about fluctuations in the demand of different end
markets. As there is still great uncertainty of the spread
of the epidemic, the degree of impact on different end
markets and different customers may vary consequently,
the impact on the Group cannot be predicted at this
stage.

The Group will make use of the advantages of the listing
platform to deepen its strategic alliances and promote
further expansion. Further, the Group will continue its
strategy through organic growth and will look out for
suitable strategic acquisition with a view to accelerate
our growth trajectory and to seize market development
opportunities to maximize returns for Shareholders.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERGE

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express our
gratitude to the Shareholders and business partners for
their trust and long-term support to the Group. Moreover,
| would also like to express gratitude to the Board, the
management of the Company and all employees for their
persistent efforts and contributions in the past few years.
In 2020, the Company will continue to strive achieving
better results to bring better return for the Shareholders.

LAM KEUNG
Chairman
27 March 2020
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

he Y
EEETwmA T
2019 2018 Changes
20195 20184 29
USD’000 UusD’000
FETT FET
Key financial information TEUMBER
Revenue WA 101,461 67,279 50.8%
Gross profit E£ 11,474 9,405 22.0%
Profit for the year attributable to N2 B # B A FE{h
owners of the Company FEFHE 2,513 2,611 (3.8%)
Core net profit attributable RATHEB AL ZDO
to owners of the Company FRECNEELET
(excluding the listing F )
expenses) 5,222 4,154 25.7%
As at
31 As at
December 31 December
2019 2018 Changes
220194 20184
12A318 12 A31H 25
UsSD’000 UsD’000
FETT FET
Total assets EEHRR 58,465 33,541 74.3%
Total liabilities BEHER 28,676 20,029 43.2%
Cash and cash equivalents HeRREeEEY 6,263 2,874 117.9%
Total equity 7w B 29,789 13,512 120.5%
Key financial ratios TEMBILE
Gross profit margin EF X 11.3% 14.0% (2.7pp)
Core net profit margin ZAN/NEIE 7 RS WN R
attributable to owners of the % F| 8
Company (excluding the (TEFELETRX)
listing expenses) 5.1% 6.2% (1.1pp)
Basic and diluted earnings per &M & A K # 8 & 7
share (HK cents) () 2.81 3.41 (17.6%)

BEEMBERAF 2019F F#H



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
ERET RS

OVERVIEW

The Group primarily engage in the sourcing and sale
of IC products and the provisions of IC application
solutions and value-added services to suit the needs of
our customers. Our business is focused on fast-growing
and emerging market categories, with an emphasis on
providing environmentally-friendly and energy-saving
solutions.

After years of continuous efforts, the Group has become
a well-established fabless semiconductor application
solutions provider specialising in the provision, design
and development of IC application solutions and sale
of ICs for consumer and industrial products. The aim
of the Group is to strengthen our market position within
the IC application solutions industry by increasing our
market share and enhancing the quality of our services.
We believe that this will bring sustainable growth to our
business and create long-term value in the Group for our
Shareholders.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group focuses on the consumer and industrial
product sectors, we source and sell IC products. We
also provide IC application solutions and value-added
services to suit the needs of our customers. While our
application solutions can be utilised in a wide range of
electronic products, we specialise in the following five
major product categories: (i) mobile devices and smart
charging; (ii) motor control; (iii) radio frequency (“RF”)
power; (iv) light-emitting diode (“LED”) lighting; and (v)
sensors and automation.

1 0 Contel Technology Company Limited  Annual Report 2019

e
AEEITENERBRHEEICER Lk
HICERERT R KIEEREIARREP

TR RPANEBRINREEROHE
w5 LEITERHRRNMEENER
TTE -

KBZFNTIREN  AEBEXA K
B 7 B & .ﬁ¥ﬁﬁxﬁﬁﬁﬂ¢/§‘%ﬁ*{
B  BERFREM  RFTLKFAEICEHAR
ﬁ@fjiﬁ R EERR /ﬁ%&l%%lzum
cAEEMEBEERBERIEATMENE
&ﬂﬂ?ﬁ&ﬁ'ﬂﬂﬁﬂ‘“mgam.&ﬁ'ﬁEICWE

ABRTROTEROMGHAU - HARBE
BARMNETHRFELRE  AR/AE
B RAIERMEE-

EH Ok

AEERENEEBRMIEZERER - &
PIRE R HEICEM - HFITF R HICHE R
BATRRIBERBAMEELEL - #
ABRPNERBRSRAEZERANET

EmE 151&1?3 BT RERERER:
(WBERER aa B (i) FE RS (i)
548 ([RF)) &R : (iv) 3 ¢ — & & ([LED)J)
REF (V) 1F ] a%)zza@n il o



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B E T &

Breakdown of our revenue generated by product # ZE2019F12A31HILFE((FEE] R
category for the year ended 31 December 2019 (the & ZE2018F12A31BItFE((Mi—FEE])
“Year”) and 31 December 2018 (the “Preceding Year’) ZEWRBAZ oUW ABEMEZIMT
is set forth below:

2019 2018
20195 20184
UsD’000 %  USD’000 %
FETT % FET %
Mobile devices and smart B RELRESGRERE
charging 76,550 75.4 34,554 51.4
Motor control = 11,843 11.7 16,186 241
Sensors and automation BN B E 4,633 4.6 2,356 3.5
LED lighting LED & #H 4,492 4.4 6,759 10.0
RF power RFE R 3,943 3.9 7,424 11.0
Total =X 101,461 100.0 67,279 100.0
Breakdown of our gross profit by product category for XFEERA—FEREREBERNSEH
the Year and the Preceding Year is set forth below: REFBFMASHI 0T -
2019 2018
20194 20184
UsD’000 %  USD’000 %
FEIT % FET %
Mobile devices and smart B RELRERERE
charging 7,700 67.1 4,648 49 .4
Motor control = 1,721 15.0 2,087 22.2
Sensors and automation BN B E 613 5.4 333 3.5
LED lighting LED B #8 462 4.0 946 10.1
RF power RF&E R 978 8.5 1,391 14.8
Total B 11,474 100.0 9,405 100.0

BEEMBERAF 2019F F#H
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
E 1R E 5t e & 5 4T

Mobile devices and smart charging

The mobile devices category focuses on products
utilising low power radio frequency connectivity and
signal transmissions. ICs in the mobile devices category
are antennae-centric products, which enable and
improve the wireless functions (such as 2G/3G/4G/
LTE and wifi connectivity) of the antennae of cars,
mobile phones and tablets, smart watches and other
wifi-enabled devices. The Group assist customers in
developing the application solutions for such ICs to
match their product requirements and restrictions.

Smart charging is a power management technology
used in smart devices such as smart phones, computers
and battery packs to provide shorter charging times for
these devices. By utilising smart charging ICs, smart
devices boost the level of power to be delivered and
thus charge the batteries of the smart devices at faster
speeds, thereby shortening the overall charging time.
Smart charging ICs also gauge various attributes of the
batteries, such as the levels of charge and the thermal
conditions of the batteries, and reduce the level of power
delivered to the batteries when they are nearly full or
getting overheated.

Motor control

Motor control ICs are used in modern motors where
the speed and torque of the moveable parts of a
machine need to be controlled. These motor control
applications can be applied to a wide array of devices,
from household items such as fans, to heavy industrial
equipment such as forklifts and robots. Motor control
application solutions are mainly focused on the ICs used
on variable-frequency drive (“VFDs”). VFDs are a type
of motor controller that controls the speed and torque of
an electric motor by varying the frequency and voltage of
its power supply. By using VFDs, motors are able to save
energy, control performance, reduce noise levels of the
motor, and improve the lifespan of machines.

Customers of the motor control category are generally
manufacturers of motors. Motor control solutions of the
Group include applications for the controls of ceiling
and vertical fans, electronically commutated fans,
air-conditioning systems, electric cars and bikes, robotic
arms, pumps, washing machines, compressors, sewing
machines, industrial power tools such as electric picks,
and medical power tools such as drills.

Contel Technology Company Limited  Annual Report 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

RF power

RF, or radio-frequency, is widely used in the transmission
of signals, and has a long-distance transmission
capacity. RF is widely used in the fields of wireless
communication.

RF power means the power supply devices which are
used to generate and stabilise RF power. RF power
equipment is generally composed of a RF signal source,
a RF power amplifier (which is an electronic device
that provides power gain) and an attenuator (a device
that reduces the power of a signal without distorting
its waveform), and a receiver (such as those found
on the rooftops of buildings). The Group’s RF power
products are used in cable television (which is a system
of delivering television programming to subscribers by
RF signals transmitted through cables), and broadband
networks, such as fibre to the home (FTTH, where the
fibre optic cable carries the RF signal to the domestic
home) and fibre to the building (FTTB, where the fibre
optic cable carries the RF signal to a building). Our
customers in the RF power category are generally
engaged in broadcasting and signal transmissions, and
include operators of television and radio broadcasting.

LED lighting

LED lighting systems utilise LEDs, or light emitting
diodes, to provide energy efficient, aesthetic and
long-life lighting solutions. LED lighting solutions are
cost-effective and have a wide range of applications and
can be used indoors, outdoors, and for special lighting
effects, such as spot-lights or stage lighting.

An LED lamp or bulb is typically comprised of several
components, including the LED which acts as light
source, the LED driver IC that regulates power to the
LED, reflector cups that refract and reflect the light, and
the lens that focuses the light beams.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
E 1R E 5t e & 5 4T

LED application design capabilities is considered to
be well developed and mature. One of our main design
applications for LED lighting systems was to provide
dimming features for LED lamps or bulbs. Although
it appears simple to design a dimmer for lighting
systems, it is in fact a challenge as LEDs and traditional
incandescent lamps operate very differently. If not
done correctly, the dimmer will cause instability in the
electrical current, which may cause flickering in the
LED lamp or bulb, and affect its dimming range and
performance. Our years of experience in and familiarity
with this product category enable us to provide fast and
comprehensive application solutions for our LED lighting
customers.

Sensors and automation

Sensors are used to detect changes or events in the
environment. When the sensor detects a change,
it provides a corresponding output to the device to
meet requirements of data and signal transmission,
processing, storage, display, recording and control of
information. There are many kinds of sensors, which are
used to measure, among other things, force, distance,
temperature, sound, light, electrical currents, magnetic
fields.

Qur application solutions for sensor ICs are coupled
together with automation solutions that assist the
customer’s product in automatically detecting and
reacting to various circumstantial changes in the
environment. The Group provides application solutions
for our radar sensors to be used on (i) automobile
vehicles to assist drivers with parking and provide
auto-drive functions; (ii) unmanned aerial drones in
maintaining stability of flight and avoiding obstacles;
(iii) security systems that link with videos to detect,
recognise and track moving objects; (iv) traffic
monitoring systems to measure speed of moving vehicles
and to monitor traffic congestion; and (v) smart lighting
systems that have motion sensing. We also provide
application solutions for pressure sensors to be used in
smart phones and smart watches for detecting altitude.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2019, total revenue
increased by 50.8% to US$101.5 million. The growth
was mainly driven by the sales increase of the Group's
solutions, in particular applications in the mobile devices
& smart charging.

Gross Profit

Gross profit for the year ended 31 December 2019
increased by 22.0% year-on-year to US$11.5 million,
which was mainly due to the increase in revenue
resulting from sales growth in product solutions, in
particular applications in the mobile devices & smart
charging & sensor & automation. Gross profit margin
decreased from approximately 14.0% to approximately
11.3%.

Other Income

The Group’s other income mainly included bank interest
income. For the year ended 31 December 2019, other
income increased by 80.9% to US$161,000.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Selling and distribution expenses mainly consist of
salaries and benefits for staff, transportation costs,
travelling expenses, office utility expenses, business
entertainment and marketing expenses and depreciation
costs. During the Year, the Group’s selling and
distribution expenses amounted to US$1.7 million, an
increase of 11.6% or US$180,000 when compared with
2018, mainly due to postages & couriers expenses.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
E 1R E 5t e & 5 4T

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses mainly consist of
administration expenses including salaries and benefits
for the management, administrative and financial
personnel, administrative costs and depreciation
expenses relating to property, plant and equipment used
for administrative purposes.

During the Year, general & administrative expenses
amounted to US$2.5 million, representing an increase of
31.7% year-on-year. Such increase was mainly incurred
in the business expansion.

Finance Costs

During the Year, finance costs amounted to US$1.0
million, representing an increase of 18.9% when
compared with 2018. The increase was mainly due to the
increase in trade financing to support business growth.

Income Tax Expense

During the Year, income tax expense was US$1.0 million,
a growth of 11.5% year-on-year which is in line with the
business growth.

Profit for the Year

As a result of the above factors, the Group’s profit for the
Year decreased by 3.8% from US$2.6 million recorded
for the year ended 31 December 2018 to US$2.5
million for the year ended 31 December 2019. Without
considering one-off listing expenses, the Group’s profit
for the Year increased by 25.7% when compared with
last year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES
AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the Year, the Group maintained a satisfactory
liquidity position supporting business growth. As at
31 December 2019, the Group had cash and cash
equivalents of US$6.3 million (31 December 2018:
US$2.9 million).

The Group recorded net current assets of US$27.5
million (31 December 2018: US$12.1 million).

As at 31 December 2019, the gearing ratio of the
Group was 41.6% (31 December 2018: 55.5%), which
represents net debt divided by the total equity plus net
debt. Net debt includes interest bearing bank and other
borrowings, trade and bills payables, other payables and
accruals, less cash and cash equivalents and pledged
bank deposits.

The Group's operation was mainly financed by funds
generated from its operations, banking facilities and
borrowings. The Group increased its bank loans mainly
for securing capital for its business development. At
as 31 December 2019, the Group had bank loans
amounting to US$1.4 million of which US$1.1 million is
due within 1 year based on agreed scheduled repayment
set out in the loan agreements. The bank loans are
mainly denominated in HKD. Banking facilities available
but unused facilities amounted to approximately US$0.1
million (31 December 2018: US$0.2 million).

The annual interest charge of the bank borrowings
during the Year ranged from 3.6% to 5.0% (2018: 3.7% to
5.0%).

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s bank deposits of
approximately US$1,229,000 (2018: US$300,000) was
pledged to secure the bills payables.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
E 1R E 5t e & 5 4T

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM LISTING

The shares of the Company was successfully listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on the Listing
Date by offering a total of 200,000,000 shares at the
offer price of HK$0.65 per shares. After deducting the
underwriting fees, commissions and expenses payable
by the Company, the net proceeds from the Listing of
HK$67.8 million (equivalent to approximately US$8.7
million), have been and will be utilised in the same
manner, proportion and the expected timeframe as set
out in the prospectus of the Company dated 29 June
2019 (the “Prospectus”) under the section headed
“Future Plans and Use of Proceeds”. The table below
sets out the planned applications of the net proceeds
and actual usage up to 31 December 2019:
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Actual Unutilised
Approximate Actual usage up to amount as at
percentage of amount of 31 December 31 December Expected
Use of proceeds total amount net proceeds 2019 2019 timeline
HE20195 #HBE2019F
FE®E  12H31HH 12A31H
ok FHER EREHA xEH
FRRERE Mo &8 B8R MedE FHEE
(HK$°000) (HK$°000) (HK$°000)
(FET) (FET) (FET)
() Financing the revolving 84.1% 57,020 57,020 - —
purchase payment for our
purchases of ICs imposed
under the ship-and-debit
arrangement (Note)
ﬁ%%ﬁ%%%??ﬁ%
ICH M ERREN
RUEEE (M T
(i) Enhancing our design and 3.7% 2,509 167 2,342 Remainder to be
R&D capabilities through utilised by 31 March
purchasing testing and R&D 2021
equipment
RERARFLRENS 0 il
RATEMEE N 3A31HE A
BTEH
(i) Recruiting and maintaining 9.9% 6,712 421 6,291  Remainder to be
high calibre talent utilised by 31 March
2021
BERBERBAL T B R20215
3A31HE A
N
(iv)  Working capital 2.3% 1,559 522 1,037 Remainder to be
utilised by 31 March
2021
LEET T B R20216F
3A31HE A
BT
100% 67,800 58,130 9,670
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISKS

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk related
primarily to sales and borrowings that are denominated
in a currency other than the functional currency of the
operations to which they relate. The currency giving
rise to this risk is primarily RMB. The Directors believe
that the exposure of the foreign exchange risk of the
Group is minimal, and will not have material adverse
risk on the financial performance of the Group. The
Group currently does not hold or issue any derivative
financial instruments for trading purposes or to hedge
against fluctuations in foreign exchange rates, but the
management of the Group closely monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure when needed.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND
DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

Save as disclosed in note 27 of consolidated financial
statements, the Group did not have any material
acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures during the year ended 31 December
2019.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group did not have any
significant contingent liabilities.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had 116 employees
(31 December 2018: 99 employees). The Group’s
labour costs (including salaries, bonuses, pension and
welfare but excluding directors’ and chief executives’
remuneration) were US$2.1 million, accounting for 2.1%
of its revenue in the Year.

The remunerations of the employees are commensurate
with their performance, skills, knowledge, experience
and the market trend. Employee benefits provided
by the Group include medical insurance scheme and
mandatory provident fund. The Group reviews the
remuneration policies and packages on a regular basis
and will make necessary adjustments that accommodate
the pay levels in the industry. Apart from basic salaries,
the employees may be offered with discretionary
bonuses and cash awards based on individual
performances. In addition, the Group has adopted a
share option scheme as further described in “Report of
the Directors” in this annual report.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESEREREEE

The Board consists of four executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors (‘“INEDs").

Executive Directors

Mr. Lam Keung (#3&) (“Mr. Lam”), aged 47, joined
the Group in April 2010 and was appointed as a Director
in August 2016. He was re-designated as the executive
Director and appointed as the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer in March 2018.

Mr. Lam is responsible for supervising the overall
management, making strategic planning of our Group,
implementing Board resolutions, as well as providing
guidance and directions of our Group. Mr. Lam also
conducts overall strategic review of the R&D department
of our Group, giving R&D directions in relation to the
latest trend of the IC and semiconductor industry.

Mr. Lam has over 23 years of experience in the IC and
semiconductor industry. Prior to joining our Group,
Mr. Lam worked at Rohm Electronics (H.K.) Company
Limited (currently known as Rohm Semiconductor Hong
Kong Company Limited) from September 1995 to August
2003 and his last position was assistant sales manager
where he was responsible for the sale of IC products.
Mr. Lam worked as a senior manager in marketing
department at Synergy International Technology
Limited from October 2003 to February 2010, where
he was responsible for the sales and marketing of
semiconductor solutions.

Mr. Lam joined IH Technology Limited (“IH
Technology”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, as a general manager in April 2010 and
was subsequently promoted to serve as a director of IH
Technology in November 2010. Mr. Lam has also been
serving as a director of Flyring Electronics Limited, an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, since
January 2011. Mr. Lam served as an independent non-
executive director of EFT Solutions Holdings Limited,
a company whose shares are listed on the GEM of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 8062), from 23 November
2016 to 26 March 2019, which is principally engaged
in sourcing of electronic fund transfer at point-of-sale
terminals and peripheral devices, and provision of
electronic fund transfer at point-of-sale system support
services and software solution services.
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Mr. Lam obtained a bachelor’'s degree in electrical
engineering from the University of Tennessee, the United
States in December 1993.

Mr. Lam, through P. Grand (BVI) Ltd. (“P. Grand”), a
company which is 100% beneficially owned by him,
holds approximately 67.5% of issued share capital of
the Company. In addition, pursuant to the confirmation
deed dated 21 March 2018 (the “Confirmation Deed”),
Mr. Lam, Mr. Qing and Ms. Feng Tao, the spouse of Mr.
Qing (“Mrs. Qing”), confirmed that they have been in
cooperation to jointly manage and control the operations
of the subsidiaries of the Company in Hong Kong and
the PRC since 2011. In view of the fact that Mr. Lam,
Mr. Qing and Mrs. Qing have been and will continue to
be acting in concert in the control, management and
operation of the Group, Mr. Lam is also deemed to be
interested in all the Shares held by Kingtech which is
100% beneficially owned by Mrs. Qing.

Mr. Qing Haodong (&%) (“Mr. Qing”), aged 56,
joined the Group in December 2016 and was appointed
as a Director in December 2017. He was re-designated
as the executive Director in March 2018.

Mr. Qing is responsible for the overall marketing activities
of our Group. He is also responsible for liaising with
electronics manufacturers and promoting the latest
electronic products to customers.

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEREREEE

Mr. Qing has over 18 years of experience in the IC and
semiconductor industry. Prior to joining our Group, Mr.
Qing was an automation engineer at Sichuan Food
Fermentation Industry Research and Design Institute* (4
MNERMBEETEMRXFKEB) from September 1985
to November 2000, where he was responsible for the
electrical design for automation control equipment. Mr.
Qing joined Chengdu Flyring Electronics Co., Ltd.* (X
HRIRETHR2AAF) (‘“Chengdu Flyring”), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as a sales
manager in November 2000. Mr. Qing has been serving
as the supervisor at Chengdu Flyring, Shenzhen IH
Technology Co., Ltd* (R HE &SI M AR D a))
and Shanghai IH Microelectronics Technology Co., Ltd.*
(EBREMEFHMBRAA) (“Shanghai IH"), all
of which are indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Company, since February 2006, May 2005 and August
2009, respectively.

Mr. Qing obtained his professional certificate in industrial
electronics and enterprise (L{®E & %) from Harbin Jixie
Industry School* (M EE# W T X2 K), the PRC, in
August 1985.

Mr. Qing is the spouse of Mrs. Qing, who beneficially
owns 100% of Kingtech (BVI) Ltd. (“Kingtech”). In
addition, pursuant to the Confirmatory Deed, Mr. Lam,
Mr. Qing and Mrs. Qing confirmed that they have been in
cooperation to jointly manage and control the operations
of the subsidiaries of the Company in Hong Kong and
the PRC since 2011. In view of the fact that Mr. Lam,
Mr. Qing and Mrs. Qing have been and will continue to
be acting in concert in the control, management and
operation of our Group, Mr. Qing is also deemed to be
interested in all the Shares held by his spouse Mrs. Qing
through Kingtech, and all the Shares held by Mr. Lam
through P. Grand.

22 Contel Technology Company Limited  Annual Report 2019

BWEEFICKFEEITERBAISFL
B MMARSKEER - B1985F9H &
2000F 1A Wt EmIERMmERT
XM RRFTRMBEE TS TEM 8aEH
B HIRENERRET o R2000F114 -
B EMARRRMEZ BN B QR K
RIREFAERAG ([RREBRIR]) - & (F5H
€& I8 o B A B2006F28 - 200545
A X2009F8HE DRI EEKERIR %
IHREZEFEMBERAR R EBEE
MEFHEMBERAR(LBEE DG AR
NREEEZENBAR)MNESE -

I8 o HE BA1985F 8 A BLAS A B e R B 4
THERIPEHZEZE -

BEERBAKRNES  BAKERESR
Kingtech (BVI) Ltd. ([Kingtech])100% Y
B o Mo BIBEREZE - MLk - B
EERBRAER  BEB2011FEFRE
G HRABBREZEHARRAREARTP
BAMEARIREE - ERMELE - Wi
ERBMAX—BEEBEBERERZES -
EENEETE—BITE  WELETHES
RN ERBBE A KNE BKingtechFT 5 2§
B% 15 R K 5 £ 3 B P.Grand AT 15 2 28R 15
PHEEER o



Mr. Mai Lu (Z &) (“Mr. Mai”), aged 45, joined the
Group in January 2017 and was appointed as the
executive Director of the Company in March 2018.

Mr. Mai oversees the design and R&D functions of
our Group and is responsible for the overall daily
management of the design and R&D team.

Mr. Mai has over 17 years of experience in providing
technical solutions of semiconductors. Mr. Mai worked as
an assistant engineer at the Chinese People’s Liberation
Army from July 1996 to July 2001, and his last rank at
the Chinese People’s Liberation Army was Professional
Technology Lieutenant (% % £ i1 ). Mr. Mai worked
as a sales engineer at Rohm Semiconductor (Shenzhen)
Co. Ltd. from July 2001 to February 2003, where he was
responsible for sales and providing technical supports
to the customers, and worked as a manager at the R&D
department of Shanghai Huanwei Electronics Company
Limited* (EBRMEFBRAA) from March 2003 to
August 2010, where he was responsible for overseeing
the R&D department of the company.

Mr. Mai joined Shanghai IH as head of the R&D
department in September 2010.

Mr. Mai obtained his bachelor’s degree in electronics
and information system (£ F 2 HEH{Z 8 XHKZ241) from
National University of Defense Technology (FF Bl A R f##
B G R E T KE | currently known as AR A R 7 i
B & 5 R K2, the PRC, in July 1996.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEREREEE

Ms. Cheng Yu Pik (EBF 28) (“Ms. Cheng”) (appointed
on 27 March 2020), aged 39, joined the Group in July
2009 and was appointed as the executive Director of the
Company in March 2020.

Ms. Cheng has over 15 years of experience in the
semiconductor industry. Ms. Cheng is responsible for
overseeing the business and administrative functions of
the Group, including collaborating with other members of
the senior management and staff members to formulate
and implement policies and procedures; interfacing
cross-functionally at all levels within the Group as well
as with external resources (such as logistic companies,
governmental agencies); and providing routine reports to
the Board regarding operations, business performance
and human resources.

Ms. Cheng joined IH Technology in July 2009. Prior to
joining the Group, she worked at Synergy International
Technology Limited from August 2003 to June 2009
and her last position was senior customer service
coordinator where she was responsible for coordinating
with suppliers and handling enquiries. Ms. Cheng
worked as a general clerk at Kingdan Development
Limited from September 2000 to July 2003, where she
was responsible for dealing with suppliers, clients and
customs declarations.

Ms. Cheng obtained her matriculation certificate from
Caritas Bianchi College of Careers, Hong Kong, in
October 2000.
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INEDs

Mr. Dan Kun Lei Raymond (E8E &) (“Mr. Dan”), aged
49, was appointed as an INED of the Company in June
2019.

Mr. Dan has over 19 years of experience in the
information technology industry.

Mr. Dan has worked as a solution consultant at China
Mobile Hong Kong Company Limited, a company
whose shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (stock code: 941),
since March 2020, where he was mainly responsible
for providing technical and professional consultancy
services to its customers. Mr. Dan worked as senior
systems consultant at Automated Systems (H.K.) Limited
from April 2017 to March 2020, where he was mainly
responsible for providing technical and professional
consultancy services to its customers. Prior to joining
Automated Systems (H.K.) Limited, he was a senior bid
manager at CITIC Telecom International CPC Limited
from December 2015 to April 2017, where he was
responsible for managing bidding projects in relation to
information technology products. Prior to joining CITIC
Telecom International CPC Limited, he was an account
manager at Huawei Tech. Investment Co., Limited from
June 2013 to November 2015, where he was responsible
for providing technical services to the customers during
the process of sales. Mr. Dan worked as a business
consulting officer at Hewlett-Packard HK SAR Limited
from June 2010 to May 2013, where he was responsible
for providing pre-sale support, performing technology
assessment and maintaining customer relationship.
Prior to that, he also gained experience from different
information technology or telecommunication companies
including Shen Milsom & Wilke Limited, PCCW Limited a
company whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 0008) and Unisys China/Hong Kong Limited
from May 1999 to June 2010 in various positions.

Mr. Dan obtained his bachelor’'s degree in computer
systems engineering from La Trobe University, Australia,
in May 1997, and his master's degree in management
from Macquarie University, Australia, in October 2000.
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Mr. Wong Kwun Ho (2 Ex) (“Mr. Wong”), aged 36,
was appointed as an INED of the Company in June
2019.

Mr. Wong has over 11 years of experience in financial
management and public offering transactions. Mr. Wong
became a certified public accountant and a qualified
member of HKICPA in February 2012.

Mr. Wong is a licensed representative to carry on Type 1
(dealings in securities) and a responsible officer of Type
6 (advising on corporate finance) regulated activities
under the SFO. He has been serving as an associate
director for investment banking division of Zhongtai
International Capital Limited since January 2018 and was
further appointed as an executive director in January
2019, where he is responsible for origination and
execution of deals and transactions, such as initial public
offering and financial advisory cases. Mr. Wong has
been serving as an independent non-executive director
of Ascent International Holdings Limited, a company
whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 264), from August 2018 to
September 2019. Mr. Wong worked as a vice president
of corporate finance division at CCB International
Capital Limited from April 2017 to December 2017 and
was mainly responsible for execution of initial public
offering and bond offering cases. Mr. Wong worked
as an assistant vice president of the corporate finance
department at Guotai Junan Capital Limited from
September 2013 to April 2017, mainly responsible for
origination and execution of deals and transactions,
such as initial public offering and financial advisory
cases. Prior to that, Mr. Wong also gained accounting
and transactional experience from different financial
companies and accounting firms including Fortune
Financial Capital Limited, Guosen Securities (HK) Capital
Company Limited and PricewaterhouseCoopers Ltd.
from September 2008 to September 2013.
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Mr. Wong obtained his bachelor's degree of business
administration (Honours) in accountancy in November
2008 from City University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Lai Man Shun (B E{8) (“Mr. Lai”), aged 47, was
appointed as an INED of the Company in June 2019.

Mr. Lai has over 18 years of experience in information
technology and telecommunication industry. He has
been a general manager of EFT Payments (Asia) Limited
since July 2016, mainly responsible for the business
relationship management, development planning and
overall supervision of different departments of the
company. Immediately before that, Mr. Lai worked at EFT
Solution Limited as the head of business development
from March 2016 to June 2016. Before that, he was a
chief executive officer and founder of Paxex International
Limited from 2010 to 2016, mainly responsible for
the overall business of the company. He was also a
sales director and co-founder of RICC Limited, mainly
responsible for the management of the business
developments from 2001 to 2010.

Mr. Lai obtained his bachelor’'s degree in science from
La Trobe University, Australia, in May 1997.

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESEREREERE

EARAR2008F 11 AEEEBEW T AERNE
SHEIRER(EB)B8L 8-

REBEXETEREE]D 475 - R20194F
CREZITARNARBIUIIERITES -

REEREAREEREMITEHE B 18
FEE o B2016F7AKE - HIEE HNiE
(M) BRAFBEEE  TEBEZLAT
MEKBEERERE BERBRIARSIMAY
REEE  ZEZBAMA A - B20165F3
RAZE2016%F 67 AL EFE(EEFT Solution
Limited ¥ B M EE - LLAT © B2010
F F£20164%F - H A Paxex International
Limited W TTERARH FREIMWA  TEBEZ
NEMEEER - H2001F E20104F @ &
N EERICC Limited I HE T EFHH A
BN FTEEEEBERERE -

52 5%t R 100745 5 1 1250 N 1 8 1 A 2
MBS LB .

BEEEMEERAF 2019F FH

27



DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEREREERE

Disclosure required under Rule 13.51(2)
of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”)

Each of the Directors confirms that save as disclosed
above: (i) he has not held directorships in the last three
years in other public companies, the securities of which
are listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or
overseas; (ii) he does not hold any other position in
our Company or any of its subsidiaries; (iii) there is no
other information that should be disclosed pursuant to
Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules; and (iv) to the best of
the knowledge, information and belief of our Directors
having made all reasonable enquiries, there are no
other matters with respect to the appointment of the
Directors that need to be brought to the attention of our
Shareholders.

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Directors'
Interests and Short Positions in Shares and Underlying
Shares and Debenture” in this annual report, each of
the Directors certifies that he/she does not have any
interests in the Shares within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO.
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Senior management

Mr. Wang Kai (FE8l) (“Mr. Wang”), aged 40, joined
the Group in December 2016 and was appointed as the
head of sales of the Group in March 2018.

Mr. Wang has over 17 years of experience in the sales
and marketing of semiconductors, ICs and electronic
component products. Mr. Wang oversees the sales
business of our Group. He is also responsible for the
overall management of the sales teams of the Group.

Mr. Wang worked as a sales representative for Chengdu
Flyring in September 2001. He was subsequently
promoted to a sales manager in July 2005, where he
was responsible for regional sales operations in the
PRC, covering south-western and south-eastern areas
of the PRC. Mr. Wang has been serving as a director
of Shanghai IH since August 2009, and assumed the
position of sales manager of Shanghai IH subsequent to
his appointment as a director of Shanghai IH. Apart from
overseeing the daily management of Shanghai IH, Mr.
Wang is also responsible for the overall sales operations
of our Group. He has also been serving as a director of
Shenzhen IH since May 2015.

Mr. Wang obtained his high diploma certificate in
mathematics education from Zigong Shifan High Diploma
Professional School* (B B il & = & E & £ 1), the PRC,
in June 2001.
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Ms. Au Ka Man Silkie (EX % ) (“Ms. Au”), aged 36,
joined the Group in October 2016 and was appointed as
the chief financial officer and company secretary of the
Company in March 2018.

Ms. Au has over 13 years of experience in business
administration and management. Ms. Au is responsible
for overseeing the financial operations of the Group, as
well as supervising accounting and finance departments.
She is also responsible for company secretarial matters
of our Group.

Prior to joining the Company, Ms. Au was the chief
executive officer of Pro Max CPA Limited from June
2014 to September 2016, where she was responsible
for the overall management, strategy planning and daily
operations of the company. She worked at CPA firm
from April 2008 to March 2014 and her last positions
were senior unit manager and practising director, where
she was responsible for the overall management of the
accounting departments and human resources. She
also worked as an assistant accountant at Accounting
firm from June 2006 to March 2008, where she was
responsible for preparing full set of accounts.

Ms. Au obtained a bachelor’'s degree in business
administration from Lingnan University, Hong Kong, in
November 2006. She became a member of HKICPA in
January 2011.
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Ms. Feng Ying (/5H) (“Ms. Feng”), aged 51, joined
the Group in January 2017 and was appointed as the
head of PRC operations of the Group in March 2018. Ms.
Feng is the sister of Mrs. Qing and the sister-in-law of Mr.
Qing.

Ms. Feng has over 18 years of experience in the
management of the Group. Ms. Feng is responsible for
overseeing the business and administrative function
of the PRC entities of the Group. Prior to joining the
Group, Ms. Feng worked as an analyst in Sichuan
Yinshan Sugar Manufacturing Factory* ( P9 JII & $8
BE ) from September 1987 to 2000, responsible for
quality inspection. Ms. Feng joined Chengdu Flyring
as supervisor in November 2000 and was responsible
for supervising and inspecting the daily management,
operation, financial situation and the work of directors
and senior managers of Chengdu Flyring. Ms. Feng has
been serving as the legal representative, the director
and the general manager of Chengdu Flyring since
June 20083, responsible for administration and the daily
operations of Chengdu Flyring. Ms. Feng obtained her
graduate certificate majored in paper making from the
Neijiang Light Chemical Technician Training School* (A
I T &b TE24), the PRC, in 1987.

*  For identification purpose only

CHANGES TO DIRECTORS’
INFORMATION

Save as disclosed herein, the Directors confirm that no
information is required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule
13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.
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The board of directors of the Company (the “Directors”
and the “Board”, respectively) is pleased to present
the report of the Directors together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The subsidiaries of the Group are principally
engaged in the sales of electronic components, and
sales and integration of storage systems. The shares of
the Company was listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 16 July 2019 (the
‘Listing Date”).

Segment analysis of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2019 is set out in note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements. A list of the Company’s
subsidiaries, together with their places of incorporation,
principal activities, place of operation and particulars of
their issued shares/registered share capital, is set out in
note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2019 are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on pages 91.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on
pages 191 to 192 of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movement in the share capital of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2019,
together with the reasons thereof, are set out in note 25
to the consolidated financial statements.
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FINAL DIVIDEND AND CLOSURE OF
REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Board has resolved to recommend the payment of
a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2019
by way of bonus issue on the basis of one (1) bonus
share for ten (10) existing shares (the “Bonus Issue”),
which is subject to the approval of Shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
(the “AGM”) to be held on Thursday, 28 May 2020. The
register of members of the Company will be closed
from Monday, 25 May 2020 to Thursday, 28 May 2020,
both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of
Shares will be effected. In order to qualify for attending
the AGM, all properly completed share transfer forms,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must be
lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share
registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 54,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 22 May 2020.

Conditional on the passing of the resolution approving
the Bonus Issue by the Shareholders at the AGM, the
register of members of the Company will be closed from
Wednesday, 3 June 2020 to Thursday, 4 June 2020,
both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of
Shares will be effected. In order to qualify for the Bonus
Issue, all properly completed share transfer forms,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must be
lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share
registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 54,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 2 June 2020.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE
Review of our Business and Performance

A discussion and analysis of the Group’s performance
during the year ended 31 December 2019 and the key
factors affecting its results and financial position are set
out in the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” of this annual report.

Information about a review of, and an indication of
likely future development in, the Group’s business is set
out in the “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.
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Particulars of Important Events

Since 31 December 2019, being the end of the financial
year under review, no important event has occurred
affecting the Group.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The following section lists out the key risks and
uncertainties faced by the Group. It is a non-exhaustive
list and there may be other risks and uncertainties
further to the key risk areas outlined below. Besides, this
annual report does not constitute a recommendation or
an advice for anyone to invest in the securities of the
Company and investors are advised to make their own
judgment or consult their own investment advisors before
making any investment in the securities of the Company.

Financial risks

Details on the financial risks on foreign currency, credit
on trade receivables, liquidity and interest rate facing the
Group on its operation can be referred to note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements included in this annual
report on pages 178 to 187.

Evolvement in information technology

Our Group operates in a highly competitive industry
which faces rapid changes in market trends, consumer
preferences and constantly evolving technological
advances in hardware models, software features and
functionalities. The ongoing changes in technology
require us to constantly incorporate new features or
technology into our sensitivity and adaptability to market
demand and/or services in order to cope with the
evolving environment and customer demands.

Our business operation may be affected by
future economic and political policies of the
PRC government

The development of PRC’s economy is based on many
factors, including but not limited to structure of economy,
government involvement, control of foreign exchange,
allocation of resources and capital investment. However,
any of such changes to the economic and political
strategies and policies of the PRC government may have
an adverse impact on the overall global economy and
affect all the industries in which the Group operates.
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Our business operation may be affected by
future economic and political uncertainties in
the world

Economic and political uncertainties in the world resulted
from major events such as Brexit, the U.S. presidential
election or terrorist attack events may have short-term
and long-term effects on the global economy and the
performance of the global capital markets, which in turn
may adversely impact the performance of the Group.

Performance history and forward looking
statements

The performance and the results of the operations of the
Group as set out in this annual report are historical in
nature and past performance is not a guarantee of future
performance. This annual report may contain forward
looking statements and opinions that involve risks and
uncertainties. Actual results may also differ materially
from expectations discussed in such forward-looking
statements and opinions. Neither the Group nor the
Directors, employees or agents of the Group assume
any obligations or liabilities in the event that any of
the forward-looking statements or opinions does not
materialize or turns out to be incorrect.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

It is our corporate and social responsibility in promoting
a sustainable and environmental friendly environment.
Our Group does not engage in the manufacturing of
products and does not have any production facilities.
The inventory are kept at our Group’s storage and
warehousing facilities situated inside the headquarters
office unit. Therefore, our Group is not subject to
significant health, safety or environmental risks. During
the year ended 31 December 2019, our Group had
not been subject to any fines or other penalties due to
non-compliance with health, safety or environmental
regulations.
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Compliance with Laws and Regulations

Our operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries in Hong Kong and China while the Company
itself is listed on the Stock Exchange. Our operations
shall comply with relevant laws and regulations in China
and Hong Kong.

During the year ended 31 December 2019 and up to the
date of this report, the Group has complied with all the
relevant laws and regulations in China and Hong Kong in
all material respects.

Relationship with Employees, Customers and
Suppliers

The Group is constantly aware of the importance of
maintaining a good relationship with its employees,
customers and suppliers to meet its immediate and
long-term business goals. We encourage employees to
strengthen their knowledge of the industries in which the
Group operate and attend courses or training sessions to
improve their relevant industry and technical knowledge.
The Group also maintains ongoing communications
with its employees, customers and suppliers through
various channels such as regular meetings, calls and
emails in order to allow employees to contribute to the
development of the Group, deliver better customer
services to our clients and obtain better services and
cooperation from our suppliers.
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TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and
exemption available to Shareholders by reason of their
holding of the Company’s securities.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in
note 26 to the consolidated financial statements and in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the
year ended 31 December 2019 to this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As of 31 December 2019, the Company’s distributable
reserves calculated in accordance with the Companies
Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands amounted to US$12.8
million.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements of our property, plant and
equipment during the year ended 31 December 2019
are set out in are set out in note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM INITIAL
PUBLIC OFFERING

The Company was listed on the Stock Exchange
on the Listing Date with net proceeds received by
the Company from the global offering in the amount
of approximately HK$67.8 million after deducting
underwriting commissions and all related expenses. The
net proceeds received from the public offering will be
used in the manner consistent with that mentioned in
the section headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds”
of the Prospectus. Please refer to section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual
report for the utilisation of the net proceeds from the
Listing Date up to 31 December 2019.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

The Company did not redeem any of its Shares listed on
the Stock Exchange nor did the Company or any of its
subsidiaries purchase or sell any of such Shares during
the Year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2019
and up to the date of this annual report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Lam Keung (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Qing Haodong

Mr. Mai Lu

Ms. Cheng Yu Pik (appointed on 27 March 2020)

INEDs

Mr. Dan Kun Lei, Raymond
Mr. Wong Kwun Ho
Mr. Lai Man Shun

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in
“‘Directors and Senior Management” to this annual
report. In accordance with the Articles of Association,
Mr. Lam Keung (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer),
Mr. Qing Haodong, Mr. Mai Lu, Ms. Cheng Yu Pik, Mr.
Dan Kun Lei, Raymond, Mr. Wong Kwun Ho and Mr. Lai
Man Shun shall retire at the AGM and being eligible,
have offered themselves for re-election thereat.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors offering for re-election at the
AGM has a service contract with the Company which
is not terminable within one year without payment of
compensation other than statutory compensation.
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REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy of the employees of our Group
has been set up by the remuneration committee of
the Board (the “Remuneration Committee”’) on the
basis of their merit, qualifications and competence.
The remuneration of the Directors is recommended
by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the
Company’s operating results, individual performance
and comparable market statistics. The Company has
adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to the
eligible participants.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE AND
COMPETING BUSINESS

Save as disclosed under note 28 “Related Party
Transactions” to the consolidated financial statements,
no transactions, arrangements and contracts of
significance (as defined in Appendix 16 to the Listing
Rules) to which the Company or its holding company or
any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party
and in which a Director, an entity connected with the
Director or controlling shareholder of the Company or its
subsidiaries (other than members of the Group) had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, during the
year ended 31 December 2019 and up to the date of this
annual report.

As of 31 December 2019, none of the Directors is
interested in any businesses apart from our business
which competes or is likely to compete with our
business, either directly or indirectly or would otherwise
require disclosure under Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions were set out
in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements. In
the opinion of the Directors of the Company, the related
party transactions were carried out in the normal course
of business and at terms negotiated between the Group
and the respective related parties.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this report, at no time during
the year ended 31 December 2019 had the Company
or any of its subsidiaries entered into any contract of
significance with the controlling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries, nor had any contract of significance been
entered into for the services provided by the controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries to the Company or
any of its subsidiaries.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

The Directors confirm that none of the related party
transactions set out in note 28 to the consolidated
financial statements constituted connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules that is required to be disclosed.
Save as disclosed in note 28 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group had not entered into
any connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions which are required to be disclosed in this
report pursuant to the Listing Rules during the year
ended 31 December 2019.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURE

As at 31 December 2019, the interests or short positions
of the Directors and the chief executives of the Company
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required: (i)
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO), (ii) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred to therein (the
“‘Register”), or (iii) pursuant to the Model Code to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were
as follows:

Long positions
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Approximate

Number of percentage of
Name Capacity/Nature of interest Shares®  shareholding
R4
i By HmHE B E® B Lt
Mr. Lam Keung"® Interest in a controlled corporation/ 600,000,000 (L) 75.0%
Person acting in concert

O] TrERER —BITPHAL

Mr. Qing Haodong(®) Interest in a controlled corporation/ 600,000,000 (L) 75.0%

Person acting in concert
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Notes:

(1)  Pursuant to a confirmatory deed, Mr. Lam Keung, Mr. Qing
Haodong and Ms. Feng Tao (spouse of Mr. Qing Haodong) have
acknowledged and confirmed, among other things, that they
are acting in concert with each other. Accordingly, each of Mr.
Lam Keung, Mr. Qing Haodong and Ms. Feng Tao is deemed to
be interested in all the Shares in which any of them is interested
under the SFO.

(2) P. Grand (BVI) Ltd. is 100% owned by Mr. Lam Keung, and Mr.
Lam Keung is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by
P. Grand (BVI) Ltd. under the SFO.

(8) Kingtech (BVI) Ltd. is 100% owned by Ms. Feng Tao, and Ms.
Feng Tao is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by
Kingtech (BVI) Ltd. under the SFO.

(4)  The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in the Shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, so
far as is known to the Directors, none of the Directors
and the chief executives of the Company had or were
deemed to have any interest or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO), which would have to be notified the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions in which they were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO) and/or required
to be recorded in the Register or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

So far as is known to the Directors and chief executives
of the Company, as at 31 December 2019, the person
(other than a Director or the chief executives of the
Company) or corporations who had interests or short
position in the Share and underlying Shares which were
required to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:
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Approximate

Number of percentage of
Name Capacity/Nature of interest Shares®  shareholding
R 8 49
e s By HmHE B E® B Lt
P. Grand (BVI) Ltd. Beneficial owner 540,000,000 (L) 67.5%
EaEAA
Ms. Feng Tao"M®@®) Interest in a controlled corporation/ 600,000,000 (L) 75%
Person acting in concert
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Kingtech (BVI) Ltd. Beneficial owner 60,000,000 (L) 7.5%

BEmEBA

Notes:

™
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(4)

Pursuant to a confirmatory deed, Mr. Lam Keung, Mr. Qing
Haodong and Ms. Feng Tao (spouse of Mr. Qing Haodong) have
acknowledged and confirmed, among other things, that they
are acting in concert with each other. Accordingly, each of Mr.
Lam Keung, Mr. Qing Haodong and Ms. Feng Tao is deemed to
be interested in all the Shares in which any of them is interested
under the SFO.

P. Grand (BVI) Ltd. is 100% owned by Mr. Lam Keung, and Mr.
Lam Keung is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by
P. Grand (BVI) Ltd. under the SFO.

Kingtech (BVI) Ltd. is 100% owned by Ms. Feng Tao, and Ms.
Feng Tao is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by
Kingtech (BVI) Ltd. under the SFO.

The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in the Shares.
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Save as those disclosed above, as at 31 December
2019, the Directors and the chief executives of the
Company are not aware of any other person or
corporation having an interest or short positions in the
Shares or underlying Shares which would be required
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which
were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme pursuant
to a resolution in writing passed by the shareholders
on 21 June 2019 (the “Share Option Scheme”) as
incentives or rewards for eligible participants who
contribute to the Group.

As at 31 December 2019, no share option was granted,
exercised, lapsed or cancelled under the Share Option
Scheme. Summary of major terms of the Share Option
Scheme are as follows:

(i) Purposes of the scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to
enable the Group to grant options to selected
participants as incentives or rewards for their
contribution to our Group. The Directors consider
the Share Option Scheme will enable the Group
to reward the employees, the Directors and other
selected participants for their contribution to our
Group and to attract and retain such individuals.
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(ii) The Participants

(iii)

The following persons of the Company, any member
of the Group or of an entity in which the Group
holds an equity interest may be invited by the
Directors to take up options to subscribe for Shares
at the Directors’ absolute discretion:

employees and directors;
suppliers and customers;

persons or entities that provides research,
development or other technological support;

holders of any securities;

advisers (professional or otherwise) or
consultants to any area of business or business
development; and

any other group or classes of participants
who have contributed or may contribute by
way of joint venture, business alliance or other
business arrangement to the development and
growth of the Group.

Maximum number of Shares

The maximum number of Shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme shall not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at
the Listing Date (i.e. 80,000,000 shares).
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(iv) Maximum entitlement of each participant

(v)

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted to each
participant other than a Director, chief executive
or substantial shareholders of the Company who
accepts the offer for the grant of an option under
the Share Option Scheme in any 12-month period
shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of
the Company. Any further grant of options in excess
of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a
general meeting.

Options granted to a Director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any
of their associates, are subject to approval by the
INEDs. Where any grant of options to a substantial
shareholder of the Company or an INED, or to any
of their respective associates, in excess of 0.1% of
the Shares in issue at the date of grant and with an
aggregate value (based on the closing price of the
Shares at the date of each grant) in excess of HK$5
million, within any 12-month period, are subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Time of acceptance and exercise of option

An offer of options may be accepted by a
participant within 28 days from the date of the offer
of the options. Unless otherwise determined by the
Directors and stated in the offer, a grantee is not
required to hold an option for any minimum period
nor achieve any performance targets before the
exercise of an option granted to him.
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(vi) Subscription price for Shares and
consideration for the option

The subscription price for Shares will be a price
determined by the Directors, but shall not be less
than the highest of (i) the closing price of Shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet on the date of the offer of grant; (ii) the
average closing price of Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the
five trading days immediately preceding the date of
the offer of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the
Shares.

A nominal consideration of HK$1.00 is payable by
the grantee on acceptance of the grant of option.

(vii) Period of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a
period of 10 years commencing on 21 June 2019,
the date on which the Share Option Scheme is
adopted.

EQUITY-LINK AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreement that would or might result
in the Company issuing Shares, or that requiring the
Company to enter into an agreement that would or might
result in the Company issuing shares, was entered into
by the Company during the year ended 31 December
2019 or subsisted at the end of the year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors,
as of the date of this annual report, the Company has
maintained sufficient public float as required under the
Listing Rules.

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEHRE

(vi) kIR B ERBRENKE

BORBEREESETE  ETRF
BERUATEENZSE  ()BHRE
HE B BB AT A ®mR ARG
B TE: (NRORERRLENA
HA A 118 32 5 B 1R Bk X2 P B SR 3R PR
B FHRHE Rk DEE -

BEMEOOBRER  ARABIHN
1008 THREBARE -

(vii) BE R HERTEIBA

BRESZSHBERETIRMA
HA2019F 6 A21HEMIOF BB A AR
e

R #E fib £ 15 5%

MERSRAIEGRARBHITRMD - X
SARRNAIAR & ARG AN F B
17 B A7) 9 197 5 B0 B 48 4 609 177 38 IO B 2 2019
F12AMA L FERBARR LN ZF
RERIEFFE -

EEARFIRE

R ONGPNGE SEYOL - 29 8 £
Ao REFREE  AARERH(LTH
ADETHREXCARHRE -

BEEEMEERAF 2019F FH

47



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
laws of the Cayman Islands (place of incorporation of
the Company) or under the Articles of Association which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro-rata basis to its existing Shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has adopted the code provisions as
set out in the CG Code. The Board considered that
during the period from the Listing Date up to the date
of this annual report, the Company has complied with
the applicable code provisions set out in the CG Code
except for those disclosed in the Corporate Governance
Report included in this report. For details please refer to
the “Corporate Governance Report” on pages 51 to 70 of
this annual report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contracts, other than the employment contracts of
the executive Directors, concerning the management
and administration of the whole or substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year ended 31 December 2019.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every Director
shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of
the Company against all losses or liabilities which he/
she may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the
duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation thereto.

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance
cover for the Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in
respect of legal actions against its Directors and senior
management arising out of corporate activities during
the year ended 31 December 2019 and the indemnity
provision and Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance
remained in force as of the date of this report.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the five largest
customers of the Group comprised 43.0% by value of
our total sales during the year, with the largest customer
accounted for 11.7%.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the five largest
suppliers of the Group comprised 87.9% by value of our
total purchases during the year, with the largest supplier
accounted for 42.3%.

None of the Directors, their close associates or a
Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors
owns more than 5% of the number of issued shares of
the Company) has an interest in any of our five largest
customers and suppliers.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as otherwise disclosed in this annual report, at no
time during the year ended 31 December 2019 was the
Company or any of its holding company, subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable
the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

After the outbreak of novel coronavirus (COVID-19) in
January 2020 has caused disruptions to many industries,
including electronics manufacturing industry, in China as
well as other countries. These disruptions have inevitably
posed a significant threat to the global economy in 2020.
Despite the challenges, governments and international
organizations have implemented a series of measures
to contain the epidemic. The time duration and scope of
these disruptions cannot be accurately assessed at this
point in time. Up to the date on which these consolidated
financial statements are issued, the Group was not
aware of any material adverse effects on the financial
statements as a result of the COVID-19 outbreak. The
Group will closely monitor the development of the
epidemic and assess its impact on its operations.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR 78 3T % B Rl

The consolidated financial statements for the year & ZE2019F12A31BILFENLGL AT E R
ended 31 December 2019 have been audited by Moore KRCOHAZEEHMESTMEETER QA
Stephens CPA Limited (‘Moore Hong Kong’), who will ([KEBER)EZ EBERKREAFAS
retire at the conclusion of the AGM and offer themselves 4 RERT I EASHEEE - FHEKE
for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment BRARRR B ZEMARZERGNIER
of Moore Hong Kong as the independent auditor of the MEHEAFAKELREZ -

Company will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board RREEZ

Lam Keung FREFTHAEH
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer iR

Hong Kong, 27 March 2020 EA 0 2020FE3H278
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board of Directors is pleased to present the
corporate governance report for the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2019.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has adopted the principles and code
provisions according to the Corporate Governance Code
and Corporate Governance Report (the “CG Code”)
of Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules as the basis of the
Company’s corporate governance practices with effect
from the Listing Date.

The Company is committed to maintaining high
standards and has applied the Principles that are set out
in the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules. The Company’s corporate governance practices
are based on these Principles. The Board believes that
good corporate governance standards are essential
in contributing to the provision of a framework for the
Company to safeguard the interests of its shareholders,
enhance corporate value, formulate its business
strategies and policies, and enhance transparency and
accountability.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has
complied with all the code provisions of the CG Code
and to a large extent the recommended best practices
in the CG Code throughout the period from the Listing
Date to 31 December 2019, except for the deviation
from code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code as described
below. The Company will continue to review and monitor
its corporate governance practices to ensure compliance
with the CG Code.
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Our Company complies or intends to comply with the CG
Code set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, save
for Code provision A.2.1 which requires that the roles
of chairman and chief executive officer be separated
and performed by different individuals. Mr. Lam is both
our Chief Executive Officer and Chairman. Our Board
believes that vesting the roles of both Chief Executive
Officer and Chairman in the same person has the benefit
of ensuring consistent leadership and efficient discharge
of executive functions within our Group. Our Group
considers that the balance of power and authority of
the present arrangement will not be impaired as during
the period the Board comprised six other experienced
and high-calibre individuals including three other
executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors who would be able to offer advice from
various perspectives. In addition, for major decisions
of our Group, the Board will make consultations with
appropriate Board committees and senior management.
Therefore, our Directors consider that the present
arrangement is beneficial to and in the interest of our
Company and our Shareholders as a whole and the
deviation from Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code is
appropriate in such circumstance.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE
FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted written guidelines (the
“Written Guidelines”) on no less exacting terms than
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its own code for
securities transactions by the Directors.

As the Shares were listed on the Stock Exchange on 16
July 2019, the Model Code and Written Guidelines were
not applicable to the Company during the period from 1
January 2019 to 15 July 2019.

Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all of them
have confirmed that they have complied with the Model
Code and the Written Guidelines throughout the period
from the Listing Date to the date of this annual report.
No incident of non-compliance of the Written Guidelines
by the employees who are likely to be in possession
of inside information of the Company was noted by the
Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Roles and Responsibilities

The Group endeavours to enhance corporate efficiency
and profitability through the Board. The directors
recognise their collective and individual responsibility to
the shareholders and perform their duties diligently to
contribute to positive results for the Group and maximise
returns for shareholders. The Board’'s focus is on the
formulation of business strategy and policy, and control.
Matters reserved for the Board are those affecting the
Company’s overall strategic policies, finances and
shareholders. These include, but not limited to the
following:

— determining policy matters, business plans and
strategies, risk management, internal control,

— annual and quarterly financial forecast;

— preliminary announcements of interim and final
results, and interim and annual reports;

— dividend policy;

— major corporate activities such as material
acquisitions and capital expenditures; and

— Directors’ appointment, re-election and

recommendations.

Directors could seek independent professional advice
in performing their duties at the Company’s expense
and are encouraged to access and to consult with the
Company’s senior management independently.

The daily management, administration and operation
of the Group are delegated to the management. The
delegated functions and responsibilities are periodically
reviewed by the Board. Approval has to be obtained from
the Board prior to any significant transactions entered
into by the management.
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BOARD COMPOSITION

During the period from the Listing Date up to the date of
this annual report, the Board comprises four executive
Directors and three INEDs. The composition of the Board
is as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lam Keung (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Qing Haodong

Mr. Mai Lu

Ms. Cheng Yu Pik (appointed on 27 March 2020)

INEDs

Mr. Dan Kun Lei, Raymond
Mr. Wong Kwun Ho
Mr. Lai Man Shun

The biographical information of the Directors and
relationship between the Directors are set out in the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management”
on pages 20 to 31 of this annual report. There is no
other relationship including financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationships among the Board
members.

From the Listing Date up to the date of this annual
report, the Board at all times met the requirements of
the Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules relating
to the appointment of at least three independent non-
executive Directors, with at least one independent non-
executive Director possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The Company also complied with Rule 3.10A of the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of independent
non-executive Directors representing one-third of the
Board. Each of the independent non-executive Directors
has confirmed his or her independence during the
period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2019
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the
Company considers each of them to be independent.
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Responsibilities, Accountabilities and
Contributions of the Board and Management

The Board is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
businesses, strategic decisions and performance and
is collectively promoting the success of the Company
by directing and supervising its affairs. The Board
takes decisions objectively in the best interests of the
Company.

The Chairman leads the Board to formulate corporate
mission, visions and policies of the Group and to ensure
that all Directors are properly briefed on issues.

All Directors, including INEDs, have brought a wide
spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge
and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and
effective functioning.

All executive Directors actively involves in managing
the affairs of the Company with a good understanding
of the business, and play important roles in the daily
operations, whilst all INEDs participate in the Board
meetings and bring their independent views and
judgments on various issues.

INEDs provide the Group with a wide range of skills,
expertise and varied backgrounds and qualifications
through their regular attendance and active participation
at various committee meetings of the Company. They
bring independent opinion and judgment on the
strategy and policies to ensure that the interests of all
Shareholders are taken into account.

During the Year, each executive Director frequently met
and discussed with the management team in order to
maintain an effective feedback system and enable the
Group to react to changes or problems quickly and
efficiently. The Board shall review its arrangement on
delegation of responsibilities and authority regularly to
ensure that such delegations are appropriate in view
of the Company’s prevailing circumstances and that
appropriate reporting system is in place.

Each Director is free to seek advice from and has
access to the Company’s senior management team
independently.
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Board Proceedings

The Company adopts a practice to convene four (4)
Board meetings in a financial year with intervals of not
more than four (4) months. Notices of not less than 14
days is required to be given to all Directors and each
Director is invited to include matters in the agenda. The
company secretary of the Company (the “Company
Secretary”) assisted the Chairman in establishing the
meeting agenda. Detailed agenda and related meeting
materials were circulated to all Directors at least three
days before the date of the regular meetings.

Minutes were recorded in sufficient detail and draft
minutes have been circulated to all Board members
for comments. Finalised minutes were also sent to all
Directors for their records within reasonable time after
the meetings. All minutes were kept by the Company
Secretary and were open for inspection by Directors.

Immediately prior to the Listing, all Directors have
been given the relevant guideline materials regarding
the duties and responsibilities of being a Director, the
relevant laws and regulations applicable to the Directors
and duty of disclosure of interest.

Since the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual
report, the Company held two (2) Board meetings in
total. As the Company was listed on the Stock Exchange
on 16 July 2019, the Company did not hold any general
meetings during the Year. The attendance records of
each Director at the Board meetings (whether in person
or by means of electronic communication) held are set
out below:
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No. of Attendance/
No. of Meeting

Name of Director EEHZ Eligible to Attend
E'.H:‘.Jﬁ/Aé*ﬁﬂ:'nJﬁE’J
EE DN
Mr. Lam Keung (Chairman and Chief MRS E(FEFTHAZR) 2/2
Executive Officer)
Mr. Qing Haodong BPER LA 1/2
Mr. Mai Lu BRELE 2/2
Ms. Cheng Yu Pik EB Bt N/A
(appointed on 27 March 2020) (PR2020%F3H27THZ ) T iE A
Mr. Dan Kun Lei, Raymond HEELE 2/2
Mr. Wong Kwun Ho BERREE 2/2
Mr. Lai Man Shun REERE 2/2
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Directors’ training and development

All Directors should keep abreast of the responsibilities
as a director of the Company and of the conduct and
business activities of the Company. The Company
is responsible for arranging suitable training for its
Directors. The Company has arranged for Directors to
attend a training session which place emphasis on the
roles, functions and duties of a listed company director,
as well as the latest development regarding the Listing
Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements.
All the Directors had also participated in appropriate
continuous professional development activities by
reading materials regarding regulatory updates and
corporate governance matters.

The Articles of Association contains provisions for the
appointment, re-election and removal of Directors as
follows:

Appointment of Directors

Article 83(2) provides that subject to the Articles of
Association and the Law, the Company may by ordinary
resolution elect any person to be a Director either to fill
a casual vacancy on the Board, or as an addition to the
existing Board.

Article 83(3) provides that the Directors shall have the
power from time to time and at any time to appoint any
person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy on the
Board or as an addition to the existing Board.

Re-election of Directors

Article 83(3) also provides that any Director so appointed
by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office
until the first general meeting of the Company after
his appointment and be subject to re-election at such
meeting and any Director appointment by the Board as
an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only
until the next following annual general meeting of the
Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.

Pursuant to the article 84(1), at each annual general
meeting one-third (1/3) of the Directors for the time being
(or, if their number is not a multiple of three (3), the
number nearest to but not less than one-third (1/3)) shall
retire from office by rotation provided that every Director
shall be subject to retirement at an annual general
meeting at least once every three years.
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Article 84(2) provides that a retiring Director shall be
eligible for re-election and shall continue to act as a
Director throughout the meeting at which he retires and
any further Directors so to retire shall be those of the
other Directors subject to retirement by rotation who
have been longest in office since their last re-election
or appointment and so that as between persons who
became or were last re-elected Directors on the same
day those to retire shall (unless they otherwise agree
among themselves) be determined by lot.

Removal of Directors

Under article 83(5), the members may, at any general
meeting and by an ordinary resolution, remove a Director
at any time before the expiration of his/her period of
office notwithstanding anything to the contrary in these
articles or in any agreement between the Company and
such Director (but without prejudice to any claim from
damage under any such agreement).

Remuneration of Directors and Senior
Management

The Directors’ remuneration for the year ended 31
December 2019 are set out in note 9 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the
remuneration of the members of the senior management
(other than the Directors) whose particulars are
contained in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management” in this annual report for the year ended 31
December 2019 by band is set out below:
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Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the following
corporate governance duties:

1.

to develop and review the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and make
appropriate recommendations to the Board;

to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees and Directors; and

to review the Company’s compliance with the
code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

The chairman and chief executive officer of our
Company is Mr. Lam Keung. The reasons for the two
roles are being performed by the same individual are
set out in the paragraph headed “Corporate Governance
Practices” in this report.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three (3) Board committees,
namely the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee. All the
committees are empowered by the Board under the
respective terms of reference of the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee, which are posted on the respective
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company and
are available for inspection by the Shareholders upon
request made to the Company Secretary. The Board
committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises all the INEDs, namely
Mr. Dan Kun Lei, Raymond, Mr. Lai Man Shun and Mr.
Wong Kwun Ho. Mr. Wong Kwun Ho is the chairman of
the Audit Committee.

The Board considers that each Audit Committee
member has extensive commercial experience and the
Audit Committee has a suitable expertise in various
businesses, financial and legal sectors and that the
composition and establishment of the Audit Committee
complies with the requirements under rule 3.21 of the
Listing Rules.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are mainly (i)
to review and supervise the financial reporting process
and to oversee the audit process of the Group, (ii) to
oversee internal control procedures and corporate
governance of our Group, and (iii) to review risk
management and internal control systems of our Group.
It has the responsibilities and powers set forth in the
terms of reference.

The Audit Committee members shall meet at least twice
a year to consider the interim and final results prepared
by the Board.
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During the Year and up to the date of this annual report,
the Audit Committee held two (2) meetings to, among
others, review and supervise the financial reporting
process and review the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group and its audit-related
matters. It had, in conjunction with the management
of the Company, reviewed the Group’s audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2019 and the unaudited consolidated
financial statements for the six months ended 30 June
2019 and recommended the same to the Board for
their consideration and approval. The Audit Committee
was of the opinion that the preparation of such results
complied with the applicable accounting standards
and requirements and that adequate disclosures had
been made. The Audit Committee also carried out and
discharged its other duties as set out in the CG Code.

The attendance of each INED at the Audit Committee
meetings is as follows:
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No. of Attendance/
No. of Meetings

Members 8 Eligible to Attend
EHE SERHEN

ZE D

Mr. Wong Kwun Ho BEERLEE 2/2
Mr. Dan Kun Lei, Raymond HEELE 2/2
Mr. Lai Man Shun RBELE 2/2

The Audit Committee held 2 meetings on 30 August
2019 and 27 March 2020 to review and consider,
among other matters, the Group’s interim results for
the six months ended 30 June 2019 and the audited
consolidated results for the year ended 31 December
2019.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises two (2) INEDs,
namely Mr. Dan Kun Lei, Raymond and Mr. Lai Man Shun
and one (1) executive Director, namely Mr. Lam Keung.
Mr. Lai Man Shun is the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee.
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The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee
are mainly (i) to develop a transparent policy in
relation to remuneration; (ii) to review the remuneration
policy and the structure relating to all Directors and
senior management of the Group; (iii) to assess
performance of all Directors and review performance
based remunerations payable to Directors and
senior management of the Group; and (iv) to make
recommendations on other remuneration-related
arrangement, such as, housing allowance and bonuses
payable to Directors and senior management of the
Group.

During the Year and up to the date of this annual
report, the Remuneration Committee held two (2)
meeting for reviewing and recommending the Board
of the remuneration and other benefits payable by the
Company to the Directors and senior management.

The attendance of each member of the Remuneration
Committee meeting is as follows:
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FMEEEeMIEBERNGIELERE
ZEHEMBE: (VR AKEMEEERS
RE IR 2 % BN BUR M R ()RS A
BEEMRALRIENAEEEENS
MEIRE 2 B RBE N K (iv) Bt H 5 B
HAZBEBINEERZRRENASEE
ERSREBB LA IRHEREEZR -

RAFEMEERFRAY  FHEZES
BIIMRREH  UBHARBAREER
SREEBNMH MK EMmEN L mE
FeRfHEBEZ -

EFHNEEESRRENLFEREET:

No. of Attendance/
No. of Meeting
Eligible to Attend
EHE SEBHEDN

= =¥ Sk
EEDN

Mr. Lai Man Shun REEFELE
Mr. Dan Kun Lei, Raymond HEEXE
Mr. Lam Keung o8 5 A

The Remuneration Committee held 2 meetings on 30
August 2019 and 27 March 2020 respectively and
considered certain remuneration-related matters of the
Directors and senior management.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises two (2) INEDs,
namely Mr. Lai Man Shun and Mr. Wong Kwun Ho and
one (1) executive Director, namely Mr. Lam Keung
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer). Mr. Lam Keung
is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.
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The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are
(i) to review the structure, size and composition of the
Board on a regular basis; (ii) to make recommendations
to our Board relating to the appointment, re-appointment;
(iii) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become
members of the Board; and (iv) to assess the
independence of our INEDs.

The Board has adopted the Board diversity policy
(the “Board Diversity Policy”) and the Nomination
Committee shall monitor the implementation of the
Board Diversity Policy and review the progress of its
measurable objectives from time to time.

A summary of the Board Diversity Policy, together with
the implementation are disclosed as below.

The Board Diversity Policy aims to set out the
approach to achieve and maintain diversity on the
Board in order to strengthen the performance of the
Board, promote effective decision-making and better
corporate governance and monitoring. To achieve a
sustainable and balanced development, the Company
encourages increasing diversity at the Board level as
an essential element in supporting the attainment of its
strategic objectives and its sustainable development.
In designing an appropriate composition of the Board,
the Board diversity has been considered from a number
of perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, culture and educational background, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All
Directors appointment will be based on applicable merits
and candidates will be considered against objective
criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on
the Board.

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report,
the Nomination Committee held one (1) meeting for,
among other matters, reviewing the structure, size and
composition of the Board, assessing the independence
of INEDs and making recommendation to the Board on
the appointment or re-appointment of Directors.
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The attendance of each member of the Nomination
Committee meeting during the Year is as follows:

REZESEZSKERNEKEENHFEX
LN

No. of Attendance/
No. of Meeting

Members 8 Eligible to Attend
EHE SEBEHBEN

EE DN

Mr. Lam Keung o8 o A 11
Mr. Lai Man Shun REELEE 11
Mr. Wong Kwun Ho BERREE 1/1

The Nomination Committee held a meeting on 27 March
2020 and recommended the appointment of Ms Cheng
Yu Pik as an executive Director and re-appointment
of all the retiring Directors at the forthcoming annual
general meeting after assessing their contribution and
performance based on the nomination policy of the
Company (the “Nomination Policy”).

Nomination Policy

Where vacancies on the Board exist, the Nomination
Committee evaluates skills, knowledge and experience
required by the Board, and identifies if there are any
special requirements for the vacancy. The Nomination
Committee identifies appropriate candidates and
convenes Nomination Committee meeting to discuss
and vote in respect of the nominated Directors, and
recommends candidates for Directors to the Board.

The Nomination Committee considers candidates with
individual skills, experience and professional knowledge
that can best assist and facilitate the effectiveness of the
Board. The Nomination Committee takes the policy on
Board diversity of the Company into consideration when
it considers the balance of composition of the Board as a
whole.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY
IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for
preparing the consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2019.

The statement of the independent auditor of the
Company about their reporting responsibilities and
opinion on the financial statements is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 84 to 90 of this
annual report.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S
REMUNERATION

An analysis of the remuneration paid/payable to the
independent auditor of the Company, Moore Hong Kong,
in respect of audit services and other services for the
year ended 31 December 2019 is set out below:
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for
maintaining an adequate and effective risk management
and internal control systems to safeguard the interest
of the Company and the Shareholders and through the
Audit Committee, reviewing the effectiveness of such
systems on an annual basis.

Procedures have been set up for, inter alia, identifying,
analysing, categorizing, mitigating and monitoring
significant risks, and safeguarding assets against
unauthorized use or disposition, maintaining proper
accounting records and ensuring reliability of financial
information, ensuring compliance with relevant legislation
and regulations and protecting the interests of the
Shareholders. Such systems are designed to manage,
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and aims to provide a reasonable,
as opposed to an absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The Company does not have an internal audit
department. The Board will set up an internal audit
function in light of the size and nature of the Group’s
business. The need for an internal audit function will be
reviewed from time to time. Nevertheless, for the Year,
the Board has conducted a review of, and is satisfied
with, the effectiveness of the internal control systems
of the Group. The Board considers that the Group’s
risk management and internal control are adequate
and effective. The Board expects that a review of the
risk management and internal control systems will be
performed annually.

COMPANY SECRETARY

In compliance with Rule 3.28 of the Listing Rules, the
Company Secretary is a full time employee and has
the day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s affairs.
She is responsible for advising the Board on corporate
governance matters. For the year under review, the
Company Secretary confirmed that she has taken no
less than 15 hours of relevant professional training in
accordance with the requirement under Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules.
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DISCLOSURE OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group acknowledges its responsibilities under the
SFO, Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong and the
Listing Rules and the overriding principle that inside
information should be announced immediately when it is
the subject of a decision. The procedures and internal
controls for the handling and dissemination of inside
information are as follows:

e the Group conducts its affairs with close regard to
the disclosure requirement under the Listing Rules
as well as the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside
Information” published by the Securities and Futures
Commission of Hong Kong in June 2012;

e the Group has implemented and disclosed its policy
on fair disclosure by pursuing broad, non-exclusive
distribution of information to the public through
channels such as financial reporting, public
announcements and its website;

o the Group has strictly prohibited unauthorized use
of confidential or inside information; and

e the Group has established and implemented
procedures for responding to external enquiries
about the Group’s affairs, so that only the executive
Directors, Company Secretary and investor relations
officers are authorized to communicate with parties
outside the Group.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company may distribute dividends by way of
cash or by other means that the Company consider
appropriate. Any proposed distribution of dividends
shall be determined by the Board and will be subject to
Shareholders’ approval. In deciding whether to propose
any dividend payout and/or determining the amount of
any dividend to be paid, the Board will take into account,
amongst other matters:

(a) the Group’'s actual and expected financial
performance;

(b) interests of shareholders of the Company;
(c) retained earnings and distributable reserves of the

Company and each of the other members of the
Group;
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(d) the level of the Group’s debts to equity ratio, return
on equity and financial covenants to which the
Group is subject;

(e) possible effects on the Group’s creditworthiness;

(f) any restrictions on payment of dividends that may
be imposed by the Group’s lenders;

(g) the Group’s expected working capital requirements
and future expansion plans;

(h) liquidity position of the Group and any future
commitments at the time of declaration of dividend;

(i) taxation considerations;
(j) statutory and regulatory restrictions;
(k) general business conditions and strategies;

() general economic conditions, business cycle of
the Group’s business and other internal or external
factors that may have an impact on the business or
financial performance and position of the Company;
and

(m) other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

The declaration and payment of dividends shall be
subject to all applicable laws and regulations including
but not limited to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the memorandum
and articles of association of the Company (the
‘“Memorandum and Articles”).

The Company will review its dividend policy from time
to time and reserves the right in its sole and absolute
discretion to update, amend and/or modify the dividend
policy at any time.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantially separate
issue at general meetings, including the election of
individual directors. All resolutions put forward at general
meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing
Rules and poll results will be posted on the respective
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company after
each general meeting.

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting by
Shareholders

Pursuant to article 58, any one or more Shareholders
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or Company Secretary, to require
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

There are no provisions in the Articles of Association
or the Cayman Islands Companies Law for the
Shareholders to move new resolutions at general
meetings. Shareholders who wish to move a resolution
may request the Company to convene a general meeting
in accordance with the procedures set out in the
preceding paragraph.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board,
Shareholders may send written enquiries to the
Company. The Company will not normally deal with
verbal or anonymous enquiries.

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as
mentioned above to the following:

Contact Details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as
mentioned above to the following:

Address: Unit A, 13/F, Block 1, Leader Industrial Centre,
188-202 Texaco Road, Tsuen Wan, N.T., Hong Kong
(For the attention of the Investor Relations Department)
Fax: + 852 2391 2422

Email: ir@conteltechnology.com
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For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholders must deposit
and send the original duly signed written requisition,
notice or statement, or enquiry (as the case may be) to
the above address and provide their full name, contact
details and identification in order to give effect thereto.
Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required
by law.

COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS/
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication
with Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor
relations and investor understanding of the Company’s
business performance and strategies. The Company
endeavors to maintain an on-going dialogue with the
Shareholders and in particular, through annual general
meetings and other general meetings. At the annual
general meeting, Chairman and chairman of the Board
committees (or their delegates as appropriate) are
available to meet the Shareholders and answer their
enquiries.

The Company maintains a website at
www.conteltechnology.com as a communication platform
with the Shareholders and investors, where the financial
information and other relevant information of the Company
are available for public access.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year, the Company has not made any
changes to its Memorandum and Articles. An up to date
version of the Memorandum and Articles is available on
the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ABOUT THE REPORT

Contel Technology Company Limited (the “Company”
together with its subsidiaries, hereinafter referred
to as the “Group” or “We”) is pleased to present
the 2019 Environmental, Social and Governance
Report (the “Report”) to provide an overview of the
Group’s management of significant issues affecting
the operations, including environmental, social and
governance (“ESG”) issues.

Reporting Period

The Report illustrates the policies and performance
regarding the environmental and social aspects from
1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019 (the “Reporting
Period”).

Reporting Basis

The Report is prepared in accordance with the “‘comply
or explain” provisions of the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG Reporting
Guide”) contained in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and on the basis
of the four reporting principles — materiality, quantitative,
balance and consistency.

The information contained herein is sourced from
official documents and statistics of the Group, as well
as the combined control, management and operations
information provided by the subsidiaries in accordance
with the Group’s relevant policies. The Report is
prepared and published in both Chinese and English. In
the event of contradiction or inconsistency, the English
version shall prevail.

Stakeholders’ Feedback

The Group welcomes stakeholders’ feedback on our
ESG approach and performance. If you have any
advice or suggestions, please contact us via email at
ir@conteltechnology.com.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RIE - HERELGRE

SCOPE

The Board believes that a sound ESG is vital for
continued sustainability and development of the Group’s
operation. The Board has taken overall responsibility for
the Group’s ESG strategy and reporting and has a strong
commitment to environmental protection with the mission
to promote the environmental culture among our staff to
maintain a sustainable development for the Group.

The sites of operations refer to the warehouse and office
in Hong Kong and the office in Shenzhen, Shanghai
and Chengdu. They are operated by the subsidiaries
of the Group, namely Flyring Electronics Limited, IH
Technology Limited, Shenzhen IH Technology Co.,
Ltd.* (&Y T & 5 1= 6l & s & R 2 &), Shanghai IH
Microelectronics Technology Co., Ltd.* (E/BEEME
TR AR AR and Chengdu Flyring Electronics Co.,
Ltd* (KERERETFERAA).

Unless otherwise specified, the environmental data
covers the Group’s operation in Hong Kong and the
PRC.

A. ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS

Environmental sustainability is a key focus of
the Group’s corporate social responsibility. We
implement policies and practices that help conserve
resources, improve energy efficiency and raise
environmental awareness among our staff. We are
committed to building an environmentally-friendly
corporation that pays close attention to conserving
the Earth’s natural resources. We strive to minimize
our environmental impacts attributable to its
operations while ensuring high standards in our
operational efficiency and service quality.

A1. Emissions

Since the business activities covered by this Report
mainly involve office operations, there was no
emission that would have significant environmental
impacts other than greenhouse gases produced
indirectly in the course of electricity consumption.

* The English name is translated for identification purpose only.
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RIE - HERELGRE

The Group is committed to the following: AEBRAORUATERE:

e Minimise emissions of air pollutants and e BRERILTERSTAEAVMEESR
greenhouse gases; B ) HE AR

e Adopt internationally recognised standards or e HAHHBMEBEEHZEEBETRMAEE
equivalent local standards in assessing and ﬁﬁ?—i?ﬁﬁﬂ(ﬁﬁ ® A IW N RHIR
disclosing the emissions of greenhouse gases ERFAF E’]i’@ET%‘%
in its operations;

e Prevent and minimize hazardous and e WIEMBALBEEEEYMESRE
non-hazardous waste; and 2Rk

e Properly discharge hazardous and s WEFBHEBHELANEEE
non-hazardous waste produced in its EMNEZEZREY -

operations.

As the Group’s business activities mainly involve
office operations with no material manufacturing
of products, there are no significant environmental

laws and regulations that have a significant impact SEELBRETE -

on the Group.

Greenhouse Gas (“GHG”) Emissions

To control the greenhouse gas emissions, the BIEHNEE REBABER
Group has adopted policies on efficient use of
energy as described in the section headed “Use
of Resources” below and will continue to assess, fh - B AEEER
record and disclose its greenhouse gas emissions

HRAEENEE RIS RHEA
EEEMIEE K 2 B E ani&E(F
A Uk I £ B KR (ROE 8 N R B 8 AR

i 2= e A2 (R = R ])

and other environmental data on a yearly basis. The

performance indicators are as follows:

REBEK
RTXIERER|—&FrdAREX
AR BUR - WM E T FRY
f = R 88 BF I K
HMRBHIE - @MIEFRAT

GHG Emissions! Unit 2019
im = 3 88 HE R E5 i 20194
Scope 12 tonnes of CO,-equivalent (“CO,e”") -
& [F —2 “afbixEE - AWEET

Scope 28 tonnes of COZe 108.7
& E s —E bREE - AW

Total GHG Emissions tonnes of CO,e 108.7
mERBETENRE —SffblixEE - DAMEET

GHG Emissions Intensity Unit 2019
mERBHRENEE EE i 20194
Per square feet of floor area (scope 2) tonnes of CO,e/ft? 0.005
BYFREEMBE(HED) —EEmES A, FAR

Per employee (scope 2) tonnes of CO,e/employee 0.9

BEB(HE D)

—akimRES A/ BB

BEREMZERRAT

o010 ER 13
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Non-hazardous solid wastes, mainly the domestic
and commercial wastes, generated in our offices
and warehouses during our operations in the
Reporting Period were amounted to about 4.38
tonnes.

During the Reporting Period, the Group took
necessary steps to monitor and manage the
environmental effect of the operations. The Group
aims to reduce the energy consumption and
carbon emissions and seeks less harmful ways
to the environment in the operations. Our internal
policies are to comply all the relevant laws and
regulations applicable to our operations in different
jurisdictions.

The greenhouse gas emissions is estimated with reference to,
2018 Sustainability Report issued by China Light and Power
Co. Ltd. and 2017 Regional Power Grid Average CO. Emission
Factors in China guideline published by the Ministry of Ecology
and Environment of the People’s Republic of China.

Scope 1. The direct emission from the business operations
owned or controlled by the Group

Scope 2: The “indirect energy” emissions from the internal
purchased electricity consumption by the Group
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Wastes

The wastes generated from sites of operations are
generally domestic wastes, office paper, paper
board and toner. We have engaged with recycling
companies to recycle the wastes. The details of the
wastes generated are as follows:

RIE - HERELGRE

FE ¥

LEWHELNEYBEBTERERE
W MAERMA - RIREIRE o B
ZHERIW AR ARG Y REY - FTE &8
BEYFHBWT

Wastes” Unit 2019
& 7 i 20194
Office Paper tonnes 1.4
PN E K 7

To reduce paper consumption, we encourage our
employees to:

e Reuse envelopes and folders for sending
internal documents and letters;

e Use double side printing;
e  Adopt electronic filing; and

e Arrange conference call or video conference
instead of face-to-face meetings.

The Group will continuously monitor the greenhouse
gas emissions and waste production to see if any
detailed measures can be formulated in the future
for more effective management of emissions.

AR AOHERERE . RS EES:

o BERAFNHMEHREREH
S

o EEEITED:

e HABEFHEEIR K

. THEFEEALRMERER
EHES % -

AEERBEERAERBHMRLK
BUEREYMIER - AEEAEZEART
i E (E 0] BB R E IR HE ) & A
5 i e

BEEEMEERAF 2019F FH
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A2. Use of Resources A2. EiR{ER

The Group is well aware that reasonable use of AEEFACEEAERYURSE

resources is essential to sustainable development. EREWUEEZE - XEERNIRAUATH

The Group is committed to the following: 5 ¢

e Adopt the principles of reduce, reuse and e FITHL -BINAMEKHR
recycle to increase the consumption efficiency A R HEBEERNER -
of energy, paper, water, high-quality plastic Mok -k BE B AEEE
stretch film (packaging materials) and other EMRLD) FEAME R EEFERUE
resources in its business operations; and &

e Nurture the culture of environmental protection s EARKBAEERAXE  E®
within the Group to increase the environmental BEINERRES

awareness of employees.

The Group seeks to encourage its employees to AEEBNEEEIUFERNENA
adopt efficiency measures in the use of lighting, NERABHA B K BREREE
computer, water, paper and packaging materials. MR o

Energy Management REREE

The major energy source is electricity. The Group RENETERREEESN - AKEBEE
has implemented various measures to mitigate TEZEERAREEMBERRA - =
the consumption regarding the use of lighting, air FAREBRKABER

conditioner and computer.
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Lighting

Switch on the lighting only when the meeting room
is occupied. Switch off the lighting upon leaving the
meeting room; and

e  Switch off unnecessary lighting in public areas
(such as reception area, pantry, lavatory and
corridors) during less busy hours (such as
lunch-time and non-business hours).

Air conditioner:

° Maintain room temperature at 25 degrees
Celsius when using air conditioners during
summer

e  Switch off unnecessary air-conditioners during
less busy hours (such as lunch-time and
non-business hours); and

e  Switch on the air-conditioner only when the
meeting room is occupied. Switch off the
air-conditioner upon leaving the meeting room.

Computer:

e Adjust the computer setting to activate the
standby or hibernation mode of computers
so that the display monitor will switch off
automatically or enter energy saving mode
when left idle for a prescribed period of time;

e  Adjust the brightness of the display monitor;
and

e  Switch off computers (including the display
monitor) after use.

RIE - HERELGRE

iR e

&y 2%
B %

e

i

EREEFERFAFHRMEA - B
AERREERA M

ERATHMNER (T ERE
MIELEFRE) B E A KRS (1
BERER - 3UKME - XFEFER)
Y FE 4 B BR8P

EEXERAEZRHEBENRE
MEBREEK25E

782 22 0 A 5 0 (40 °F 8% B B
MELEEBRME TR ENE
Bk

i3

ZEREEERRESIRAME
W oHMRERERBEZA -

'R

HEERREAMBERNE
*»i%jZWEE%'ZT FERRNFEHE
—BRIEEEREZEBEMAIEA
EHRERE R
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A3.

The details of energy consumption are as follows:

REFHRFRBNOT

Use of resources Unit 2019 (approximately)
ERER B8 {i 20194 (#1 &9)
Electricity kWh 142,279.0
) TR

Electricity intensity kWh/ft2 6.54
EHEE FF 7 RT R

The main source for energy consumption was still REEHE - g2 RBERNEZRIRD

the purchased electricity during the Reporting
Period. The electricity consumption was higher
during summer time (June to September). It was
possibly caused by the increase in the uses of air
conditioners.

Water Resource

Water consumption refers to the water usage in
washroom and pantry. The water supply is provided
by the third party and managed by the property
management company. Therefore, there is no issue
in sourcing water. The Group has implemented
initiatives to control water consumption as follows:

e  Turn off the water tap promptly after use.

ARINBEN - BEF(RAZENAW
REERR RAWUEES=RAERAE
RITFTER o

KER
FEKEREFERZKERAK - 4#

IKEE=ZTTRMH  AHPEEERT
EIE - At - AR B E KRB KHRE
B o AEBEHITUA T ERIFE KNS
i

o MIRBERIRAIR/KEESE o

Use of resources Unit 2019 (approximately)
ERER ES {i 20194 (#E 49)
Water Cubic meter 613.0
7K 3K

Water intensity Cubic meter/ft? 0.03
KEE RS F K

The Environment and Natural Resources A3. IRIERKAREIR

Due to the nature of the Group’s business, its daily
business operations posed no significant adverse
impact on the environment directly. However, the
indirect greenhouse gas emissions would aggravate
the phenomenon of global warming. The Group
strives to reduce the indirect impact caused
by greenhouse gas emissions through various
measures mentioned in the sections “Emissions”
and “Use of resources”.
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The Group endeavors to comply with the applicable
environmental laws and regulations and has
adopted effective measures to reduce wastage.
Our employees are fully aware that it is important
for the operation of the Group to minimize the
impact on the environment and natural resources.
Our management also closely monitors the utilities
consumption in different offices and encourages
employees to work together to reduce utilities
consumption.

SOCIAL ASPECTS

The Group abided by all laws and regulations
adopted in all sites of operations and has
formulated the Employment and Labour Practices
Policy Statement. The aim of the Employment
and Labour Practices Policy Statement is to
provide employees with a workplace that is free
of discrimination and harassment and emphasises
diversity, health and safety.

Employment and Labour Practices
Employment

Employees are our valuable assets. We have
developed a written staff manual to govern the
discipline, working hours, leaves and other benefits
of our employees, in accordance with the relevant
laws and regulations.

To attract, motivate and retain experience staffs,
we reviewed their pay packages annually with
prevailing market conditions. Our full-time
employees are entitled to maternity, paternity,
compassionate leaves, medical insurance,
performance related bonus and mandatory
provident fund.

The Group has adopted a share option scheme
as an incentive to eligible employees. Social
and recreational activities are arranged for the
employees in achieving work-life balance. We
apply equal opportunity and non-discrimination in
recruitment, promotion and all other aspects of our
employment practices.

B1.

RIE - HERELGRE
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B2.

There were no non-compliance cases noted in
relation to health and safety laws and regulations
during the Reporting Period.

As at 31 December 2019, the total number and
distribution of employees within the Group are as
follows:

RBEEETER S ARERT S
BEAEREROER -

R2019F12 8310 - AEEE RS
BWEEDHBRAOT

2019 2018

Number of employee EE A 20194 20184F
By Gender ZMHRE o

Male S 62 54

Female 7% 54 45
By Age Group EFERAERE D

Below 30 30 AT 17 14

30 to 50 30E505% 92 78

Over 50 505% A £ 7 7
By Region %= & 5o

PRC ey 89 76

Hong Kong BE 27 23
Health and Safety B2. BFFEHZ 2

We are committed to providing and maintaining
a safe, healthy, and hygienic workplace for all
employees. The Group did not encounter any lost
days caused by injury. Air purifiers were placed
in work place to improve air circulation. There
were no non-compliance cases noted in relation to
health and safety laws and regulations during the
Reporting Period.
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B3. Development and Training

We acknowledge the importance of training for
the development of our employees as well as our
Group. We encourage and support our employees
in personal and professional training, through
sponsoring training programmes, seminars,
workshops and conferences, peer learning and
on-the-job coaching, as well as reimbursement
for external training courses to enhance their
competencies in performing their jobs effectively
and efficiently. Total training hours offered in 2019
was 877 hours, average 7.6 hours per trained
employees. We believe this is a mutually beneficial
practice for achieving both personal and corporate
goals as a whole.

As at 31 December 2019, the total training hours
received by employees within the Group are as

RIE - HERELGRE

B3. ¥ & & il

BMAAEIIEEENEAER A
EREEEZ - BAMEBHLIEES
EITREAREEEI - BEEHEI
e e TEHEHRE - RE
ERMERE - AR EBREREHE
SNEREEFIGRAE - MR FHEBRES -
EREM EEBR KSR MITTNHE -
2019F NIZ M B JI R B R 877/
B FHEERXIEEA76/E - B
4 r HWEREBIRBEAM S EEE
BIZEREEENBHOE -

MR2019F 128310 - AEFE RS
BEXHEIBRENT

follows:
Number of Training Hours Unit Amount
Completed by Employees {& & 5 B Y 3% 5il BF 2 E5 i B 8
Average hours of training per &% & 8 B F 15 15 3| i £
employee and percentage KX IEE B D (%)
(%) of employees who
received training
By Gender EZMHRE o
Male B hour /) B 8
Female g hour /)N s 7
By Employee Category EZEBEANE H
Senior management = AR E R hour /)N B 25
Middle management HREIRE hour /)N BF 18
Junior employees % EE hour /)N B 4

BEEEMEERAF 2019F FH
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B4.

B5.

B6.

Labour Standards

The Group considers child and forced labour
unacceptable and ought to be prevented. The
Group has instituted a comprehensive screening
and recruiting process to prohibit the use of child
labour. Employee work schedules are set up fairly to
keep within standard working hours. All employees
are provided with appropriate leave entitlements
including annual leave, sick leave, marriage leave,
maternity leave, paternity leave and compassionate
leave etc. There were no non-compliance cases
noted in relation to labour standards laws and
regulations during the Reporting Period.

Supply Chain Management

Relationship is the fundamentals of business. Sound
supply chain management ensures the Group to
sustain its business operations and development.
We have maintained strong relationships with our
suppliers to meet our customer’'s needs in an
effective and efficient manner. When selecting
suppliers, the Group takes factors into account
such as quality of products and functionality, price,
reliability and anticipated market acceptance.
The Group expects suppliers to observe the
environmental, social, health and safety and
governance considerations in their operations.

Product Responsibility

The Group recognizes good customer service
is the key to the success and sustainability of a
corporation. Suppliers provide warranty on the
products they supply to the Group for distribution of
electronic components. Suppliers are responsible
for providing or procuring the provision of
in-warranty service to the end customers.
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B8.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Group also adopts the following quality control
policies on the products to be sold:

— a series of inspections upon the receipt of
the products in our warehouse regarding,
among others, their appearance, packaging,
specification and brand logo, etc. on a
sampling basis; and

— If any defects are identified, the relevant
product will be returned to the supplier for
replacement.

During the Reporting Period, we have not received
any cases of infringement of intellectual property
rights. We are also not aware of any suspected
cases of infringement of intellectual property rights
of the products that we were distributed in 2019.

The Group is also committed to abide by the
Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance. Personal data
shall be highly protected. Employees are committed
not to disclose confidential information, including
information related to suppliers and customers
whether orally or in writing or in any other media
which are not publicly known.

Anti-Corruption

Both the Group and its business partners are
committed to upholding the highest ethics
standards. Parties involved in business interaction
shall prohibit each and every form of corruption,
extortion, bribery, fraud, money laundering and
embezzlement. The Group advocates the standards
of fair transaction, advertising and competition and
puts in place a confidentiality mechanism to protect
the identity of suppliers and whistleblowers. No
suspected enquiries or cases involving fraud were
reported during 2019.

Community Investment

We encourage our employees to participate in
social and community events and to volunteer for
good causes. We will continue to shoulder the
social responsibility by caring the community,
employees and the environment in order to build a
cohesive society.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
18 3L # BB R &

K| MOORE

To the Shareholders of Contel Technology Company
Limited
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Contel Technology Company Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) set out on pages 91 to 190, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2019, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2019, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Qur responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit
of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTER

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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35 3L #% B4 B 4R

KEY AUDIT MATTER (continued)

Key audit matter

HEEREIR

FAREEEIE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EFETEZRNINAEEREEZEIR

Impairment assessment of trade receivables

E 55 fE i 5 B 8 AF 18

Refer to the notes 3(g), 3(h), 4, 18 and 31 to the consolidated financial statements

LBEEHEHRERME3(Q) * 3(h) * 4 ~ 18 %31

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had trade
receivables with gross carrying amounts of
approximately US$24,487,000. The Group had
recognised net expected credit loss (“ECL’) on
trade receivables of approximately US$111,000
to the consolidated profit or loss during the year
ended 31 December 2019.
R2019%12A31R: E 5B FRLAEEERN
24,487,000 T E 5 E W FIE - BELE 2019512
ABIEFE X EBEEENEIHEKFIBERE
HEEER(RBEEEE) FRReER0
111,000 7T °

The ECL assessment on trade receivables is
considered to be a matter of most significance
as it requires the application of significant
judgement and use of subjective assumptions
by the Group’s management. The management
of the Group believed that the methodologies
and inputs used in estimating ECL are in
accordance with the applicable accounting
standard. These models and assumptions
relate to the future macroeconomic conditions
and debtors’ creditworthiness. The Group
has adopted judgement, assumptions and
estimation techniques in order to measure ECL
according to the requirements of accounting
standards such as definition of credit impaired
financial asset, parameters for measuring ECL
and forward-looking information.

EORWAREBEZEBEEBERFLBEAREX
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Our procedures in relation to address the matter
included:
BPEEZEERRDINIEF R

Evaluating the methodologies, inputs and
assumptions used by the Group in calculating
the ECL, by reference to externally available
economic data;
DEINNAESKLBEE  Fh EEEFAERE
HEEBRMABZ A  BERRR:

Obtaining an ageing analysis of the trade
receivables from the management of the
Group and testing the accuracy of ageing of
trade receivables at the reporting date to the
underlying invoices on a sample basis;

B SEEBEERERGESIRWNRIEZ RS
- WHEORF B 5 R RIE R HE BB 2 iR
e B2 AE R B R Ay R

Challenging the management’s assessment
of the recoverability of long outstanding and
overdue trade receivables;
BEREEEHRAREERBHESEKK
T8 ) A] dg (O 14 AT A

Selecting samples considering the
management’'s assessment of the latest
financial conditions of the debtors, based on
historical experience and observable external
data; and

RIBBEL R LABERINBEIE - BEEAF
HEREHEBRAROMB AR RNTME: &

Assessing the adequacy of the ECL recorded
by reviewing subsequent settlements after the
year end any correspondence with customers
about expected settlement dates.

A EREHNFRENBRERAEARRER
EREHEEBHNEMEREHENTEME
EEEREAARAR -



INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATION FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT
THEREON

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises all the
information in the Company’s 2019 annual report other
than consolidated financial statements and our auditors’
report thereon.

Qur opinion on the consolidated financial statements
does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the audit committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
I8 3L 2 BT 3R &

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report
that includes our opinion, solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs,
we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditors’
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditors’ report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee of the
Company regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B 3L % BT 3R &
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
I8 3L 2 BT 3R &

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

We also provide the audit committee of the Company
with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the audit
committee of the Company, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Moore Stephens CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hung, Wan Fong Joanne
Practising Certificate Number: P05419

Hong Kong, 27 March 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GERnRkEM2EKRRR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # Z20194F 12531 H I F /&

2019 2018
20194 20184
Notes uss’o0oo US$'000
B &F F % T S
Revenue PN 6 101,461 67,279
Cost of sales 8 & B AN (89,987) (57,874)
Gross profit EH 11,474 9,405
Other income H b g A 6 161 89
Selling and distribution expenses & & 7 45l X (1,726) (1,546)
General and administrative — M RATHR A XX
expenses (2,502) (1,900)
Provision for allowance for EoRKFKENEREER
expected credit loss EiBEBIR
on trade receivables 18 (111) (91)
Listing expenses WX (2,709) (1,543)
Finance costs M5 E A 7 (1,027) (864)
Profit before income tax Kt B el 8 3,560 3,550
Income tax expense FriEBiAx 10 (1,047) (939)
Profit for the year attributable to XA T B AL ER
owners of the Company F1 34 2,513 2,611
Other comprehensive income  Ht 2 EIk =&
Item that may be reclassified R A& B & il 2 37 7 28 2
subsequently to profit or loss: EamaEE -
Exchange differences arising on 8 /85N ¥ 75 BT E £ &
translating foreign operations [E 5 =45 (21) (65)
Other comprehensive income SERAXATHEHFAENS
for the year attributable to the  H fth 2 & W 2%
owners of the Company (21) (65)
Total comprehensive income FREXATHEBAREL
for the year attributable to EHEERE
owners of the Company 2,492 2,546
HK cents HK cents
A B
Earnings per share attributable A2 S #HH A B
to owners of the Company BREN
Basic and diluted ERKREE 11 2.81 3.41

BEEEMEERARF 2019F F5H
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
GEMBRRR

As at 31 December 2019 20194 12431 H

2019 2018
20194 20184F
Notes Us$’000 US$'000
oA FEIT FET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREBRE
Non-current assets ERHEE
Property, plant and equipment M- BEREZE 13 809 113
Intangible assets BREEE 14 89 161
Goodwill EES 15 261 264
Life insurance policy deposits ASRERZS 16 1,403 873
2,562 1,411
Current assets RENEE
Inventories 58 17 12,909 6,547
Trade and bills receivables BRI RIE R
JE I = & 18 25,696 19,007
Prepayments, deposits and other FENFIE * & & K
receivables Hth fE W 5k 18 19 9,794 3,394
Amounts due from related parties & Uz 8 Bt 75 ;I8 28(b) 12 8
Pledged bank deposits ERFRTFER 20 1,229 300
Cash and cash equivalents BeRReEEY 20 6,263 2,874
55,903 32,130
Current liabilities mENE
Trade and bills payables BoEMNRBRENEERE 21 23,211 16,887
Accruals, receipts in advance FEstER - BRRE R
and other payables H fth fE S BB 22 2,050 1,398
Lease liabilities HEAE 23 382 -
Bank borrowings |ITERX 24 1,401 1,310
Tax payable JE AR B 3K 1,353 434
28,397 20,029
Net current assets REBEEFE 27,506 12,101
Total assets less current EEGERRDHER
liabilities 30,068 13,512
Non-current liabilities ERHERE
Lease liabilities HEaE 23 279 -
Net assets EEFE 29,789 13,512
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
GEMBRRE

As at 31 December 2019 20194 12431 H

2019 2018
20194 20184
Notes US$’000 US$'000
oA FEIT FET
EQUITY i

Share capital % 25 25 1,032 =
Reserves (R 26 28,757 13,512
Total equity EaEE 29,789 13,512

2 ltem with value below US$1,000 * E{E K 1,000 T8 HEE

The consolidated financial statements on pages 91 to 97
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 27 March 2020 and are signed on its behalf

by:

Mr. Lam Keung

FNEI7TEHRM 4 A B K 2020 3 A
THEESSe M ERBETZELHAUATA

ITREREFEEE:

Mr. Qing Haodong

SR &
Director

EFE

BEEEMEERARF 2019F F5H
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

mEHEmBER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z20194F 12 31 H 1 F /&

Equity wholly-attributable to owners of the Company

BASMAARERDRR
Statutory
Share Share Other Merger  surplus Translation  Retained
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve profits Total
EERS
k% RiHRE RURE AHEE  AEE BRERE REHA it
USS000  USS000  USS000  USS000  US$000 - USS000 - USS000 - US$000
f#r FEr  FEr  TEn  TEr FEr FErT FER
(Note 25)  (Note 26) ~ (Note 26)  (Note 26)  (Note 26)  (Note 26)
(Wi25)  (Witze)  (Wa2s)  (Wit26)  (Wit26)  (W#26)
At 1 January 2018 R2018%1R18 — 10,076 (7,021) 436 2 7,448 10,966
Profit for the year ERHE — - - - — 2611 2611
Exchange differences REBNEBMELNE
arising on tranglating RER
foreign operations — — — — — (65) — (65)
Total comprehensive ERZENREE
income
for the year — — — — — (65) 2,611 2,546
Appropriation to statutory  RREERBAES
surplus reserve = = = = 13 = (13) =
At 31 December 2018 R2018%12F 318 =" = 10,076 (7,021) 449 (38) 10,046 13,512
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GEEREER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & 220194 12 31 H 1F F /&

Equity wholly-attributable to owners of the Company

BASMAARERDRR
Statutory
Share Share Other Merger  surplus Translation  Retained
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve profits Total
EERS
R+ RbEE HtRE GHEE  ARE  BERF REWE it
USS000  USS000  USS000  USS000  US$000 - USS000 - USS000 - US$000
f#r FEr  FEr  TEn  TEr FEr FErT FER
(Note 25)  (Note 26) ~ (Note 26)  (Note 26)  (Note 26)  (Note 26)
(Wi25)  (Witze)  (Wa2s)  (Wit26)  (Wit26)  (W#26)
At 31 December 2018 20185124318 -~ - 10,076 (7.021) 449 (38) 10,046 13,512
Impact on initial application &R ER(BANBHEE
of Hong Kong Financial ~ BI)&16% %2
Reporting Standard 16 (#/#23))
(Note 213)) - - — — — - (40) (40)
Adjusted balance 19F1A1BEAR LR
at 1 January 2019 —* - 10,076 (7021) 449 (38) 10,006 13,472
Profit for the year ERHE - - - - - - 2,513 2,513
Exchange differences REBNEBHEEN
arising on translating EAZS
foreign operations - - - - - (21) - (21)
Total comprehensive ENZENRLEE
income
for the year - - - - - (21) 2,513 2,492
Issuance of shares by BRRNLREER:
initial public offering &3 (Hrit2eiiy)
(Note 25(ii)) 258 13,567 - - - - - 13,825
Capitalisation issue ER B 2290)
(Note 25(i) m (774) - - - - - -
Appropriation to statutory  REVET BHAKSE
surplus reserve - - - - 133 - (133) -
At 31 December 2019 R2019F12A318 1,032 12,793 10,076 (7.021) 582 (59) 12,386 29,789
2 ltems with value below US$1,000 . BE{X701,000% T M I B

BEEMBERAF 2019F F#H
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
GAEEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # 220194 1231 H I F &

2019 2018
20194 20184
Notes uss’o0oo US$'000
B it FETT FET
Cash flows from operating HETHMBHRLSRE
activities
Profit before income tax AN & B 45 A5 B A 3,560 3,550
Adjustments for: FAT BIEIELTEE
Amortisation of life insurance ASREZSHEH
policy deposits 34 51
Amortisation of intangible BEEE#N
assets 14 72 72
Bank interest income 1T H B A 6 (80) (5)
Depreciation of property, plant ME - BELZEITE
and equipment 18 475 41
Imputed interest income on life ASREREN
insurance policy deposits HEE RS WA 6 (43) (36)
Interest expenses FERAX 7 1,027 864
Allowance for expected credit g 5 MW R IAH) T8 B
loss on trade receivables EEBERRE 18 111 91
Reversal thereof on inventories BoFEEER
to net realisable value, net FE - FE 17 — (128)
Operating cash flows before LEEEHATN
working capital changes KREBRSME 5,156 4,500
(Increase)/decrease in inventories 7 & (3 0) & 4 (6,385) 10
(Increase)/decrease in trade and & 5 fE W X 18 & fE Uk
bills receivables = (m), m (7,036) 439
Increase in prepayments, deposits FEfT 18 « & &
and other receivables H b & U 3K I8 L 0 (6,472) (1,512)
Increase in trade and bills 2 5 RN RIE R ER
payables ZE IR E M 6,489 4,397
Increase in accruals, receipts in ~ EFFE A « R FHIE K&
advance and other payables o th fE < BRI AN 683 296
Net cash (used in)/generated from #&%& (FiA),/ FBE &
operations gL (7,565) 8,130
Income tax paid BT &N (127) (698)
Net cash (used in)/generated e Ees (A
from operating activities FABIREFHE (7,692) 7,432
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GEHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # Z20194F 12531 H I F /&

2019 2018
20194 20184
Notes uss’o0oo US$'000
H it FETT FET
Cash flows from investing BRETHRBRERE
activities
Purchases of property, plantand MBE®Z - BEMK&H
equipment 13 (136) (41)
Payment of life insurance policy ~ AZREBIRS &
deposits 16 (524) (525)
(Increase)/decrease in amounts  J& Y B8 Bt 77 3k 18
due from related parties ($ ), m 4) 38
Increase in pledged bank deposits B # # 3R 1717 5K & 1 (929) (300)
Bank interest received 2R 1T H B 6 80 5
Net cash used in investing BETHARESFE
activities (1,513) (823)
Cash flows from financing RMETHMEHSRE
activities
Decrease in amounts due to JE 11 [ Bt 75 SR IEORL
related parties 32 — (1,439)
Proceeds from issuance of shares @@ & XA % &E317
by initial public offering, net of % 7 FT 15 SR8
share issuance expenses ?D%foﬁ?ﬁéﬂﬁaﬁﬁ 13,825 —
Proceeds from bank borrowings R 77 {& X AT 15 2 18 32 3,863 1,310
Repayment of bank borrowings EERITER 32 (3,767) (4,310)
Repayment of lease liabilities EEHEERE 32 (453) —
Interest paid AT B 7 (988) (864)
Net cash generated from/ MEESME
(used in) financing activities (AR FEHE 12,480 (5,303)
Net increase in cash and cash & RIEEEY
equivalents W miEE 3,275 1,306
Cash and cash equivalents at FHHRERRELEEY
beginning of the year 2,874 1,629
Effect of foreign exchange rate ME RSBy &
changes 114 (61)
Cash and cash equivalentsat EXHRERELEEY
end of the year 20 6,263 2,874

BEEEMEERARF 2019F F5H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £2019F 12 931H i F /&

1.

Corporate information

The Company was incorporated as an exempted
company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands
on 16 August 2016. The registered office of the
Company is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box
2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman lIslands.
The Company’s principal place of business is Unit
No. A, 13th Floor, Block 1, Leader Industrial Centre,
Nos.188-202 Texaco Road, Tsuen Wan, New
Territories, Hong Kong.

On 16 July 2019, the Company listed it’s shares on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company
while its principal subsidiaries (together with the
Company, collectively referred to as the “Group”)
are mainly engaged in the provision of customised
reference designs which are bundled together with
the sale of integrated circuits (“ICs”) and other
electronic components as a package to customers
in both Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC").

The Group underwent a reorganisation in
preparation for listing and the reorganisation
has been completed during the year ended 31
December 2017. Details of the reorganisation is
included in the initial public offering prospectus
of the Company dated 29 June 2019 (the
“Prospectus”).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEVBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019%F 12 A31H 1F F /&

Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective
term includes all individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations (“Int”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These consolidated
financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). The HKICPA has
issued several new HKFRSs and amendments
to HKFRSs that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Group. Details of the
changes in accounting policies are discussed in
note 3.

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2019 comprise the Company
and its subsidiaries. The measurement basis used
in the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements is the historical cost basis.

The functional currency of the Company is Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”) and the investment holding
subsidiary incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
(the “BVI”) and subsidiaries incorporated in Hong
Kong have their functional currency in United States
Dollar ("US$"), and subsidiaries established in the
PRC have their functional currency in Renminbi
(“BRMB”). The consolidated financial statements
have been presented in US$ as the directors
consider that it is more appropriate to adopt US$
as the Group’s and the Company’s presentation
currency. All values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except when otherwise indicated.

2.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £2019F 12 931H i F /&

2. RBEE 4
(a) FEMFTREBIIKEEBMTE

2. Basis of preparation (continued)
(a) Adoption of new and revised Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards

In the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December
2019, the Group has applied, for the first time,
the following revised standards issued by the
HKICPA.

The Group has applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
for the first time in the current year:

HKFRS 16 Leases
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

Amendments to Prepayment Features with Negative
HKFRS 9 Compensation

Amendments to Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
HKAS 19 Settlement

Amendments to Long-term Interests in Associates
HKAS 28 and Joint Ventures

Amendments to Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

Except as described below, the application of
the new and amendments to HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the
Group’s financial performance and positions
for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEVBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019%F 12 A31H 1F F /&

2. Basis of preparation (continued)
(a) Adoption of new and revised Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 for the first
time in the current year. HKFRS 16 superseded
HKAS 17 Leases (“HKAS 17"), and the related
interpretations.

Definition of a lease

The Group has elected the practical expedient
to apply HKFRS 16 to contracts that were
previously identified as leases applying HKAS
17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether
an Arrangement contains a Lease and not
apply this standard to contracts that were not
previously identified as containing a lease.
Therefore, the Group has not reassessed
contracts which already existed prior to the
date of initial application.

For contracts entered into or modified on or
after 1 January 2019, the Group applies the
definition of a lease in accordance with the
requirements set out in HKFRS 16 in assessing
whether a contract contains a lease.

2. RBEE 4
(a) FEMFMTREBIIKEEMTE

]EEADE)
(BEEMBHRERER)FE 165

=

AEBERANFEEXRERCE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £2019F 12 931H i F /&

2. RBEE 4
(a) FEMFTREBIIKEEBMTE

2. Basis of preparation (continued)
(a) Adoption of new and revised Hong Kong

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As a lessee

The Group has applied HKFRS 16
retrospectively with the cumulative effect
recognised at the date of initial application, 1
January 2019. Any difference at the date of
initial application is recognised in the opening
retained profits and comparative information
has not been restated.

On transition, the Group has made the
following adjustments upon application HKFRS
16:

At 1 January 2019, the Group recognised
additional lease liabilities and right-of-use
assets at amounts equal to the related lease
liabilities adjusted by any prepaid or accrued
lease payments by applying HKFRS 16. C8
(b)(i) transition. Any difference at the date of
initial application is recognised in the opening
retained profits and comparative information
has not been restated.

When recognising the lease liabilities for leases
previously classified as operating leases, the
Group has applied incremental borrowing
rates of the relevant group entities at the date
of initial application. The weighted average
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate applied by
the relevant group entities range from 3.3% to
4.9%.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £20194 12 31H I F &

2. Basis of preparation (continued) 2. RHEEE
(a) Adoption of new and revised Hong Kong (a) FREANFTREEII(EEMTE
Financial Reporting Standards (Continued) H]EFEH e
HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued) (BEEMBHREER)F165H
BE#)
As a lessee (Continued) tERETAN ()
At 1 January
2019
220194
1A1H
uss’ooo
FE T
Operating lease commitments disclosed 72018412 5318 # 5& /Y
as at 31 December 2018 #e T B R 1,172
Lease liabilities discounted at relevant  1Z AR S (& X A K BLIB K
incremental borrowing rates HEAE (88)
Lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 R2019F1A1BEMEEAE 1,084
Analysed as SR
Current & 416
Non-current FE T B 668
1,084
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEVBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £2019F 12 931H i F /&

2. Basis of preparation (continued)

(a) Adoption of new and revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

The following table summarises the impact of
transition of HKFRS 16 on retained profits at 1

January 2019.

2. RBEE 4

(a) BRI REEI(EEMSB
HwEERE)
(BEMBHREER)FE 169
B#)
TERATHNA (#)
TR MCE BB IRELERDE
165% AY 1B JE 1 1 2019F 1 A1H K
REBFBEHFE -

Impact of
application
HKFRS 16
at 1 January
2019
2019%1A1H
FERC(EEMRTE
W& EAD
Ao p A
uss’ooo
FETT
Retained profits (R B2 X8
Depreciation of right-of-use assets B JE B(E BB &S 2R
from commencement dates upon F165 F 15 B HHY
application of HKFRS 16 EHEESETE 396
Interest on lease liabilities from A JE B(E BB & & 2 A1))
commencement dates upon F165E 15 B #H &Y
application of HKFRS 16 HEBBEHNEA 68
Less: lease expenses of operating B BR2019F1 A1H AR 15
leases under HKAS17 (FBHeFELD
before 1 January 2019 BT E
REHEZHERX (424)
Impact at 1 January 2019 R2019F1A1HMF & 40

The following adjustments were made to
the amounts recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position at 1 January
2019. Line items that were not affected by the
changes have not been included.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31

2. Basis of preparation (continued)

(a) Adoption of new and revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

FEMBRRMEE

December 2019 & 22019412 A31H 1F F /&

2. RBEE 4

(a) FAFMIREBI(TEME
& F D)

As a lessee (Continued)

(BEEMBHREER)F165H
B
1EREMEA (&)
Carrying Carrying
amounts amounts
previously under
reported at HKFRS 16
31 December at 1 January

2018 Adjustments 2019
R20194
1818 R
ol (BHEME
R20184 iR & 81
12 A31H £165 1Y
EHRMEEE E BR & B
US$'000 US$'000 Uss$’000
FETT FETT F E T
Non-current assets BB E
Right-of-use assets FHREEE — 1,044 1,044
Current liabilities REAG
Lease liabilities HEarR — (416) (416)
Non-current liabilities JEFZEEE
Lease liabilities HEBE — (668) (668)
Equity i
Retained profits R & X HE 10,046 (40) 10,006

BEEMBERAF 2019F F#H

105



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEVBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £2019F 12 931H i F /&

2. Basis of preparation (continued)

(b) New and amendments to HKFRSs that
issued but not yet effective for the year
ended 31 December 2019

Up to the date of issue of these consolidated
financial statements, the HKICPA has issued
a number of amendments and new standards
which are not yet effective for the year ended
31 December 2019 and which have not been
adopted in these consolidated financial
statements. These include the following which
may be relevant to the Group.

2. RBEE 4

(b) EEMEE E2019%F12H31
B 1k 5 B 5 R & R #HET &
FEIKEEMBREELHD)

HEHGRAMBHRERTIZEAR &
BEMASCERE TRESR
2019% 12 A31H L FE M AR £ K
HISE] AR FT AR - RSB
MRV ERL o U FNAAIAEER
ESEBEBENBTARFTER -

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning

on or after
RUTB#E
ZERER

Rk IEES

Amendments to HKFRS 3

(CEBMBHREENEIR EHFHER
& &1 2R

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material
and HKAS 8

(BERGFTER)EIHE K
(BEGAERDESHEEF R

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

(BEARAMBHREELDFEIWR -
(BB GTERDFEI95% &
(BRI BHRESLERD
ENE RN

Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting 2018

20184 Bt 7% i &5 B S AE 28

ERNER

IEF S
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Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

Revised Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEVBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019%F 12 A31H 1F F /&

2. RBREE
(b) EEMEE E2019%F12H31

2. Basis of preparation (continued)
(b) New and amendments to HKFRSs that

issued but not yet effective for the year
ended 31 December 2019 (Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an
assessment of what the impact of these
amendments and new standards is expected
to be in the period of initial application. So

B 1k 5 B i R & 3B # AT &
FEIKEEMBREELHD)
(%)

AEBLEHEFEZEE F.TZIK&%)?
RN E R e EE R FEE #
& o AN E B A I S R 2 A
B E D g B AR A B

far the Group has not identified any aspects i’%ﬁ%?ﬁ?&é %//\J,f\)ﬂ%ﬁf@ﬂﬂ
of the new standards which may have a WERTZEAREERXEEER
significant impact on the consolidated financial IR A 1R E’J ﬁ ¥iese 7352

statements. The actual impacts upon the
initial adoption of the standards may differ as

=7 §EB

MEE BB TRE - HhR 2
F%VJE%mwTﬁmJMNKEI

the assessment completed to date is based B ZE2020F12A31B ILFEMF
on the information currently available to the WAER RN BHmETE
Group, and further impacts may be identified //\J?E}EHEA#L%/@JZ@L - REE TR
before the standards are initially applied in the MEEF e RREE(BRA
Group’s annual report for the year ending 31 EEE) o
December 2020. The Group may also change
its accounting policy elections, including the
transition options, until the standards are
initially applied in the consolidated financial
statements.
3. Summary of significant accounting 3. EXEFHEME

policies

(a) Basis of consolidation and subsidiaries (a) FEEFHMEAT
These consolidated financial statements ZEREUBBREREEARARRR
include the financial statements of the H B AREZ=2019F12A31H
Company and its subsidiaries for the year IEFENMBRE - MEBLARIE

ended 31 December 2019. A subsidiary is an
entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control
is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e., existing rights that give the
Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).

/NI ES=R e ALk R )
MER(EREBTEER) - EX
SEUHZ2EREUREZKA
“@#&ﬁdﬂ*ﬂ Rk EHEMN - A

REMAIRE B REREESD D
é\ﬂi%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁil%&léf%i%ﬁ
FRRSNREEMN FEZEFR
A - BIENAS FE I 4E -

BEEEMEERARF 2019F F5H

107



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £2019F 12 931H i F /&

3. EXEHHEBME

3. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

(a) Basis of consolidation and subsidiaries
(Continued)

(a) ZFEEEHMBLAS (B

EARRERXAEREBERE
BRINAZEORERNE
DR REBERFHEEHRE
BRERRBAENEEZEM

When the Company has, directly or indirectly,
less than a majority of the voting or similar
rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing

whether it has power over an investee, ENBSEERER  BfE:
including:
e the contractual arrangement with the other e HEEBEHRMHAMBRERE

vote holders of the investee; BFEAFUMEHLZHE:

HEb & H R PATE LN
Al

° rights arising from other contractual o
arrangements; and

AEENREERBER

RiE o

e the Group’s voting rights and potential o
voting rights.

MY~ m B R R R —
BRI B RREALQRHRO RS
HiRs - WBARNEERALSE
BESIE I 2 BB ARR
VTHEBEEANREEXREFR
RIEHIERSL

The financial statements of subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as
the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. The results of subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which the
Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control
ceases.

reBRakEtem sS4

Consolidated profit or loss and each
component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the parent of
the Group and to the non-controlling interests,
even if this results in the non-controlling
interest having a deficit balance. All intra-group
transactions, balances, income and expenses
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it
controls an investee if facts and circumstances
indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control described in
the accounting policy for subsidiaries below.

1 08 Contel Technology Company Limited  Annual Report 2019

A ER 2 15 5 BN AN Sk B B A R
BARIEEBER - BDfE &
GG IR 1 AR 3R B AL A
%o MEEERARRRERS - &
7 WA RRXEIREEARE

EHYHE -

A BERIERER RIS A
A& 5 B 5 B = B 42 A
RSB R B Ak
B YRR ERAA

i 12 B -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019%F 12 A31H 1F F /&

3. EXEHHBEBME

3. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

(a) Basis of consolidation and subsidiaries

(a) ZFEEEHMEBAS (B

(Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests
in subsidiaries that do not result in the Group
losing control over the subsidiaries are
accounted for as equity transactions.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the consolidated profit or loss on disposal is
calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any investment
retained and (ii) the previous carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities
of the subsidiary and any non-controlling
interests. The Group’s share of components
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to the consolidated
income statement or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be
required if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities.

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the
Company’s statement of financial position at
cost less any identified impairment loss. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend received
and receivable.

AEBEMFHEB ARG EE
n B AN EERREYNE
NAHIEFIE - AERERDERS
N

fief N 5= [ 25 25 5 B /B8 /2 =) A 22 o
B LERELNGSEBERET
JIMENERETE  ()EWKE
MARBEEREMNEREREDN
NAMBEE 2 42T K (i) i B 2 8] &
EAFERESNEE(BED
BNEBENREEE - £ATRN
Httembam R AsERE
HHORERRAKEEEEZ
ENHEEESRENR —EEE
MOBRERSWERHIRE N E
(RIBERME) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £2019F 12 931H i F /&

3. EXEHHEBME

3. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

(b) Business combinations and goodwill

(b) XBEHREE

Business combinations are accounted for using
the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is
measured at fair value, which is calculated as
the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
measured by the Group to the former owners
of the acquiree and the equity interests issued
by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure
non-controlling interests that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to
a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets
in the event of liquidation at fair value or at
the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
share of the acquirees’ identifiable net assets.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it
assesses the financial assets and liabilities
assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual
terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This
includes the separation of embedded
derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being
the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquire over the net of the
acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed.
If, after assessment, the net of the
acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed
exceeds the sum of the consideration
transferred, the excess is recognised
immediately in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as a bargain purchase
gain or changes in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019%F 12 A31H 1F F /&

3. EXEHHBEBME

3. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

(b) Business combinations and goodwill

(b) ¥BEHEBEE (5

(Continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is carried
at cost less accumulated impairment losses,
if any, and is presented separately in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually
or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may be impaired. The Group performs
its annual impairment test of goodwill
as at 31 December. For the purposes of
impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units
(or groups of cash-generating units) that
is expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination, irrespective of whether
other assets or liabilities of the Group are
assigned to those units or groups of units.
Impairment is determined by assessing the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating
units (group of cash-generating units) to
which the goodwill relates. If the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating units (group of
cash-generating units) is less than its carrying
amount, the impairment loss is allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit (group of cash-generating
units) and then to the other assets of the unit
on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit. Any
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in subsequent periods.

VIHHERIR - BB R AR
RIERERX(WB)FTE RN
RAVBRRKRTDHNZ -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBE®MERME
For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £2019F 12 931H i F /&

3. Summary of significant accounting 3. EXEFBEHME®
policies (continued)

(b) Business combinations and goodwill (b) ¥EBEHERBEE (9)
(Continued)
Where goodwill has been allocated ERNESBERELEEM(H
to a cash-generating unit (or group of ReEABEMAN BZEMLR
cash-generating units) and part of the WE D EHEHE - BIE®ER
operation within that unit is disposed of, SRk HEXEBEBEOEE
the goodwill associated with the operation MAZEGHREET - EUItE
disposed of is included in the carrying amount ATHENHENBREBEMLHESE
of the operation when determining the gain or BRARENESREEEEMN
loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in WEEEES Z -

these circumstances is measured based on
the relative value of the operation disposed
of and the portion of the cash-generating unit

retained.

(c) Property, plant and equipment (c) VE BERRE
Property, plant and equipment are stated Y BMELRZEERKXABITE
at cost less provisions for depreciation and BELKBEBXR(A)IE -
impairment losses, if any.
The cost of an item of property, plant and ME - BERREBEEBEHNKARE
equipment comprises its purchase price and REBEBERSEEENHE
any directly attributable cost of bringing the YEAR JU K2 38 21| A8 A 3t Bh AVE H
asset to its working condition and location for HRERGCMEANTNEERE
its intended use. Expenditure incurred after A0 - RIEE MG EER TR
the item has been put into operation, such as MR (mgEBEREERKXE
repairs and maintenance and overhaul costs, RAR)BERZIEFERNGEEE
is normally charged to the consolidated profit mARPHR - MERIFRERAT
or loss in the year in which it is incurred. In ZERTESKRKRFEABHIER
situations where it can be clearly demonstrated R HA Al R B A i &
that the expenditure has resulted in an AR AgERNMEIEEB I
increase in future economic benefits expected A - MHEWE  BMEKRKE
to be obtained from the use of the item, the HE ERAR REITERNK
expenditure is capitalised as an additional WP BEk  BHEEMEEMAEK
cost of the item. When an item of property, mxEBEEEVEEEEMSRIEA
plant and equipment is sold, its cost and FREEAEREREEMNERE)FIA
accumulated depreciation are removed from REEm -

the financial statements and any gain or
loss resulting from the disposal, being the
difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset, is
included in consolidated profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019%F 12 A31H 1F F /&

3. EXEHHBEBME

3. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

(c) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

(c) M¥- -BMERRES

Depreciation is provided on the straight-line
method, based on the estimated economic
useful life of the individual assets, as follows:

E R T E R & E /) fEHRE
EREMEAERETIEFE
A

Leasehold 5 years or over the lease terms, HEMERE RFXHE
improvement whichever is shorter UBREERE)

Furniture, fixture and 3-10 years G- £ER ZE+F
equipment B

Motor vehicles 5 years e aF

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost
of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, estimated
useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least
at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment
including any significant part initially
recognised is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the
consolidated profit or loss in the year the asset
is derecognised is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of
the relevant asset.

W - BENEREEREBANED
ERZH AR BZBEERAE
RAEBEEDETE B AEE
RITE - RIREE - HEHERSF
MM ETNEELINRETBRFE
RBITRELAE(ER)

NpERNYE - BENRKRER
B(BREERAKD) KL EX
EHECERAIEERTEHK
RFLENZ - BIRIEHER - 10
BERIBAFENGFABRDET
FER R B RENEA S
AERLHEBEEHEMEN
RFREEARAENEZRE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBE®MERME
For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £2019F 12 931H i F /&

3. Summary of significant accounting 3. EXEFBEHME®
policies (continued)

(d) Intangible assets other than goodwill d BELIINEREE
Intangible assets acquired in a business REBEHPUBENRETLEE
combination are recognised separately from HEESRER  LYIFTRAR
goodwill and are initially recognised at their fair WEARBHMNAABERER -

value at the acquisition date.

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible R E EEBEHFRK
assets acquired in a business combination BENEEERAFEHAFHNER
with finite useful lives are reported at costs BEEZRMKANBERGT#ERE
less accumulated amortisation and any AIZFTREEBKLKER - AJERF
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation HERNEFNEENEIHKRE
for intangible assets with finite useful lives is HETRIE A F BB ERER -
recognised on a straight-line basis over their HErAI G AFERENE AR
estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life BEWREHRRE - B2
and amortisation method are reviewed at the BIREHELEAR o

end of each reporting period, with the effective
of any changes in estimate being accounted for
on a prospective basis.

Gains of losses arising from derecognition HARIEREREEMELEMNE
of an intangible asset are measured as the Kz - IRHEMMS IR F N
difference between the net disposal proceeds EERAEECEANEZERETE
and the carrying amount of the asset and are THEEERIERPHEERE
recognised in consolidated profit or loss in the REEm e

period when the asset is derecognised.

(e) Impairment of non-financial assets (e) R EEREBREEINN)
other than goodwill
When an indication of impairment exists, WMERBETR  EHEE
or when annual impairment testing for ETFEREAR(EREER
an asset is required (other than financial AN - Blfh st B EM R B2 FE -
assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is BEMNAYEcHEEEESER
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount BReEAEMNEREER
is the higher of the value in use of the asset HAABEMKREEKAMEF
or cash-generating unit to which it belongs WEReE  WIZENEEETE
and its fair value less costs to sell, and is BRIFZBEBEEELEZEERA
determined for an individual asset, unless TRRERANEZEE EBIREM
the asset does not generate cash inflows that EEREEHANMEELEZH €
are largely independent of those from other MA - ERIBRT - Ik e S8
assets or groups of assets, in which case NZBEEMBZEHEEELS
the recoverable amount is determined for fIEE °
the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEVBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019%F 12 A31H 1F F /&

3. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

(e)

Impairment of non-financial assets
other than goodwill (Continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
to the consolidated profit or loss in the period
in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired
asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each
reporting period as to whether there is
any indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other
than goodwill is reversed only if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount of that asset, but not
to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any
amortisation), had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such impairment loss is credited to
the consolidated profit or loss in the period in
which it arises.

3. EXEHHBEBME

() k&MBEEREMBREEIN)

(&)

HMEBXEREERAERES
Hegm& 58 mR o fEaTfh
EREERK [t RKBESR
ERRBEM MY EEEREE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £2019F 12 931H i F /&

3. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

(f)

(9)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined on a
first-in, first-out basis and includes all costs of
purchase and other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and
condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less
the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying
amount of those inventories is recognised as
an expense in the period in which the related
revenue is recognised. The amount of any
write-down of inventories to net realisable value
and all losses of inventories are recognised
as an expense in the period the write-down
or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of
any write-down of inventories is recognised
as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the period in
which the reversal occurs.

Investments and other financial assets
Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets include trade
and bills receivables, deposits and other
receivables, amounts due from related parties,
pledged bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents, and all of which are classified and
accounted for as debt instruments. Financial
assets are recognised on the trade date.

Debt instruments are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market which
are initially recognised at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any
allowance for impairment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019%F 12 A31H 1F F /&

3. EXEHHBEBME

3. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

(g) Investments and other financial assets

(9 BREHHEBEREE &)

(Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets occurs
when the rights to receive cash flows from
the financial assets expire or are transferred
and substantially all of the risks and rewards
of ownership have been transferred or in
which the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership and it does not retain control of the
financial assets.

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following
conditions are subsequently measured at
amortised cost:

EHEEE)

WEBReHEEMSRERE
R E Mk E S REHEER
Ao R N ERE EEIAE
EEEE I EREEAER
RNEBH R b & B ¥ B H I & (R
Berl & ER IR - BRI
BERZETREE -

EHMEETHEREETE

AR RN SR EERRE
BHKAGE:

e the financial asset is held within a e SHEBEENEHEWIEHE
business model whose objective is to EMBEZEBEARFE K

collect contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

s AHBFREEEHELZ
REREBARSINAE R
MAEEASBEZHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £20194F 12H31H 1F F)Z

3. Summary of significant accounting 3. EXEFBEHME®
policies (continued)
(g) Investments and other financial assets

(9 BREHHEBEREE &)

(Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets that meet the following
conditions are subsequently measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income
(“FVTOCI"):

e the financial asset is held within a
business model whose objective is
achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling; and

e the contractual terms give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently
measured at fair value through consolidated
profit or loss (“FVTPL”), except that at the
date of initial application/initial recognition of
a financial asset the Group may irrevocably
elect to present subsequent changes in fair
value of an equity investment in OCI if that
equity investment is neither held for trading
nor contingent consideration recognised by an
acquirer in a business combination to which
HKFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEVBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019%F 12 A31H 1F F /&

3. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

(g) Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

A financial asset is classified as held for
trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the near term; or

e on initial recognition it is a part of a
portfolio of identified financial instruments
that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably
designate a financial asset that are required to
be measured at the amortised cost or FVTOCI
as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.

3. EXEHHBEBME

(9 BREHHEBEREE &)

EHEEE)
EHEESEREESE B

WemEEB TIIER - QRS
AREEERR:

e FEANEHANLEmME
Ak

e RUMFHERE BRAKE
BEefeEzEdb R
TRAG—#n - B HH
BEREREMNBR R K

e BRAWEEZIIETLA
WA EBIERE LA -

SN - i R EER SR IR D & 5
#5 A - N5 B B] A RIS R
WEBHER AR AABETNAR
MBSt ENEREERTE
REAREBEFABRTE -

BEEEMEERARF 2019F F5H

119



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEVBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £2019F 12 931H i F /&

3. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

(g) Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

(i)  Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the
effective interest method for financial
assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost and debt instruments/
receivables subsequently measured at
FVTOCI. Interest income is calculated
by applying the effective interest rate to
the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired (see
note 3(h)). For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired,
interest income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate to the amortised
cost of the financial asset from the next
reporting period. If the credit risk on
the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no
longer credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset from the beginning
of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer
credit impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEVBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019%F 12 A31H 1F F /&

3. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

(g) Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

(i) Equity instruments designated as at
FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at
FVTOCI are subsequently measured at
fair value with gains and losses arising
from changes in fair value recognised in
OCI and accumulated in the fair value
reserve; and are not subject to impairment
assessment. The cumulative gain or loss
will not be reclassified to consolidated
profit or loss on disposal of the equity
investments, and will be transferred to
retained profits.

Dividends from these investments in
equity instruments are recognised in
consolidated profit or loss when the
Group’s right to receive the dividends is
established, unless the dividends clearly
represent a recovery of part of the cost of
the investment. Dividends are included in
the other income line item in consolidated
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £2019F 12 931H i F /&

3. EXEHHEBME

3. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

(g) Investments and other financial assets

(9 BREHHEBEREE &)

(Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

(iii) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the
criteria for being measured at amortised
cost or FVTOCI or designated as FVTOCI
are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured
at fair value at the end of each reporting
period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in consolidated profit or
loss The net gain or loss recognised in
consolidated profit or loss excludes any
dividend or interest earned on the financial
asset and is included in the “other gains
and losses” line item.

(h) Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for
expected credit loss (“‘ECL") on the financial
assets measured at amortised cost. For
trade receivables, the Group applies the
simplified approach to provide for ECL
prescribed by HKFRS 9, which requires the
use of the lifetime expected losses provision
for all trade receivables without significant
financing component. The ECL on these assets
are assessed individually for debtors with
significant balances and collectively using a
provision matrix with appropriate groupings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019%F 12 A31H 1F F /&

3. EXEHHBEBME

3. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

(h) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(h) €M EERESE)

For all other instruments, the Group measures
the loss allowance equal to 12-month ECL,
unless when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be
recognised is based on significant increases
in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring
since initial recognition.

When estimating ECL, the Group considers
reasonable and supportable information that
is relevant and available without undue cost
or effort. This includes both quantitative and
qualitative information and analysis, based
on the Group’s historical experience and
informed credit assessment and including
forward-looking information.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured as
the present value of all cash shortfalls which
is the difference between the cash flows due
to the Group in accordance with the contract
and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses
on a forward looking basis whether
financial assets carried at amortised cost
is credit-impaired. A financial asset is
credit-impaired when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset have
occurred.

MAMAEMIAMmMS @ AEBE
ENRERNREARABHEEERE
MEBEE  BRIEEERBREY]
IAFERAREEZ G I - BRIARSE
ERREEPSENESEES
B -FHESERAEEHHEE
HEEBEBEDERBVIHAER
LA 2R 3% A 32 %9 B9 1] B 1% 2k R fe
EBBEL -

EEEARAEEERY  A&H
EREALCENBENKANKAE
N ESNHESEERE
e BEENBRERAREN
iﬁ&ﬂ“%’i&/\fiﬁ’ﬂéfz (]
BHNEEMEEE MO -
ABEREEER -

BEHEEEEREEEBEENHY
EMEMGETE FSEBBEMR
ERE2BROBIRESDENK
’%lﬁﬁﬁim;&éﬁiﬁﬁlﬁﬁﬁ
WEMNRERELHNERE) D
WEE -

EEREEH - ANEEAAEE
EEFHEABHKNATENS
MEERAGHLRERERE - #H
BAEHTREENMGRKA
EREEXTFZER — @K
ZEEMH MEMEELRESR
AE -

BEEEMEERARF 2019F F5H

123



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBE®MERME
For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £2019F 12 931H i F /&

3. Summary of significant accounting 3. EXEFBEHME®
policies (continued)

(h) Impairment of financial assets (Continued) (h) EMEERE®
Evidence that a financial asset is CPREELHREERENE R
credit-impaired includes the following BE T I AT B R B
observable data:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the (@) ERAXBITALEHBEERKX
borrower or issuer; B 75 IR 2

(b) a breach of contract such as a default or by BN BB EHZTERSE
past due event; and 7 &

(c) it is becoming probable that the debtor (c) BBARAEKEHE -
will enter bankruptcy.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured NEHEK AT EN SR E ENE

at amortised cost are deducted from the gross BEHBEEELEEREEBENR -

carrying amount of the assets.

The gross carrying amount of a financial assets CeRmEERRERE AL
is written off (either partially or in full) to the M-RleRmEENEKRDEG
extent that there is no realistic prospect of DEEE) MR - EREERE
recovery. This is generally the case when the BEHRATEANELERTHWE M
Group determines that the debtor does not EANENGFHBREENEE
have assets or sources of income that could FHAZRIR - BIBULREB R - A
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the - WENEREENREEE
amounts subject to write off. However, financial XoRHNITIEE - NEBFAEE
assets that are written off could still be subject B[O R B RIERRAR ©

to enforcement activities in order to comply
with the Group’s procedures for recovery of
amounts due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEVBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019%F 12 A31H 1F F /&

3. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

(h) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

()

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk
of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition.

In particular, the following information
is taken into account when assessing
whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial
instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

— significant deterioration in external
market indicators of credit risk, e.g.
a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices
for the debtor;

— existing or forecast adverse changes
in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause
a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations;

— an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results
of the debtor; or

— an actual or expected significant
adverse change in the regulatory,
economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that
results in a significant decrease in
the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £2019F 12 931H i F /&

3. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

(h) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Significant increase in credit risk
(Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that
the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the
effectiveness of the criteria used to
identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and
revises them as appropriate to ensure
that the criteria are capable of identifying
significant increase in credit risk before
the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management,
the Group considers an event of default
occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external
sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account
any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group
considers that default has occurred when
a financial asset is more than 90 days past
due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate
that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEVBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019%F 12 A31H 1F F /&

3. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

(h) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
(iii) Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when
one or more events of default that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that financial asset have
occurred. Evidence that a financial asset
is credit-impaired includes observable
data about the following events:

— significant financial difficulty of the
issuer or the borrower;

— a breach of contract, such as a
default or past due event;

— the lender(s) of the borrower, for
economic or contractual reasons
relating to the borrower’s financial
difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that
the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

— it is becoming probable that the
borrower will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation; or

— the disappearance of an active
market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £2019F 12 931H i F /&

3. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

(h) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iv) Write-off policy

(v)

The Group writes off a financial asset
when there is information indicating that
the counterparty is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of accounts
and bills receivables, when the amounts
are over one year past due, whichever
occurs sooner. Financial assets written
off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal
advice where appropriate. A write-off
constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in
consolidated profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function
of the probability of default, loss given
default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss
if there is a default) and the exposure
at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data
adjusted by forward-looking information.
Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of
default occurring as the weights.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEVBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019%F 12 A31H 1F F /&

3. EXEHHBEBME

3. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

(h) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL
(Continued)

Generally, the ECL is the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are
due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition. Where ECL is measured on a
collective basis or cater for cases where
evidence at the individual instrument level
may not yet be available, the financial
instruments are grouped based on:

— Nature of financial instruments;
— Past-due status;

— Nature, size and industry of debtors;
and

— External credit ratings where
available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure the constituents
of each group continue to share similar
credit risk characteristics. The Group
recognises an impairment gain or loss in
consolidated profit or loss for all financial
instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of accounts
and bills receivables, contract assets and
deposits and other receivables where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised
through a loss allowance account.

(i) Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include
trade and bills payables, accruals and other
payables and bank borrowings and lease
labilities. Financial liabilities are recognised
when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBE®MERME
For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £2019F 12 931H i F /&

3. Summary of significant accounting 3. EXEFBEHME®
policies (continued)

(i) Financial liabilities (Continued) (i) eERMEHFE®E
Financial liabilities are initially recognised at TRBEVBREAABEREE
fair value, net of transaction costs incurred EZRGHAER  HEBENAER
and subsequently measured at amortised cost FEKIRBIEKARETE - K
using the effective interest method. Financial PRI B EWARER - BUBS#R
liabilities are derecognised when the obligation IER - BIREBEREe/mBE -

specified in the contract is discharged or
cancelled, or expires.

(j) Foreign currency translation () MEE®RE

Each entity in the Group determines its own AEENEZEERBITREH
functional currency and items included in NEEEE  r MAWASER B I®
the financial statements of each entity are ~WIEBBIAZ e EKETE -
measured using that functional currency. INERGEERHBREALY
Foreign currency transactions are initially REEKEXRBEAAR - RREH
recorded using the functional currency rates R INEGFENEKEEREA
ruling at the date of the transactions. Monetary BEREAANIEEBEXF®R
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign B -HEBIHmESKEAME
currencies are retranslated at the functional ENEERNGEEEERPER
currency rates of exchange ruling at the end HHEER/RAREYH FIHEINEE
of the reporting period. Differences arising on FREN—H M EKIEBR
settlement or translation of monetary items are Gh o B R KA AINE ST E R
recognised in the consolidated statement of FERIER  KAVNFRHBEH
profit or loss with the exception of monetary EERE - IINERAREBER
items that are designated as part of the hedge EZHFERBBRAREEAR
of the Group’s net investment of a foreign BEEAZERRE - ZARE
operation. Non-monetary items that are B ENFEKEEREESE
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign U sk BN R IR 5L B
currency are translated using the exchange REBEEAABEZHN RS
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. SEE— - BETEINMERFA
Non-monetary items measured at fair value WINEE BB RETUAIINZEE -
in a foreign currency are translated using the RMERR ZFEBNEER
exchange rates at the date when the fair value BEEGREHRERAZEXR
was determined. The gain or loss arising on EEAEENEHREL  HIKA
translation of a non-monetary item measured at K >z I8 B R 2 i E R
fair value is treated in line with the recognition BMER/RETT -

of the gain or loss on change in fair value of
the item. The functional currencies of certain
overseas subsidiaries are currencies other than
the US$. As at the end of the reporting period,
the assets and liabilities of these entities are
translated into the presentation currency of the
Group at the exchange rates ruling at the end
of the reporting period, and their income and
expense items are translated into US$ at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEVBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019%F 12 A31H 1F F /&

3. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

(1)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

The resulting exchange differences are
recorded in other comprehensive income and
the cumulative balance is included in exchange
reserve in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the deferred cumulative amount
recognised in exchange reserve relating to
that particular foreign operation is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income. Any goodwill
arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation
and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on
acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities
of the foreign operation and translated at the
closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement
of cash flows, the cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries are translated into US$ at the
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of
overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout
the year are translated into US$ at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £2019F 12 931H i F /&

3. EXEHHEBME

3. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

(k) Revenue recognition

(k) W A\ GER2

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Revenue
is recognised when the Group satisfies a
performance obligation by transferring a
promised good or service to a customer, as
follows:

Revenue from sale of goods which are
bundled with services

Time of recognition

The Group provides customised reference
designs which are bundled together with the
sale of ICs and delivery to the customers’
designated locations as a package to
customers. Sales are recognised when the
control of the ICs including the bundled
services, being when the ICs are delivered
to the customers, and there is no unfulfilled
obligation that could affect the customer’s
acceptance of the ICs. The Group allows
customers to return the defective products in
the range from two weeks to one month after
the delivery. No warranty or sales rebate is
offered to the customers.

Measurement of revenue

Revenue from sales is based on the price
specified in the sales contracts and is shown
net of value-added tax and after eliminating
sales within the Group. No element of financing
is deemed present as the sales are made
with a credit term not more than four months.
A receivable is recognised when the control
of the ICs are delivered to the customers as
this is the point in time that the consideration
is unconditional because only the passage of
time is required before the payment is due.
Accumulated experience is used to estimate
the likelihood and provide for sales return for
the goods sold at the time of sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEVBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019%F 12 A31H 1F F /&

3. EXEHHBEBME

3. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

(k) Revenue recognition (Continued)

)

Revenue from sale of goods which are
bundled with services (Continued)

Refund liabilities

The Group recognises a refund liability if the
Group expects to refund some or all of the
consideration received from customers.

For a sale of products with a right of return, the
Group recognises revenue for the transferred
products in the amount of consideration to
which the Group expects to be entitled. A right
of return asset is also recognised for the right
to recover products from a customer.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual
basis using the effective interest method by
applying the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial instrument to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Other employee benefits
Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement
benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all of its employees in Hong
Kong. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the income statement as
they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the
MPF Scheme are held separately from those of
the company in an independently administered
fund.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £2019F 12 931H i F /&

3. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

)

(m)

Other employee benefits (Continued)
Pension scheme (Continued)

The employees of the subsidiaries within the
Group which operate in the PRC are required
to participate in the central defined contribution
pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These PRC subsidiaries
are required to contribute a percentage of their
payroll costs to the central pension scheme as
specified by the local municipal government.

Employee leave entitlement

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. An
accrual is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered
by employees up to the end of the reporting
period.

Employee long service payment

The provision for long service payment is
provided based on the employees’ basic
salaries and their respective length of service
in accordance with the applicable rules and
regulations in their respective countries of
employment.

Income tax

Income tax represents the sum of current
and deferred tax. Income tax relating to items
recognised outside consolidated profit or loss
is recognised outside consolidated profit or
loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the amount expected to be recovered from
or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEVBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019%F 12 A31H 1F F /&

3. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

(m) Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability
method, on all temporary differences at the end
of the reporting period between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all
taxable temporary differences, except:

— when the deferred tax liability arises from
the initial recognition of goodwill or an
asset or liability in a transaction that is
not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable consolidated
profit or loss; and

— in respect of taxable temporary
differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries, when the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can
be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £2019F 12 931H i F /&

3. EXEHHEBME

3. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

(m) Income tax (Continued)

(m) Fife ¥ (&)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for
all deductible temporary differences, the
carry forward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences, the carry
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised, except:

— when the deferred tax asset relating to
the deductible temporary differences
arises from the initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction that is
not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable consolidated
profit or loss; and

— in respect of deductible temporary
differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse
in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognised to
the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEVBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019%F 12 A31H 1F F /&

3. EXEHHBEBME

3. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

(m) Income tax (Continued)

(n)

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting,
at the tax rates that are expected to apply
in the period when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled, based on the tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when they relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority and the Group intends
to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on
a net basis.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short-term
highly liquid investments which are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash, are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired.

(m) Fife ¥ (&)

(n)

B R AR SN AR R R
REBEEEBRERNBER
18 48 5 3 25 5 K B ) 5 A
FEHEOBE (RBUR) HE
LR

EETEHEBEELRBEILRA
—HBEREBKRANAEN - AR
SERNAFEEELEHR
MEEERAE  AELHRA
BENBEAIHEERE -

ReRBeFED

AekReFEVERRTERS
MEBER  ARBAK—RE
=@ AR TR &) BE R 8
REMBERBEELZIPER
RIZEHSERPERE -

BEEEMEERARF 2019F F5H

137



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEVBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £2019F 12 931H i F /&

3. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

(o) Related parties

(@) A person or a close member of that
person’s family is related to the Group if
that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(iii) is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parent.

OR

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of
the following conditions apply:

(i) the entity and the Group are
members of the same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other
entity is a member);

(iii) the entities and the Group are joint
ventures of the same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of the
employees either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEVBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019%F 12 A31H 1F F /&

3. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

(0)

(p)

Related parties (Continued)
(b) (Continued)

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in

(a);
(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is apart, provides key
management personnel services
to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected
to influence, or be influenced by, that person in
their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and
prepares segment information based on the
regular internal financial information reported
to the executive directors of the Company
for their decisions about resources allocation
to the Group’s business components and
for their review of the performance of those
components. The business components in the
internal financial information reported to the
executive directors are determined following
the Group’s major operations.

The measurement policies the Group uses
for reporting segment results under HKFRS 8
Operating Segments are the same as those
used in its financial statements prepared under
HKFRSs.

3. EXE

(0)

(p)

ATEBREBEE )
R B A (&)
(b) (&)
m)aﬁﬁﬁ@%ﬁﬁA
=+ 4 ) 5 2[R 42 )

(vii) (@)(i) FT & A T ¥ %
’%i%ﬁéj(@“a“_kl%

ZER(KEBSAA)

MEEEEAE K

(viii) #% fﬁ“ FHMBEEEREZ
E/ TFMKEI
XZLV EIRSI/NETE R
IE%@A%HE% °

— B AL RIS ABA LR
ERZSE  BNTYERER
ATHEORERE -

2R

AEERREMAARRRITE
EEMOAFMBEN (HERF
RAEEXBEKETDNER
DRELARTE - ARHEFRT
S EHEKREBYHRR) - FAE
B E B BEE K o A
TEFEHFNAMITHERNE
BHEKED - THKBAEE 2 X

AEBERBEC(EBMBHREER)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £2019F 12 931H i F /&

3. EXEHHEBME

3. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

(q) Leases (q) HE

Definition of a lease (upon application of
HKFRS 16 in accordance with transition in
note 2(a))

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or
after the date of initial adoption, the Group
assesses whether a contract is or contains a
lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16
at inception or modification date. Such contract
will not be reassessed unless the terms and
conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed.

The Group as a lessee (upon application of
HKFRS 16 in accordance with transition in
note 2(a))

Right-of-use assets

Except for short-term leases and leases of low
value assets, the Group recognises right-of-use
assets at the commencement date of the
lease (i.e. the date the underlying asset is
available for use) at cost. Right-of-use assets
are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities.

The Group presents right-of-use assets in
property, plant and equipment, the same line
item within which the corresponding underlying
assets would be presented if they were owned.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019%F 12 A31H 1F F /&

3. EXEHHBEBME

3. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

(q) Leases (Continued) (9 HE®)

The Group as a lessee (upon application of
HKFRS 16 in accordance with transition in
note 2(a)) (Continued)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the
Group recognises and measures the lease
liability at the present value of lease payments
that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the
present value of lease payments, the Group

FEFELBRBA(RENZ
2(a)f) 8B IR X EF(EEMF
BEER)F165) %)

HERE

HERBZAE  AREZZAR
XA 2 HE A FRIRAE R K AT
EHERE - AEHEENFERE
R NEEERHEER G AT
ERFRMX(HMEBRIEER

uses the incremental borrowing rate at the RETE) °
lease commencement date if the interest rate

implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include: MENKELE:

e fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable;

e variable lease payments that depend on
an index or a rate, initially measured using
the index or rate as at the commencement
date;

° amounts expected to be payable by the
Group under residual value guarantees;

° the exercise price of a purchase option
if the Group is reasonably certain to
exercise the option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating a
lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising an option to terminate the
lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities
are adjusted by interest accretion and lease
payments.

The Group presents lease liabilities as
a separate line item on the consolidated
statement of financial position.

& 5 5K (B ¥ B BR B E
) R (A1 78 & 22 B R Uk R
18 ;

o BURMIEBKFIEmT S
HENK - MILEREE B
Ot T ESIE S

e WEHAAKEREFKE
BEERERIE:

e BEEEENTEEMEA
SESEEEITRERE):
K&

o ARIEHE R AT K (M & 5
KRR [B 1T R F
RIETHE) -

FIaE 218 -  HERERBHNE
BEREENRFE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEVBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £2019F 12 931H i F /&

4.

Significant accounting judgements
and estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial
statements requires the directors of the Company
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

The directors have considered the development,
selection and disclosure of the Group’s critical
accounting judgements and estimates.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
end of the reporting period, that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are discussed below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEVBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019%F 12 A31H 1F F /&

Significant accounting judgements
and estimates (continued)

Estimates and assumptions (Continued)
Allowance for ECL on trade receivables

The policy for the allowance for ECL on trade
receivables of the Group is assessed for trade
debtors with significant balances or collectively
using a provision matrix appropriate groupings.
As part of the Group’s credit risk management,
the Group uses debtors’ ageing to assess the
impairment for its trade receivables because
trade receivables consist of balances due from a
large number of customers which share common
risk characteristics that are representative of
the customers’ ability to pay all amounts due
in accordance with the contractual terms. The
estimated credit rate loss rates are estimated based
on historical default rates of the trade debtors
and are adjusted with forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort.
The allowance of ECL is sensitive to changes in
estimates. The information about ECL of the Group’s
trade receivables are disclosed in note 31.

Estimation of accrued purchase rebates

The Group has entered into the ship and debit
arrangements with certain suppliers during
the year ended 31 December 2019. Under the
arrangements, the purchases of materials and
goods from these suppliers are initially charged to
the Group at their standard prices and then rebates
are given by these suppliers to the Group after the
materials have been sold to the Group’s customers.
The rebate rates vary depending on the scale
and sold volume of customers. At the reporting
dates, the costs of inventories purchased under
the ship and debit arrangements are required to be
reassessed and adjusted for the estimated likely
rebates. A considerable amount of judgement and
estimates is required in determining the appropriate
amount to accrue for the purchase rebates and the
net of such rebate cost of inventories. If conditions
which have an impact on the purchase rebates
differ from those assessed previously, further
changes to the carrying value of inventories may be
required.

4.

B XT st H 8 & &5t

fli st R R &% ()
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEVBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £2019F 12 931H i F /&

4.

Significant accounting judgements
and estimates (continued)

Estimates and assumptions (Continued)
Allowance for inventories

Management carries out inventory review
periodically, at least at the end of each reporting
period and makes allowance for obsolete items. A
considerable amount of judgement and estimates
is required in determining such allowance. If
conditions which have an impact on the net
realisable value of inventories deteriorate, additional
allowances may be required. Management reviews
the inventory ageing analysis at the end of reporting
period and identifies for slow-moving inventory
that are no longer suitable for consumption and
saleable. Management estimates the net realisable
value for such inventories based primarily on the
latest invoice price and current market conditions.
When the inventories which have been impaired are
sold subsequently, the provision of impairment loss
will be reversed to the extent of impairment losses
previously recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.

Provision for income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in jurisdictions
in which the Group operates. Significant judgement
is required in determining the tax liabilities to be
recognised. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain. The Group recognises provisions for
tax based on estimates of the taxes that are likely to
become due. The Group believes that its provision
for tax is adequate for each of financial year based
on its assessment of many factors including past
experience and interpretations of tax law. Where the
final tax outcome is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the current income tax and deferred tax provisions
in the period in which such determination is made.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEVBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019%F 12 A31H 1F F /&

Segment information 5. 7EWEH
An operating segment is a component of the Group KEDE T ARE B E [ BRI A
that is engaged in business activities from which the OB 4 2 B9 5K 0E B A — & 48 K
Group may earn revenue and incur expenses, and o WARRETARRIMITES E
is identified on the basis of the internal management TEHREHNNALEEZRENRE
reporting information that is provided to and MM - KOS HEIR LT IESD
regularly reviewed by executive directors of the 2R IB o H E20184F K2019F 121
Company in order to allocate resources and assess JNBLFE T EFTWRIAEZE
performance of the segment. During the year AASERERENER - it - #
ended 31 December 2018 and 2019, the executive TEFEFEAEEEE —BALEDH
directors received and reviewed information on the (BEERICHE (BRERAHXRSE)) -
performance of the Group as a whole. Accordingly, o Bl ERKEFFMHERR -
it is determined that the Group has only one single
operating segment, which is determined as sale of
ICs including bundled services, for the purpose of
allocating resources and assessing performance.
The Company is an investment holding company RRAR/—FZKREERRAR  A&EHE
and the principal place of the Group’s operation MNEELEMBRBBRFE - 3R
is in Hong Kong and the PRC. For the purpose BAEAMBREER)FE8HRAL S
of geographical segment information disclosures HERBMWESHLERME ARER
under HKFRS 8 Operating Segment, the Group REBREERM - XEBMEKRE
regarded Hong Kong as its place of domicile. All INREFHW A AL EWBAFFT
the Group’s revenue from external customers is T REEZS  MAKEIERBE
presented based on the location of the operating E(MTBEEASREZR)NNEEM
subsidiaries and the Group’s non-current assets 25T -
(excluding life insurance policy deposits) is
presented based on the location of assets as
follows:
2019 2018
20194 20184
uss’ooo US$'000
FET FET
Year ended 31 December HEZ12A318ILEE
Revenue recognised at a point in £ X — R R R &K A
time
Hong Kong BB 68,651 37,372
The PRC H 32,810 29,907
101,461 67,279
At 31 December #»12H31H
Non-current assets EMBEE
Hong Kong BB 344 326
The PRC a8 815 212
1,159 538
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £2019F 12 931H i F /&

5. Segment information (continued) 5.

Revenue from customers which individually
contributed over 10% of the total revenue of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2019 is

D ERE E ()

HZE2019F12A31BILEE » £AE
Bl AFRE10% A FHEBEZTEK
AR

as follows:
2019 2018
20194 20184F
Us$’000 US$'000
FE T FET
Customer A =FA N/A! 9,524
7 i#E A
Customer B =FB 11,856 N/AT
AN A
Customer C 11,480 N/A'
A~
1 The customer did not contribute over 10% or more to the 1 ZEFHEEFEYEEAEBMABIKRAF

Group’s total revenue in the corresponding year.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the
Group generated revenue primarily from the sale
of five categories of ICs products, comprising IC
products for: (i) mobile devices and smart charging;
(i) motor control; (iii) radio frequency (“RF”) power;
(iv) light-emitting diode (“LED”) lighting; and (v)
sensor and automation. The following table sets out
the breakdown of the revenue recognised at a point
in time by product category:

H10% 3k A L -

HZE2019F12A31B I FE - AEH
MBAEZEREEE T RBEICE
m:BRERARO)ESEERSER
T (i) E 1 H (i) 57 S8 (TRF)) &
IR (iv) B — 1R B ([LEDJ) B8 RF : &
WVERENEEFIEHNICER - TX
IR E —BREZER - ERER
2|5 ry U ARR A -

2019 2018
20194 20184
Us$’000 US$'000
F £ T FET

Mobile devices and smart BERELRESETE
charging 76,550 34,554
Motor control 7 11,843 16,186
RF power RFE IR 3,943 7,424
LED lighting LED @ #8 4,492 6,759
Sensor and automation ERREREEIEG 4,633 2,356
101,461 67,279
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEVBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019%F 12 A31H 1F F /&

6. Revenue and other income 6.

Revenue from the Group’s principal activities, which
is also the Group’s turnover, represents the income
from sale of ICs including the bundled services
delivered to the customers and recognised at a
point in time. Revenue and other income recognised
during the year are as follows:

W 2 B HE i W A

AEETIEXBEDOHWE(TFRA
SENEXBE) RHEEIC(BRINT
P K — B [ B AR SR A A8
AR %) BT 15 WL A = TR 4F A9 B 58 B W &
K EA Y AT

2019 2018
20194 20184
uss’ooo US$'000
FETT FET
Revenue from contract with (BEHBEHREERDEISH
customers within the scope HBEAESF S Wz
of HKFRS 15, types of goods or & 47 2t AR 75 48 5l
services
Sale of ICs HEIC 101,461 67,279
Other income H e A
Bank interest income |ITH B A 80 5
Exchange gain, net PE 5 I 2= )F BB — 3
Imputed interest income on life ABREZSNEENSBWA
insurance policy deposits 43 36
Others Hh, 38 45
161 89

The Group has applied the practical expedient
in paragraph 121 of HKFRS 15 to its sale of ICs
including the bundled services such that the above
information does not include information about
revenue that the Group will be entitled to when it
satisfies the remaining performance obligations that
had an original expected duration of one year or

AEEEKCE BT ERELER)F15
BAEIIBRPRMAITTRE 2 ERAR
HICHE (BREMAARS) - Fit £
AE BB EANEE N EKXY A AT
SBA—FXUTHRBRENE TS
ERESHRANEBRES -

less.
7. Finance costs 7. BREHR

2019 2018
20194 20184
Us$’000 US$’000
FE T FE T
Interest on bills payables FERE A E 887 693
Interest on discounted bills BEIREEA B 75 104
Interest on lease liabilities (note 23) ¥ & & & | 8. (47 :#23) 39 —
Interest on short-term bank loans % HRER 1T E X F &2 26 67
1,027 864
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £20194F 12H31H 1F F)Z

8. Profit before income tax 8. KR&ETFri5 HiauFl A
Profit before income tax is arrived at after charging/ Kt TSR ATFBAAIBR, S (GEA) KA
(crediting): THEREH:
2019 2018
20194 20184
uss’ooo US$'000
F E T FET
Auditor’s remuneration % SR B 2
— Annual audit services — FEEZR® 77 25
— Other services (mainly asthe — HMRE(TEA
reporting accountant of the s LEWEERRA
Company in relation to the ¥R EHAN)
initial listing) 418 63
Amortisation of intangible assets % 2 & & # 84 (A7 7 14)
(note 14) 72 72
Amortisation of life insurance ASEREZRSEH
policy deposits 34 51
Cost of inventories recognised as BR AR ZFEK K
expenses 89,987 57,874
Depreciation of property, mME- - BERZHEITE
plant and equipment (note 13) (K1 i#13) 475 41
Employee benefit expenses EERBMNAXZ(BIEEZESHM)

(including directors’
remuneration (notes (i) and 9))
— Salaries, allowances, bonus

(H a2 () R9)

—He R EAR

and benefits in kind EWEF 2,090 1,963
— Pension scheme — R EIH
contributions — A TEHKEE
— defined contribution
plan 321 276
Exchange loss/(gain), net N Es1E (W) F 5 56 (3)
Operating lease expenses 1T & R (B AL (i)
(note (i) — 426
Reversal thereof on inventories, BEFARRBSEAIH
net (note 17) included in cost FERANTEE  F8
of inventories recognised as (Htit17)
expenses — (128)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £20194 12 31H I F &

8. Profit before income tax (continued)

Notes:

(i)

(if)

Employee benefit expenses are included in cost of
sales, selling and distribution expenses and general and
administrative expenses.

Amount in 2018 represents the lease rentals recognised
over the lease terms for operating leases under HKAS 17.
Upon adoption of HKFRS 16 as disclosed in note 2(a), the
minimum lease payments under operating lease charges
are no longer recognised under operating lease expenses.

9. Directors’ remuneration, five
highest paid employees and senior
management emoluments

(a) Directors’ remuneration

Emoluments paid or payable by the Company
or its subsidiaries undertakings to the directors
of the Company during the year ended 31

8. KRetFiEBiA A=

ot

() REERVNFAXFAHEKRE HERSD
AT AR —REITERMAX -

(i)  2018FMEHMARB(ELGAERDSE
17REEEEEHAANERNED - &
MisE2(a) IR E - MA(E B IMEE
AEeHE  KEEERX THHRIE
HENFTBENEEHERHER -

ESHWN IEREHES
REREEEMNS

(a) = IE F7 oM
#H Z£2019%F K2018%F12A31H
WEFE  ARAIEKE AR M
AABEZCNHEMNOME S

December 2019 and 2018 is set out below: FIERT
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits  Discretionary scheme
Fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
2R e *
e EMEN  BREL  HEER it
Uss 000 Uss 000 Uss 00 Uss 00 Ussoo0
F£7 F£T FET FET FET
Year ended 31 December 2019 B E2019512A31BLER
Executive directors; H#TEE:
Lam Keung e - 181 - 5 186
Qing Haodong (Vote (7) BERWAN) - 67 - 10 1
Mai Lu (Note (i) RR(Wa() - 47 - 10 57
Cheng Yu Pik (Note (i) BFE W) - - - - -
- 295 - 25 320
Indpendent non-executive diectors: BT AHR{TEE -
Dan Kun Lei, Raymond BREEWH )
(Note (iv)) R 7 - - - 7
Wong Kwun Ho (Note (i) Enx (M) 7 - - - 7
Young Eric Dean (Nota (i) BaEWH ) 7 - - - 7
21 - - - 21
2 295 - 25 3
BREEREER AR 20194 F R



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £2019F 12 931H i F /&

9. Directors’ remuneration, five 9. EEHNN AEmEHFES
highest paid employees and senior EEREBEME o
management emoluments (continued)

(a) Directors’ remuneration (Continued) (a) EEFHFMH
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits ~ Discretionary scheme
Fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
BER Bfhe
e ENEH [=R0%A1 s Elf R At

usgooo Ussooo US§ooo  USSOo0 US§U00
FAT FAL FAL TAL FAT

Year ended 31 December 2018  E F2018E12A3BLEE

Executive dlrectors: #EF:
Lam Keung g - 155 85 5 245
Qing Haodong (Vote (7) BERW () - 50 63 8 121
Mai Lu (Note (i) R&Wa) — 39 - 8 47
— 244 148 21 M3
Indlependent non-execuiive directors: BUFHTEE:
Dan Kun Lei, Raymond BREEWH )
(Note (iv)) - - - - -
Wong Kwun Ho (Note (i) ERR (W) — - - - -
Young Eric Dean (Note (iv)) BaEW ) — — - - -
— 244 148 21 43
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019%F 12 A31H 1F F /&

9. EEFHM AEEBEHEES
EEREEBEME»

9. Directors’ remuneration, five
highest paid employees and senior
management emoluments (Continued)

(a) Directors’ remuneration (Continued)

(a) ESHMN @)

Salaries, allowances, bonus and benefits in
kind paid to or for the executive directors are
generally emoluments in respect of those
persons’ other services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and
its subsidiaries.

No any of the directors has waived or agreed to
waive any emoluments during the year ended
31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).

During the year ended 31 December 2019,
no emoluments were paid by the Group to the
directors as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office (2018: Nil).

Notes:

(i) Mr. Qing Haodong (“Mr. Qing”) was appointed as
the executive director on 16 March 2018.

(i)~ Mr. Mai Lu was appointed as the executive director
on 16 March 2018.

(iii)  Ms. Cheng Yu Pik was appointed as the executive
director on 27 March 2020.

(iv)  Mr. Dan Kun Lei, Raymond, Mr. Wong Kwun Ho
and Mr. Young Eric Dean were appointed as the
independent non-executive directors on 21 June
2019.

FAPATEENHENOFE
R B REMRERNBERE
BARRIREMB AR EE MR
HEMRFOME -

HZE2019F12A31HILFE @ #
|EFEWNENRZE RE T A B
% (20184 : &) -

HZE2019F12A31HIEFEE » &K
SESEREEINMESER
BEMARNEB K IMAREE %R
R B - Sk 1E A BE B E (2018
F ) o

Hr it -

(i)  BEUERSTAE(EESE ) K201843
P16EHEZEZRATES -

(i) ZHEBEER2018F3A16HELR T
RATES -

(i) EFEELLTHN20205F3H27HEE
ERATES -

(ivy MEEXRE FExAEENGR

B A2019F6 A21EER T A
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GEMBRRME
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9. Directors’ remuneration, five 9. EEHNN AEmEHFES
highest paid employees and senior EEREBEME o
management emoluments (Continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) AEEEHFMAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were B E2019F12HA31HIEFE - &K
the highest in the Group for the year ended 31 SEMe SN RABATEE

December 2019 included 2 directors (2018:
2 directors), whose emoluments are reflected
in the analysis shown in the note 9(a). The

2HREE(2018F 2% ESE) H
B & & 72 Mt 5E9(a) FT R B9 9 T
oo & Z2019%F12A31H Ik &

emoluments payable to the remaining highest B - B EH & & H A & B
paid individuals during the year ended 31 SWT
December 2019 is as follows:
2019 2018
20194 20184
Us$’000 US$'000
FEIT FE T
Salaries, allowances, bonus and ¥4 - 28 - LA K
benefits in kind EY1iEF 275 232
Pension scheme contributions RIKEETEIH R 7 6
282 238

(b)

Five highest paid individuals (Continued)

(b)

The emoluments of top five individuals fell
within the following bands:

AEREHMALT@E

AABATHME N F T &
E :

Number of the individuals

A
2019 2018
20194 20184
Nil — HK$ 1,000,000 (equivalent to =& %£1,000,0007% 7T
approximately US$129,000) (#1%1129,000% 7T) 4 4
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 T &
(equivalent to approximately 1,500,000/ 7T
US$194,000) (#9% 7194,000% 7T) 1 —
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 T &
(equivalent to approximately 2,000,000/ 7T
US$258,000) (#7155 7 258,000%% 7T) — 1
5 5
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEVBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019%F 12 A31H 1F F /&

10. Income tax expense

10. TS B X

2019 2018
20194 20184
uss’ooo US$'000
FETT FET

Current tax expenses B B8R #5118 2
— Hong Kong Profits Tax — BEBENEHR 950 811
— PRC Corporate Income Tax — PP EREHR 97 128
1,047 939

Notes:

(i)

(if)

(iif)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and the BVI, the Group is not subject to any
income tax in the Cayman Islands and the BVI.

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill
2017 (the “Bill”) which introduces the two-tiered profits
tax rates regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28 March
2018 and was gazetted on the following day. Under the
two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million
of profits of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at
8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at
16.5%.

The directors of the Company considered the amount
involved upon implementation of the two-tiered profits tax
rates regime as insignificant to the consolidated financial
statements. Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5%
of the estimated assessable profit for the year (2018:
16.5%).

The provision for the PRC Corporate Income Tax was
based on the statutory rate of 25% of the assessable
profits of subsidiaries which carried on businesses in the
PRC during the year (2018: 25%).

(if)

(iif)

RERASHESREBERRE SR
FMOES  AEEHARHERENEE
HEARESHMEMMAEY -

M2018F3A218 BBV LA BBT
7R (B (BT G A B R)
(KIEBESEY)  UEHIERISIATIR
BAEHENGE - URBIER)RK2018
F3A28HEEBK BEH - X R XA T
EER - BEMEBANESHENFE - 4
EREEERNBEEE S T BB
8.25% M EME - MBB2EHEBTH
FI 9 8 3216.5% 9 B = R o

ARBBERA BTHMANBHERH
BB SBUGRAMEREME L
TEKFR - BEMNGHIZGTEFT
B A E#R16.5% 5T E (20184 : 16.5%) °

FPRCEMSHRAOBHENREFANESD
B = S A MY B A R FE RT R A R A
TE Bt L 25% 1 ) (20184F : 25%) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £2019F 12 931H i F /&

10. FTBBEAX @

?ﬁk%%ﬂ—'—u-l—khmiﬁu-l—ﬁﬁ —TrRH' %lj
ﬂﬂ%% P f X B IR BB R
CR=o)sigt %RE%SEEI’HTEEQDT

10. Income tax expense (Continued)

A reconciliation of the income tax expenses
applicable to profit before income tax at the
applicable tax rates to income tax expense at the
effective tax rate is as follows:

2019 2018
20195 20184F
Us$’000 US$'000
F £ T FET
Profit before income tax R ETET 5 BT R E 3,560 3,650
Notional tax on profit before REABEFENRGTAE
income tax, calculated at the A AR E I
applicable tax rates 630 619
Effect of non-deductible expense 7~ A 1% 5 X B 5 & 467 385
Effect of non-taxable income R AR FE (39) (18)
Effect of tax concession B R TE & & (21) (21)
Effect of unrecognised/(utilised)  R#R (A HEBEEHIELN
tax losses, net FEFR 10 (26)
Income tax expense FIiEfifx 1,047 939

MR AEBE T EEL R RESHHIE
fB5 18 LA K §H B SR &% A OE - 2019412

At 31 December 2019, the Group has not
recognised deferred tax assets in respect of tax

losses as the Group has no accumulative unused
tax loss brought forward to set off assessable profit
(2018: Nil).

At 31 December 2019, there are no material
deferred tax asset or liabilities not being recognised
(2018: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEVBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019%F 12 A31H 1F F /&

1. BREH

11. Earnings per share

(a)

(b)

Basic earnings per share

The basic earnings per share for the year
ended 31 December 2019 is calculated
based on the profit for the year attributable
to owners of the Company of approximately
US$2,513,000 and the weighted average of
692,603,000 ordinary shares, comprising:

(i) 100,000 ordinary shares in issue as at the
date of the Prospectus; and 599,900,000
ordinary shares issued pursuant to the
capitalisation issue on the completion of
the initial public offering, as if the above
total of 600,000,000 ordinary shares were
outstanding throughout the year ended 31
December 2019; and

(i) 200,000,000 ordinary shares issued on 16
July 2019 by initial public offering.

The basic earnings per share for the year
ended 31 December 2018 is calculated
based on the profit for the year attributable
to owners of the Company of approximately
US$2,611,000 and the weighted average of
600,000,000 ordinary shares, comprising
100,000 ordinary shares in issue as at the date
of the Prospectus and 599,900,000 ordinary
shares issued pursuant to the capitalisation
issue on the completion of the initial public
offering, as if the above total of 599,900,000
ordinary shares were outstanding throughout
the year ended 31 December 2018.

Diluted earnings per share

There were no dilutive potential shares
outstanding during the year ended 31
December 2019 (2018: Nil).

(a)

(b)

BREFRT

HZE2019F12 A31HILFEMNF
BEXBHIZANG HEAEMN
QR E 42,513,000 T K &
i % AN #E 15 #692,603,000%
E B

() RERERBHEETH
100,0000% & & & & ®
BEALAHABETHKER
BEEALELBETMEITH
599,900,000 f% i 38 f% - 8
a0+ att & 600,000,000 8%
T B R R 22019612 A
SIBHFEBRERFEERITHE
N R

(i) BBERX2HAZTEER
2019 7H16H % 1T ®
200,000,000/% & 3@ A% °

HE2018F 12 A31HIEFENF
BRERBFIZANARHEE ARG
FRFEL2611,000 T K E
i/ f% hn #E 5 #600,000,000 f%
e RERABRERBHE R
1THI100,000 @/ X R H X
AHABEEKEBRIEERNLE
17 1 % 17 #9599,900,000 % & i@
B 0 kgt A #£599,900,000
I% @A R E £ 2018F12 A31H
HEEFEEEITEN -

BikEERF

ARARREZE2019F12 8310 1
FEMEALEBEH EREMNR
P EEITESIN(2018F : F) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEVBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £2019F 12 931H i F /&

12. Dividends 12. i 2
No interim dividend was declared for the year (2018: FAMES KEMPERE (20184 :
Nil). z) o
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a WMEHKRE ESEEURERRF
bonus issue on the basis of one bonus share for BETREERMEE —RAKRNE
every ten existing shares held by the shareholders HEBITAM (20184F ) - HAFR
(2018: nil) has been proposed by the Directors and RREERRRBF RS E#EFAE
is subject to approval by the shareholders at the g o
forthcoming annual general meeting.
13. Property, plant and equipment 13. 9% - MERRE
Furniture,
Leasehold fixture and Right-of-use
improvement equipment Motor vehicles assets Total
fi#h
HE RER ~ \
NEXE % RE  [EREEE At
USS000  USSURD  USSDOD  USSU0  USSUO
FET F£T F£T FET F£7
Cost Rx
t 1 January 2018 R201851 A1 39 105 90 = 234
Additions RE - # — — #
Exchange difference ERZE = (5) - - (5)
At 31 December 2018 R2018612A31H 39 14 90 — 210
Adjustment upon application R(ERUBREER)
of HKFRS 16 (note 212)) 16K AE
(Wit2e) - — - 1,044 1,044
At 1 January 2019 (restated) R2019%F1A1R (B &) 39 141 90 1,044 1,314
Additions WE 73 63 - - 136
Exchange difference ERES (1) (1) - 9) (1)
At 31 December 2019 R2019%E12A31H 11 203 90 1,035 1,439
Accumulated depreciation RitHE
At 1 January 2018 R2018F1A1H 8 38 Il — 17
Charge for the year ERTH 10 2 9 - I
Fxchange difference EXEE - (1) - - (1)
At 31 December 2018 R2018%E12A31R 18 59 80 — 157
Charge for the year (nofe 6) ERx i (Hits) 2 2 10 420 475
Exchange difference EiEE — = - 2) (2)
At 31 December 2019 2019124318 40 82 90 418 630
Net carrying amount REFE
31 December 2018 R2018%E12A31A 21 82 10 — 113
At 31 December 2019 1#2019%128318 m 121 - 617 809
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEVBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019%F 12 A31H 1F F /&

14. Intangible assets 14. B S E
Customer
relationship
EFRR%
Us$’000
F 3E T
Cost R &
At 1 January 2018, 31 December 2018 120184 1H1H - 2018 F 12 H31H &
and 31 December 2019 2019612 A31H 300
Accumulated amortisation - 1
At 1 January 2018 20181 H1H 67
Charge for the year FAXH 72
At 31 December 2018 K2018%12 A31H 139
Charge for the year (note 8) FRZH(HE8) 72
At 31 December 2019 2019412 A31H 211
Net carrying amount REFE8E
At 31 December 2018 R2018%12 A31H 161
At 31 December 2019 $2019%12A31H 89

The above intangible assets have finite useful live in
the range from 4 to 7 years (2018: 4 to 7 years) and
are amortised on a straight-line basis.

The useful life of the customer relationship under
intangible assets arising from the business
combination of Shenzhen IH Technology
Company Limited (“Shenzhen IH"), Shanghai IH
Microelectronics Technology Company Limited
(“Shanghai IH”) and Chengdu Flying Electronics
Limited (“Chengdu Flyring”) was determined by the
independent valuer at 5 years, 7 years and 4 years
respectively. It was taken into consideration that the
economic benefits expected to be generated from
the use of the customer relationship would diminish
over time due to attrition and time value of money.

tEEEENEBRERERAB4E
7E(2018F 427F) WA F#

FRIIT B SRR B R AR (T
I LBREMEFRMAR
AA((EBREDEKERRETAE
RAT (THERIR )RS HELS
MEFEER TNEPHERAEMASF
Hi iy 98 37 b (B BB 20 Bl 25 5F 745 N4
FETE CDERIFEANEREF,H
RE & R A 2 A BE B A 1 B
SEHHERNESREEEMRD -

BEEEMEERARF 2019F F5H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £20194F 12H31H 1F F)Z
15. Goodwill 15. B &

Cost and net carrying amount A RIREFEE

Goodwill was arising from the acquisition of
Shenzhen IH on 16 November 2016. For the
purpose of impairment testing on goodwill,
management allocated goodwill to the operating
performance of Shenzhen IH.

The recoverable amount of the operating subsidiary
located in the PRC is determined based on value
in use calculations. These calculations use cash
flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management covering a five-year
period. The pre-tax discount rates used of 13%
(2018: 12%) for the operating subsidiary located in
the PRC. Management determined the budgeted
gross margin based on past performance and its
expectations for the market development. The cash
flows beyond five years have been extrapolated
using a steady 3% (2018: 3%) per annum growth
rate.

Assumptions were used in the value in use
calculation of each operating subsidiary located in
the PRC for the year ended 31 December 2019. The
following describes each key assumption on which
management has based its cash flow projections to
undertake impairment testing of goodwill:

Business growth rate — The basis used to determine
the value assigned to the budgeted sales during the
five-year projection period is the sales growth rate
achieved in the prior year immediately before the
budget year.

Pre-tax discount rates — The pre-tax discount rates
used are before tax and reflect specific risks relating
to the relevant units.
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2019 2018
20194 20184
Us$’000 US$°000
FE T FETT
261 264

EE R ER2016F11 A16 B U iE 7 |
Bk - BHEmEETRENR B
BEEEEEBrEEFIIREHEE

VAR BRREENBARMAKE S
HIORBEFEREETEMET - %
EHEFRENESEEBH ENTAED
BHEEETRESAEEA - HR
VAP ENELNR  FH13%
(2018%F : 12%) W FH AT T IR K - B 1B
ERBEBFRELREHEMEEERN
EHEETEEEMNX - BBAFH
REMEMFEA3I% (20184 : 3%) W18
EFERREL -

HZE2019F12 A31BILFE @ LA
BEHRLENBARNEREBENDE
RETREJETTE -THHAEEE
HETReREEMN LS EmEETT
BB S EATERENSERBRERE:

608 R R — T4 TN 0
EroRTREENEENBEML
MR TR 2 B — R 0
B o

AR R — ERANHATRERS
HRAWTRE RBRTEBBET
BRANBERR -



15.

16.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEVBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019%F 12 A31H 1F F /&

Goodwill (Continued)

The values assigned to the key assumptions on
each operating subsidiary located in the PRC are
consistent with external information sources.

Management has calculated that the value in use
of the operating subsidiary located in the PRC and
concluded that the recoverable amount is greater
than their total carrying amount of the assets of
the subsidiary including allocated goodwill and
therefore has concluded that there is no impairment
in respect of the Group’s goodwill during the year
ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).

The directors of the Company have not identified
any key assumptions where a reasonably possible
change in such assumptions could cause the
carrying amount of goodwill to exceed the
recoverable amount.

Life insurance policy deposits

Certain life insurance policies (the “Policy”) with
a carrying amount approximately US$1,403,000
(2018: US$873,000) were entered into by the Group
to insure two of the directors of the Company,
Mr. Lam Keung (“Mr. Lam”) and Ms. Cheng Yu
Pik. Under the Policy, the beneficiary and policy
holder is the Group and the total insured sum was
approximately US$6,737,000 as at 31 December
2019 (2018: US$3,991,000). At inception of
the Policy, the Group paid upfront payments of
approximately US$524,000 during the year ended
31 December 2019 (2018: US$525,000) for policies
entered into during the year. The Group can
terminate the Policy at any time and can receive
cash back based on the net nominal account value
of the Policy at the date of withdrawal. Interest is
earned at interest rates of at least those guaranteed
by the insurer.

15.

16.

BE

PETURTENSEERBABN
BB B E RN E B RIR—
B o

EREECESEUNPREMNEERN
BARMFERHEE WELATKES
HFoRENBAREELAREAE
FESEMNEE)NGEHR  BEE
2019F12A31A L FE  AEE MR
23 8 E (20184 : &) -

ARAESYEERTMAMEBELSE
5 B B) 7] 28 B R 2 ) B (BB AT R
Ol & FBEr) R #REK -

AERERS

ANEEFT N BRE{E#) 41,403,000 7T
(20184 : 873,000 L)WM & FTA S
RERE(RE])  AARAMBE
EMoREE((MEE D REFELL
RERE - BEZRE  Z:mARR
BEEAEAEER - BR2019F12A
31EMRER 2S5 4 56,737,000 T
(20184 : 3,991,000 7T) > N 1R &
FIAERE  AEEERE Z2019F
12A31A L EFERZFEEFLHRE
- FE A FR#7524,0003% JT (2018 4F ¢
525,000 7T ) © 2N 5 B 1] BE B 42 LE 7%
RESBREREERENZEFER
BERHIRE - EREAFERORKIE
=W ELF B -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £2019F 12 931H i F /&

16. A\SREREw)

16. Life insurance policy deposits

(Continued)

The directors of the Company expected that the
policies with upfront payment of approximately
US$376,000 will be terminated at the 38th policy
year in 2053, approximately US$265,000 will
be terminated at the 40th policy year in 2058,
approximately US$260,000 will be terminated
at the 43rd policy year in 2061, approximately
US$224,000 will be terminated at the 45th policy
year in 2065 and approximately US$300,000 will
be terminated at the 45th policy year in 2065
respectively. There will be a specified surrender
charge of approximately US$55,000, US$37,000
and US$23,000, US$28,000 and US$75,000 in
accordance with each policy respectively. The
expected life of the Policy remained unchanged
from the date of initial recognition and the directors
of the Company considered that the financial
impact of the option to terminate the Policy was not
significant.

The carrying amount of upfront payments will be
adjusted through consolidated profit or loss through
the expected life of the Policy to reflect the interest
earned and life insurance coverage and other
charges during each year of the expected life.
The Policy was pledged to a bank to secure bills
payables (note 21) and bank borrowings (note 24(a))
granted to the Group.
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18.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEMBRRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £20194 12 31H I F &

Inventories 17. & &
2019 2018
20194 20184
Us$°000 US$'000
FEIT FET
Finished goods 21X mh 12,909 6,547

At 31 December 2019, certain inventories
with original cost amounting to approximately
US$35,000 (2018: US$35,000) were fully impaired.

The analysis of the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense and included in
consolidated profit or loss is as follows:

R2019F12A318 @ IEK KT E 4
35,0003 7T, (20184F : 35,0003 1)
METHEEZEEME-

ERRLSAXAFAGAEENT
EeBaMmmT

2019 2018
20194 20184F
Us$’000 US$’000
FETT FZET

Carrying amount of inventories EEFEREE
sold 89,987 58,002
Reversal of inventories (note 8) FE &L (K 2ES) — (128)
89,987 57,874

Trade and bills receivables

18. BESBMARIER EWRE

2019 2018

20194 20184

Us$’000 US$’000

FETT FZET

Trade receivables B 5 rWFRIE 24,487 18,347

Less: allowance for expected B 5 W SR IE R T8 B

credit loss on trade EEEBBERE F8

receivables, net (126) (91)

Trade receivables, net B RNFRIBFRE 24,361 18,256

Bills receivables (note 24(b)) W =, (K1 a2 24(b)) 1,335 751

25,696 19,007

BEEMBERAF 2019F F#H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £2019F 12 931H i F /&

18. BES B ARIER EW R R

18. Trade and bills receivables (continueq)

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are
mainly on credit, except for new customers where
payment in advance is normally required. The
credit period granted is based on the historical
trading and payment records of each customer,
generally not more than four months. Extended
credit terms may be granted for some major
long-term customers. The Group seeks to maintain
strict control over its outstanding receivables and
has a credit control department to minimise credit
risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by
senior management. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements over its
trade receivable balances. Trade receivables are
non-interest-bearing.

Some of the trade receivables that were not
impaired are past due as at the reporting date.
Ageing analysis of trade receivables not impaired is
as follows:

(&)

AEBHEERXFHNESKRREENUE
EETJi BREFERIN BERE
ENRE - EEHKRBRERFHNBE
&X%&H,ﬁﬁﬁ&% BETHE
BOBEA  AJggmaTEERBER
BYTEREES - AEBAKERFE
%EFE%ﬂﬁmﬁﬁiﬂI&j
EEEHHUAERNMEERR - =
WEEEH B AAERET E%%V°
AEBEWELHEE ZREKFIBLEHRET
BEMEHRKEMINBERBE -
BE5RWBHIBLE o

RBEBH - 8o RREE S EUK
HDEH - KBEE SRR FIAN R
AT

2019 2018
20194 20184

Us$’000 US$'000

FETT FETT

Neither past due nor impaired K 18 HA SR (B 15,317 10,862
1-30 days past due B HI12= 30K 4,351 3,944
31-90 days past due #HIB1E 90K 2,408 3,114
91-120 days past due B HI91E 120K 27 112
More than 120 days past due 1 B8 8120°K 2,258 224
24,361 18,256

Details of impairment assessment of trade and bills
receivables for the year ended 31 December 2019
are set out in note 31.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019%F 12 A31H 1F F /&

18. Trade and bills receivables (continued) 18.

The movements in allowances for ECL on trade
receivables are as follows:

FEVBHRRME

BoSREKARIEREWRR

(&)

o REWZBBBEREERREHFS
N

2019 2018

20195 20184

uss’ooo US$°000

FETT FETT

At 1 January R1A1H 91 —

Written off of trade receivables 1 35 Z 5 e WK IR (76) —
Allowances for expected credit EHEEEBEBEEBR

loss recognised to the REBE=mRER
consolidated profit or loss 111 91
At 31 December 12 A31H 126 91

The above provision for net allowance for ECL on
trade receivables are included allowances by using
a provision matrix and individually impaired trade
receivables. The individually impaired receivables
related to customers that were in financial difficulties
and all receivables are not expected to be
recovered. During the year ended 31 December
2019, the Group has been informed that those
customers are under liquidation and unable to repay
the trade receivables.

LHFRMNESEURBEREREE
EREETFE  DIEEEEENE
BB EE S EWRIEEE - @7
BEEKREBEBHNEEGEMERENT
FHER - FiAEEERKEBEEET
W o #=2019F12831HILFE -
AEBEENZEEFPEERE @ &
FEEESEWRE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £20194F 12H31H 1F F)Z
18. B 5 FE Wy 7R IE X FE W % R
(#&)

REZZHHMMERS RS BHRR
BEMASEE S E KR (F A S
FEEBBRER NKRESNET

18. Trade and bills receivables (continued)

Ageing analysis of the Group’s trade receivables,
net of ECL allowance, based on the invoice dates,
that are not impaired as at each reporting date is as

follows:
2019 2018
20194 20184
Us$’000 US$'000
FE T FETL
1-30 days 1230K 9,364 6,780
31-90 days 31E90K 9,540 6,926
91-120 days 91E120K 2,161 2,600
Over 120 days FBiE120K 3,296 1,950
24,361 18,256

Ageing analysis of the Group’s bills receivables,
based on the bills receipt dates as at each reporting
date is as follows:

REZBRWIEEHMAER S RERH
MAKRERKRIENRESTAOT

2019 2018

20194 20184

Us$°000 US$’000

FE T FETL

1-30 days 1230K 411 549
31-90 days 31E90K 700 202
91-120 days 91E120K 41 -
Over 120 days @120k 183 —
1,335 751

MN2019F12 8318 » FiE W E#E Kk
B A R E (2018F : &)

As at 31 December 2019, all bills receivables were
neither past due nor impaired (2018: Nil).
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19. Prepayments, deposits and other

FEVBHRRME

19. AR - HEREMEY

receivables M IE
2019 2018
20195 20184F
Us$’000 US$'000
FE T FET
Prepayments (note (a)) FERIE (M 22 (a) 2,676 1,085
Prepayments for listing expenses 7 i x 1 ;X 1B — 601

Accrued purchase rebates FEEtEEE B0 (K22 (b))

(note (b)) 6,969 1,582
Rental and utilities deposits HeEkA AREERS 95 97
Other receivables H fth fE Y 5K 18 54 29

9,794 3,394
Notes: B it -
(@) At 31 December 2019, the balance includes an amount of (@) H2019F12A31H * EHBRIEAKET

(b)

approximately US$2,604,000 (2018: US$1,026,000) which
relates to prepay to the suppliers for the procurement of
inventories, which would be utilised as cost of inventories
incurred within the next financial year.

The accrued purchase rebates primarily represented the
estimated outstanding amounts for the purchase rebates
under the ship and debit arrangements as disclosed in
note 4. The directors of the Company are of the opinion
that the accrued purchase rebate would be net off the
trade payables of the suppliers when eventually confirmed
the purchase rebate within the next financial year.

EmMEMAEERSN S 26040003
7L (20184F : 1,026,000% 7t) * HAET
— U REEREMRA -

J& 5T 5K 8 [0 00 = 22 45 ph MY SE4 PR B0 B 8H
EfEREE THRERMZ G REE
FE - ARBDEERREFRERTNE
REEER T M RFENRE D
MR ENEERESHA -
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20. Pledged bank deposits and cash and 20. E#EFRITERURIRE R

cash equivalents

HeFED

2019 2018
20194 20184
Us$’000 US$'000
FE T FET
Cash in hand and bank balances F3EIR 4 &R 1T 4 2,255 2,874
Deposits with broker and at FHRERLEARIREREEZ
financial institution T
— with original maturity within — MAR =18 AR EIH
three months 4,008 —
Cash and cash equivalents BHeMReEEY 6,263 2,874
Pledged bank deposits EERRITER 1,229 300

At 31 December 2019, the cash and bank
balances of the Group denominated in RMB
amounted to approximately US$214,000 (2018:
US$349,000). The RMB is not freely convertible
into other currencies, however, under Mainland
China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment
of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies
through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

Cash at banks earned interest at floating rates
based on daily bank deposit rates.

Details of impairment assessment of pledged bank
deposits and cash and cash equivalents for the year
ended 31 December 2019 are set out in note 31.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s bank
deposits of approximately US$1,229,000 (2018:
US$300,000) was pledged to secure the bills
payables (note 21).
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R2019F12A31H » REB U A R
FTEMIR e RKIRITE H 4 AE214,000
X JT (20184 : 349,000k t) - A R
I EREIBKEMER - ERE
AR O T B R A ) B A B -
EERNEEERRE) A5EEHE
FRERELCEINIEEFEORITE
ARBEBEKEMER -

RITHESBEBEFBERTERNRIZF
BBRERA B o

HZE2019F12A318 L FEE 2 KR
TEFARBEABESEEYNRE
B H N ST -

MR2019F12A31H &N & BEH #
1,229,000% 7T (20184 : 300,000
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £20194 12 31H I F &

21. Trade and bills payables

21. BHEMRIEREMNERE

2019 2018

20194 20184

Us$°000 US$'000

F % T FETT

Trade payables B ENHKIE 10,115 6,569
Bills payables e~ R 1B 13,096 10,318
23,211 16,887

Ageing analysis of trade payables, based on invoice

RMEHR BFRNFAERERHE

dates, as at the end of reporting period is shown as HAFTERREC D AT 2R T -
follow:

2019 2018
20194 20184
uss’ooo US$'000
FETT FET
1—30 days 1230k 8,256 3,798
31—90 days 31290k 1,843 2,580
91—120 days 91£120K 2 127
Over 120 days 8 120K 14 64
10,115 6,569

At 31 December 2018, all bills payables were
secured by an assignment over the Policy, pledged
bank deposits and an unlimited personal guarantee
executed by a director of the Company, Mr. Lam.
The guarantee released upon listing on 16 July
2019. At 31 December 2019, all bills payables were
secured by an assignment over the Policy (note 16)
and pledged bank deposits (note 20).

R2018F12A31H * FTBEWEN EiE
HREFERE  EEBRITERMAK
NAIBEEMEERT A ERZEE A E
RIEER - ZBEERN2019F7H16
H Em&#ER - R2019F12831H -
FrERMNEESHERRE (WiE16)
REEHRITER (M FE20) (B A -

BEEMBERAF 2019F F#H

167



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £2019F 12 931H i F /&

22. Accruals, receipts in advance and

22. FEStER FIERIARHE M

other payables FE {3+ #X 16
2019 2018
20194 20184
uss’ooo US$'000
FE T FETT
Accruals FEETE R 463 444
Accrued listing expenses JEstEmAX — 867
Receipts in advance AU KIB 861 54
Other payables H th J& 1 ;IE 726 33
2,050 1,398

Receipts in advance represents billings in advance
of performance in regarding the provision of
customised reference designs which are bundled
together with the sale of ICs as a package for the

BRFBBRAHEPREHESN LS
ZRa(HEICHERAE ) mEWR

BURREEHRE

ARBRETFHAME 2T

new customers. The amount of receipts in advance m
are negotiated on a case by case basis with
customers and the movement is set out below:
Movements in receipts in advance T8 W 7k 18 2 Eh
2019 2018
20194 20184
Uss$’000 US$'000
FE T TET
At 1 January R1A1H 54 246
Increase of receipts in advance % 5 78 UK 3k IH 12 1N
from customers 16,569 6,912
Decrease in receipts in advance R #E 2 U2 A i B B UL
as a result of recognising KIER AL
revenue during the year (15,765) (7,101)
Exchange difference E X =5 3 (3)
At 31 December W12 A318 861 54
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23. Leases liabilities 23.HEERE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s lease liabilities AEEHERENEREERFRE
and the movements during the year are as follows: U
uss’ooo
FETT
At 1 January 2019 K2019F1H1H —
Adjustment upon application of FERCE B I B WmEEL)
HKFRS 16 (note 2(a)) F165% & 2 # B (K2 2(a)) 1,084
1,084
Interest expense (note 7) MERZ(HiZE7) 39
Payments during the year F AR (453)
Exchange difference b X =5 (9
At 31 December 2019 2019%12A31H 661
Analysed into: DITE:
Current portion B &8 5 382
Non-current portion ERENZL D 279
661
The amounts recognised in consolidated profit or RGEERRRANEEHESEL
loss in relation to leases are as follows: — ™
uss’ooo
FETT
Interest on lease liabilities (note 7) MEBEMNEHZE7) 39
Depreciation charged on right-of-use FTRAEEETER(#iF13)
assets (note 13) 420
Total amounts recognised in R EEEERRARE
consolidated profit or loss 459
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24. Bank borrowings 24. SRITHER
2019 2018
20194 20184
Us$°’000 US$°000
FETT FEL
Current i E
Bank borrowings — secured RITER—BERMWHZ@)
(note (a)) 390 969
Discounted bills with recourse Al 3B RANIR B & (K722 (b))
(note (b)) 1,011 341
1,401 1,310
Notes: K it -

(@) At 31 December 2018, bank borrowings with carrying
amount of approximately US$969,000 were secured by
an assignment over the Policy and an unlimited personal
guarantee provided by a director of the Company, Mr.
Lam. The guarantee was released upon listing on 16
July 2019. At 31 December 2019, bank borrowings were
secured by an assignment over the Policy (note 16).
Interest rate was charged in the range from 4.2% to 5.0%
(2018: at 4.0%) per annum as at 31 December 2019.

(b) At 31 December 2019, all borrowings from discounted
bills with recourse were secured by certain bills
receivables (note 18) of the Group with carrying amount
of approximately US$1,011,000 (2018: 341,000). Interest is
charged in the range from 3.6% to 4.5% (2018: from 3.7%
to 5.0%) per annum as at 31 December 2019.

As at 31 December 2019, a bank borrowing of
approximately US$298,000 (2018: US$96,000) was
not scheduled to be repaid within one year but were
classified as current liabilities as the related loan
agreement contain clauses that provide the lender
with an unconditional right to demand repayment at
any time at its own discretion. None of the portion
of the bank borrowing due for repayment after
one year, which contains a repayment on demand
clause and that is classified as a current liability,
was expected to be settled within one year.
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(a) M2018%12A318: B W E 4 A
969,000 T IRITIERBHERERER
AAREEMAEERENERBEA
EREERE - ZBERSKR2019F7A
16 H ET R R BR - R 2019F 124318 -
IRITEFNAERERE (M7E16) (EIER -
R2019F 12 A31HMFEF RN F4.2% =
5.0% (20184F : 4.0%) °

(b) H2019F12A31H ' AIBE RN EED
FBEERYBAAEEE TERENA
1,011,000 7t (20184 : 341,000% 7T)
B FE UK Z 3% (B 5£18) E K 1 - 1R 2019
F12AMHAT IR FF RN T3.6% %
4.5% (20184 : 3.7% £5.0%) °

R2019F12 A31H » #9298,000% T
(20184F : 96,0003 JT) M ERITIEFX I
T8N —FRNEE MHPBAERD
B THREBEERBELELT
BRANBEEREFREERERD
BANGR MEZRTEXRER
—FULELEFONAE D (BEEREXE
ERRBEDEIWERBAEGE)EBHH
R—FRNEE -
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25.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £20194 12 31H I F &

Bank borrowings (Continued) 24. sRIT R ()
At 31 December 2019, total current and non-current E/\2019$12H31 B RBRIEREBDR
bank borrowings were scheduled to repay as TERBENGESEXRBHBT:
follows:
2019 2018
20194 20184
uss’ooo US$'000
FETT FET
Within one year —F LR 1,103 1,214
More than one year, but not ZHMEBT BB E
exceeding two years 91 38
More than two years, but not ZRMEETBBRF
exceeding five years 176 58
After five years hF 1% 31 —
1,401 1,310
Share capital 25. I K
Number of
shares in
issue Share capital
BT
I n &8 i
‘000 USs$'000
R FET
At 1 January 2018 and 31 7R 2018F1H1H Kk 20184
December 2018 (note (i) 12 A318 (A7 7£(i)) 100 —*
Capitalisation issue (note (ii)) B AL B 17 (H7 2 (i) 599,900 774
Issuance of shares by initial public BB H X A ARAEEETRM
offering (note (iii)) (1 &% (iii) 200,000 258
At 31 December 2019 ® 20195128318 800,000 1,032
* ltem with value below US$1,000 * EEK 1,000 TR IER

BEEMBERAF 2019F F#H
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25. IR & ()

25. Share capital (continued)

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands on 16 August 2016 with an authorised share
capital of HK$380,000 divided into 38,000,000
shares of par value of HK$0.01 each. Pursuant to
the resolutions in writing of the sole shareholder
passed on 21 June 2019, the authorised share
capital of the Company was increased from
HK$380,000 to HK$20,000,000 divided into
2,000,000,000 shares of par value of HK$0.01
each.

Notes:

(i Prior to 21 June 2019, the number of issued share capital
of the Company was 100,000.

(i)  Capitalisation issue

On 21 June 2019, the authorised share capital of
the Company was increased from HK$380,000 to
HK$20,000,000. Conditional upon the crediting of the
share premium account of the Company as a result of
the allotment and issue of the offer shares pursuant to
the share offer upon listing of the shares of the Company
on the Stock Exchange, the directors are authorised
to capitalise a sum of HK$5,999,000 (equivalent to
approximately US$774,000) and apply such sum in paying
up in full at par a total of 599,900,000 shares for allotment
and issue to the shareholders immediately prior to the
issue of shares under the share offer as to 539,910,000
shares to P. Grand (BVI) Ltd. (“P. Grand”) and 59,990,000
shares to Kingtech (BVI) Ltd. (“Kingtech”).

(iii)  Issuance of shares by initial public offering

On 16 July 2019, 200,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each were issued at a price of HK$0.65
each upon the listing of the shares of the Company on
the Stock Exchange. The proceeds of HK$2,000,000
(equivalent to approximately US$258,000), representing
the par value, were credited to the Company’s share
capital. The remaining proceeds, net of share issuance
expenses, of approximately HK$105,142,000 (equivalent to
approximately US$13,567,000) were credited to the share
premium account.
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FEVBHRRME
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26. Reserves

Details of the movements on the Group’s reserve
are as set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity.

Share premium includes the premium arising from
issue of shares of the Company at a premium.
Under the Companies Law (revised) Chapter 22
of the Cayman Islands, the share premium of the
Company is available for paying distributions or
dividends to shareholders subject to the provisions
of its Memorandum or Article of Associations and
provided that immediately following the distribution
or dividends, the Company is able to pay its debts
as they fall due in ordinary course of business.

Other reserve includes capital injection from
shareholders of Mr. Qing and Mr. Lam and the
family member of Mr. Qing before listing and the
amount of bargain purchase arising from acquisition
of Shanghai IH and Chengdu Flyring.

Merger reserve represents the difference between
the investment costs in subsidiaries and the
aggregate amount of issued share capital of
subsidiaries acquired in the group reorganisation.

In accordance with the Company Law of the
PRC, the Company’s subsidiaries registered in
the PRC are required to appropriate 10% of the
annual statutory profit after tax (after offsetting
any prior years’ losses) determined in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles in
the PRC to the statutory surplus reserve until the
balance of the reserve fund reaches 50% of the
entity’s registered capital. The statutory surplus
reserve can be utilised to offset prior years’ losses
or to increase capital, provided the remaining
balance of the statutory surplus reserve is not less
than 25% of registered capital.

Translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of foreign operations. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in note 3(j).

26. & 1%

AEERBEDFBIHNGEE
nEPHRMHEINE -

BhaEeRRaEETARARK
MELMNEE - RIEMEHS AR
(BIERT)F228 » ARAI D EE R
ERD KSR BN TR - AR
BHBEREAMNAREE  HEE
DIKRER - ARABAREEEER
B ER

HipFEEEE LA R EE KA
RBARBRMELETERKE L
BEERKRERRMEENRER
BawE-

EOREENB AR MR E KRN E
SEEARBONERRINEHITE
BRAZ ) ZRR -

BEFRCRRE)  ARRIRFRHT
MEH B AR AT R EEHREFH
(BT MBATFEEE)ML10%
(BREFEARETEAET) BRE
EERBAES  BEERBESES
EEEEAMBRANS0% - AR
AECTARKEEFFE BB L
MR ETERBABENBRTE
BRAGBEREFMEAR25% -

BMEFEEREMBREBINEHM
BHRREEWELZME - ZFEER
R FES() TR B AT R R R IR o
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27. X AT B AT H1E

27. Particulars of subsidiaries of the
Company

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries are as
follows:

ARBH KB ARFFBENT

Particulars of Percentage of ownership

issued and interest held (directly
Place of fully paid-up and indirectly) by the  Principal activities
incorporation/ share capital/ Company as at 31 and place of
Company name establishment registered capital December operation
ERTR R12A31BEFAT
ML/ EMRRE/ (EEREEHE IEEBEDR
NEER Bt d AR #1E BAEREZEN ERHE
2019 2018
2019 2018%
Directly held
EERE
Contel (BVI) Limited the BVI 1 ordinary share of 100% 100%  Investment holding
US$1 in Hong Kong
REERRES 1RIETINEER REBREAR
Indirectly held
HEHE
Flyring Electronics Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share 100% 100% Sale of ICs in Hong
Kong and the PRC
REETERAA BE 1REBR REARPEHEIC
IH Technology Limited Hong Kong 11 ordinary shares 100% 100%  Sale of ICs in Hong
Kong and the PRC
AEMBRARAT BA NREBER REARPEHEIC
Shenzhen IH the PRC Registered capital of 100% 100% Sale of ICs in the
RMB2,000,000 PRC
RN G A K #2,000,0007T 89 R EHEIC
HMER
Shanghai IH the PRC Registered capital of 100% 100% Sale of ICs in the
RMB2,000,000 PRC
LR G A K #2,000,0007T 89 R EHEIC
HMER
Chengdu Flyring the PRC Registered capital of 100% 100% Sale of ICs in the
RMB6,000,000 PRC
RABRER P A B #6,000,0007T 4 R EHEIC
HMER
Contel Technology (H.K\) Hong Kong 1 ordinary share 100% — Inactive company
Company Limited (“Contel in Hong Kong
Technology HK") (note)
ERENR(FE)RRAA BE 1RE AR ERE S YNT

(R&EMEEE) W)
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FEVBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £20194 12 31H I F &

Particulars of subsidiaries of the
Company (Continued)
Note:

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group has
acquired all equity interest in Contel Technology HK for a
consideration of HK$1 from Mr. Lam. The acquisition was
completed on 27 December 2019, since then, the Group
has obtained control over Contel Technology HK. Before the
acquisition, Contel Technology HK was an inactive company in
Hong Kong and the net assets are equal to the consideration
paid by the Group. No amount is recognised in respect of
goodwill or gain on bargain purchase at the time of common
control combination, to the extent of the continuation of the
controlling party’s interest under Mr. Lam.

Related party transactions

(a) No other related party transactions were
occurred during the year except as mentioned
below (2018: Nil).

(b) The Group had the following balance with
related parties during the year:

27.

28.

AXATIMBATHIE @

Byt -

HZEZ2019F12A31H L FE - A& E L HEA
BILAMREEREREERRZE A2 BIRA
HE 25 W BE N 2019F 12 A27B T Ak - E 18 -
AEENESRERFEMEEBEE - RIE
B RERAMEESAEBBNIEERAR
BEFESHNAEEMGTEE - EMEER
B mESEENBRT  REeRES
B OF B B 4 0 7 2 ok R (B R BE A9 T Uk 25 R
R FRIH ©

FE Bt 53X 5
(@) BTIXFrtos  FAMEELE
1 RE B 5 X 5 (20184 « £ ) -

(b) AEBEFRBAEH T ERET:

2019 2018
20194 20184F
Us$’000 US$'000
F £ T FET
Advances to related companies M) B8 B 2 Bl E A B 3K
(notes (i) and (ii) (B 22 (D) % (i) 12 8
Notes: K &F -

(i) P. Grand and Kingtech are the related companies
controlled by Mr. Lam and Mr. Qing, respectively.

(i) Amounts due were unsecured, non-interest bearing
and repayable on demand. The maximum amount
outstanding during the year ended 31 December
2019 was approximately US$12,000 (2018:
US$46,000).

(c) Compensation of key management
personnel

The details of the remuneration paid to the key
management personnel during the year are set
out in Note 9.

(i) P Grand&Kingtech® Bl &M%k 4
Ko 0B 5 A 1 I ) R B R R o

(i) FENFEBEER  THEKAA
BENIER - BE2019F12731H

EFEEEREERIALAE12,000
%7t (20184F : 46,0003 7T) °

(c) EEEE ANSHIHRBN

FAXMBEEZEIE A B # 5N
HEENHE -
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29. Operating lease commitments

From 1 January 2019, the Group has recognised
right-of-use assets for its operating leases, see
Note 2(a) for further information. The Group’s future
aggregate minimum lease payments due under
non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

29.

HEHERE

AEBBEH2019F1A1BERKLEHE
MRAEAEEE  FBEH2H8M =
20@) c AEBRETIRELCERE
FENMARZERESARBLOT :

2019 2018

20195 20184

uss’ooo US$'000

FETT FETT

Within one year —F AR — 437
Within two to five years MEERFNA — 735
—_ 1,172

The Group has no lease commitments for short-term
leases as at 31 December 2019.

The Group leases certain properties under
operating leases. The leases run for an initial
period of two to five years, without option to renew
the lease term at expiry date. None of the lease
includes contingent rentals.

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using
the modified retrospective approach. Under
this approach, the Group adjusted the opening
balances at 1 January 2019 to recognise lease
liabilities relating to these leases (note 2(a)). From 1
January 2019 onwards, future lease payments are
recognised as lease liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position in accordance with
the policies set out in note 3(q).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £20194 12 31H I F &

30. Financial instruments by category 30. &M T HYIE
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of RERERR SRR ITANER
financial instruments as at the end of each reporting BT

period are as follows:

2019 2018
20194 20184F
Us$’000 US$'000
FETT FET
Financial assets EREE
At amortised cost: 12 85 KA ¢
Trade and bills receivables B 5 W RIE KRR R 7 25,696 19,007
Deposits and other receivables e &k HAMEWKIE 149 126
Amounts due from related & it 88 Bk 5 1B
parties 12 8
Pledged bank deposits BEBIETER 1,229 300
Cash and cash equivalents RekREFED 6,263 2,874
33,349 22,315
Financial liabilities ERBE
At amortised cost: 12 55 A -
Trade and bills payables EoRMNKRERENEE 23,211 16,887
Accruals and other payables FEFTIE B K& E b fE {5k 18 1,140 1,311
Bank borrowings |ITE K 1,401 1,310
Lease liabilities HE&BE 661 —
26,413 19,508
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HBREMEERALEES

31. Financial risk management and fair 31.

value measurement

The Group’s principal financial instruments
comprise trade and bills receivables, deposits and
other receivables, amounts due from related parties,
pledged bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents,
trade and bills payables, accruals and other
payables, bank borrowings and lease liabilities.
These financial instruments mainly arise from its
operations. Details of the financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments approximated to their fair values as
at the end of each reporting period. Fair value
estimates are made at a specific point in time and
are based on relevant market information about the
financial instruments.

These estimates are subjective in nature and involve
uncertainties and matters of significant judgement,
and therefore cannot be determined with precision.
Changes in assumptions could significantly affect
the estimates.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency
risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. As the Group’s
exposure to these risks is kept to a minimum, the
Group has not used any derivatives and other
instruments for hedging purposes. The Group does
not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for
trading purposes. The board of the directors of the
Company reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks and they are summarised below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEVBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019%F 12 A31H 1F F /&

31. Financial risk management and fair

value measurement (Continued)
Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or
future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes
in market interest rates is limited since the Group’s
interest rate risk relates primarily to the Group’s
fixed-rate bank loans.

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing
assets and liabilities, the Group’s income and
operating cash flows are substantially independent
of changes in market interest rates.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value
or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates.

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk
related primarily to sales and borrowings that are
denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the operations to which they relate. The
currency giving rise to this risk is primarily RMB.
The Group does not hold or issue any derivative
financial instruments for trading purposes or to
hedge against fluctuations in foreign exchange
rates.

N. MBEBEEERARBESR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & £20194F 12H31H 1F F)Z
31. Financial risk management and fair M. MERGEEBRAREES

value measurement (Continued) =)

Foreign currency risk (Continued) ShEE R BE ()

The following table details the Group’s exposure TRHEFMAESERRERRE L RS
at the end of the reporting period to currency NMARBEHEEERN LR
risk arising from recognised monetary assets or ETMEBRINE)ATENEHERE
liabilities denominated in RMB, a foreign currency BEEKBENEERR -

compared to the functional currency of US$ of the
entity to which they relate.

2019 2018

20194 20184

uss’ooo US$'000

FETT FET

Trade and bills receivables BRI FIENREWEE 10,772 10,293

Deposits and other receivables e & E MR KIA 70 6

Cash and cash equivalents RekBeSEY 214 349

Trade and bills payables BN RERENEE (233) (429)

Accruals and other payables FEETIE B & H b FE T 5K IB (449) (83)

Bank borrowings |ITERK (1,011) (340)

9,363 9,796

At 31 December 2019, if the US$ had weakened/ 201912 A31H » WETH AR

strengthened 5% against the RMB with all other REFAE% MABEME SR

variables held constant, the Group’s profit after BAE  AXEBEFRNFREFNBES

tax for the year would have been approximately Al 18 o0, 8 4> 49351,0003 7t (2018
US$351,000 (2018: US$375,000) higher/lower 4 : 375,000 7T) °

respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEVBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019%F 12 A31H 1F F /&

31. Financial risk management and fair

value measurement (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment
Risk management

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not
meet its obligations under a financial instrument or
customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The
Group is exposed to credit risk from its operating
activities (primarily for trade and bills receivables).
The Group performs ongoing credit evaluation of
the debtors’ financial condition and maintains an
account for allowance for ECL of trade and bills
receivables based upon the expected collectability
of all trade and bills receivables.

At 31 December 2019, the Group has a certain level
of concentration of credit risk as 14% (2018: 30%) of
the total trade receivables arising from the Group’s
one of the customers.

The bank balances and deposits with broker were
deposited with creditworthy banks and financial
institution with no recent history of default. Bank
balances of the Group are with counter parties with
sound credit ratings and deposits with broker and
at financial institution is licensed by Securities and
Futures Commission to minimise credit exposures.

The Group does not provide any financial guarantee
at the end of the reporting period which would
expose the Group to credit risk.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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N. MBEBEEERARBESR

31. Financial risk management and fair

value measurement (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group has three types of financial assets that
are subject to the ECL model:

— trade and bills receivables;
— deposits and other receivables; and
— life insurance policy deposits;

While pledged bank deposits, and cash and cash
equivalents are also subject to the impairment
requirements of HKFRS 9, the identified impairment
loss was immaterial.

Trade and bills receivables

The Group applies HKFRS 9 and measures ECL
based on a lifetime expected loss allowance for all
trade and bills receivables.

To measure the ECL, trade and bills receivables
have been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics and the days past due.

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL
for trade and bills receivables. The estimated ECL
loss rates are estimated based on the Group’s
historical settlement experience of various groups
of debtors that have similar loss patterns and
are adjusted forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort. The grouping
is regularly reviewed by management to ensure
relevant information about specific debtors is
updated. The Group has identified loss-making
enterprises in the electronic product industry and
producer’s price index of manufactured products
in Hong Kong and the PRC to be the most relevant
factors, and accordingly adjusts the historical loss
rates based on expected changes in these factors.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FEVBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019%F 12 A31H 1F F /&

31. Financial risk management and fair

value measurement (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Trade and bills receivables (Continued)

As part of the Group’s credit risk management,
the Group uses debtors’ ageing to assess the
impairment for its trade receivables because
trade receivables consist of balances due from a
large number of customers which share common
risk characteristics that are representative of
the customers’ ability to pay all amounts due
in accordance with the contractual terms. The
grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure relevant information about specific debtors
is updated. As at 31 December 2019, ECL rate of
trade receivables is assessed to be 0.43% (2018:
0.42%). Based on evaluation on ECL rates and
gross carrying amount of trade receivables, the
directors of the Company determined the net ECL of
approximately US$126,000 (2018: US$91,000) as at
31 December 2019.

Other financial assets at amortised cost

ECL for other financial assets at amortised cost,
including life insurance policy deposits, and
deposits and other receivables, are assessed on
12m ECL basis as there had been no significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

In order to minimise the credit risk on deposits
and other receivables, the management of the
Group closely monitor the follow-up action taken
to recover any receivable balances outstanding
over 180 days. In addition, the Group monitors
subsequent settlement of each of the receivables to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts. In addition, the Group
performs impairment assessment under ECL model
in accordance with HKFRS 9 on other balances
individually. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s credit risk on
the deposits and other receivables is immaterial.

N. MBEBEEERARBESR
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N. MBEBEEERARLEBESR

31. Financial risk management and fair

value measurement (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Other financial assets at amortised cost (Continued)

Life insurance policy deposits of the Group are with
one of the largest insurer and affiliated company of
bank operated as insurer with sound credit ratings
assigned by international credit rating agencies.
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
identified impairment loss was immaterial.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an enterprise will
encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet
commitments associated with financial instruments.
Liquidity risk may result from an inability to sell a
financial asset quickly at close to its fair value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019%F 12 A31H 1F F /&
31. Financial risk management and fair 3. UBEREBERAAEES

value measurement (Continued) =)

Liquidity risk (Continued) RBHELAME®

The maturity profile of the Group’s non-derivative REE AR FTART RN KA RE#E
financial liabilities based on the contractual AT EREFNZFRHEEFER
undiscounted payments and the earliest dates the TESMBENIHBELLAT

creditors can demand repayment, is as follows:

On Over Total
demand or 1year  contractual
within but within undiscounted Carrying
1 year 5 years cash flow amount
SHE
REX 15 XFBERS

F1ERH BsEm  HESHE REE
Uss000 Uss 000 Uss'000 Uss000
FET FEI FET FET

At 31 December 2019 72019&12A318

Trade and bills payables BORATERENER 23,211 - 23,211 23,211

Accruals and other payables JERTIER R E M BN A 1,140 - 1,140 1,140

Bank borrowings RITIER 1,446 - 1,446 1,401

Lease liabilities HERE 403 284 687 661
26,200 284 26,484 26,413

At 31 December 2018 12018%12A318

Trade and bills payables BORNTERENER 16,887 - 16,887 16,887

Accruals and other payables FEAREMENRE 1,311 — 1,311 1,311

Bank borrowings R 1,345 — 1,345 1,310
19,543 — 19,543 19,508
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N. MBEBEEERARLEBESR

31. Financial risk management and fair

value measurement (Continued) =)
Liquidity risk (Continued) RBHELAME®

The table below summarises the maturity analysis of
bank borrowings with a repayment on cross default
clause based on agreed scheduled repayments set
out in the loan agreements. The amounts include
interest payments computed using contractual rates.
As a result, these amounts were greater than the

TERBARER BB EE R
TR IR T 2R A B 5 22 B A R R B ER 17
tEFFAERNZIHE DT - BRI
BHMEFAENFEMRK - Bt - 5%
FERBRERABIBASNT IR
BRIFETRENEEAR °

amounts disclosed in the “on demand” time band in
the maturity analysis contained in the above table.

ARABEERRI|/ITIARABEEITEE
B BRAKER - ARAIES
B1E - HERTEFRREERHE
P& st B E RBH T IAEE -

The directors of the Company do not consider that it
is probable that the bank will exercise its discretion
to demand immediate repayment. The directors of
the Company believe that such bank loans will be
repaid in accordance with the scheduled repayment
dates set out in the loan agreements.

On Over Over Total
demand or 1 year 2 year contractual
within but within but within After  undiscounted Carrying
1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years cash flow amount
HE

BEX 15 2E 18 *FRRE
F1ER {B2% M {B5% SEE HESH REE
USs 000 Uss000 Uss'000 Uss 000 Uss'000 USs'000
D L FET FET FE£7 D

At 31 December 2019 R2019%12R318
Bank borrowings RTER 1,248 69 9 3 1,446 1,401
At 31 December 2018 k20185127318
Bank borrowings RITER 1247 40 58 - 1,345 1,310
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FEVBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 & Z2019%F 12 A31H 1F F /&

31. Financial risk management and fair

value measurement (Continued)
Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders, to support
the Group’s stability and growth; to earn a margin
commensurate with the level of business and market
risks in the Group’s operation and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of
capital.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company,
comprising cash and cash equivalents, share
capital and reserves, as disclosed in notes 20, 25
and 26, respectively.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders,
issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debit.

The Group actively monitors, reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between
the higher shareholder returns that might be possible
with certain levels of borrowings and the advantages
and security afforded by a sound capital position, and
makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions.

Fair values of financial instruments

The fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined as follows:

i)  The fair values of financial assets with standard
terms and conditions and traded in active
markets are determined with reference to
quoted market bid and ask prices respectively.

i) The notional amounts of financial assets and
financial liabilities with a maturity of less than
one year (including trade and bills receivables,
deposits and other receivables, cash and cash
equivalents, trade and bills payables, accruals
and other payables and bank borrowings) are
assumed to approximate their fair values.

N. MBEBEEERARBESR
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32. Cash flow information NR.IEREEH
The table below details changes in the Group’s TEREINAEEREETHFAELESA
liabilities from financing activities, including both ENEEH(BREASMIERSEE)F
cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from B -METBAMELAAGEREREM
financing activities are liabilities for which cash EERAARKEEREBNAE R L
flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in EHENEXRFPOIERBEZTHME
the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as REMEMBE:
cash flows from financing activities:
Amounts due
Lease Bank to related
liabilities  borrowings parties Total
HEAR RITER  EHRES gt
RE
(note 23) (note 24)
(W it23) (Wit24)
Us$'000 USs$'000 Us$000 Us$000
FET FET FET FET
At 1 January 2018 12018%1R1H = 4,310 1,439 5,749
Changes from financing cash HEREREEE:
flows:
Advances from related parties EVES S — — 1,746 1,746
Repayments to related parties BEL:YiE — — (3,185) (3,185)
Proceeds from bank borrowings RBRAERE — 1,310 — 1,310
Repayments of bank borrowings ~~ BERTER — (4,310) — (4,310)
Total change from financing cash ~ BERERELHER
flows = (3,000) (1,439) (4,439)
At 31 December 2018 R2018%12A318 — 1,310 — 1,310
Adjustment upon application of ER(BEAIBREER)E16
HKFRS 16 (note 2(a)) SREAR(Hi120a) 1,084 — — 1,084
As at 1 January 2019 (restated) 1201918 1B (FE35!) 1,084 1,310 - 2,394
Changes from financing cash HEREREEE:
flows:
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITIERFGHE - 3,863 - 3,863
Repayments of bank borrowings BB BT - (3,767) - (3,767)
Repayment of lease liabilities ERREEE (453) - - (453)
Total change from financing cash ~ BERSRELHLE
flows (453) 96 - (357)
Exchange difference ERfE 9) (5) - (14)
Other changes: A28
Interest expenses MER X 39 - - 39
At 31 December 2019 2019124318 661 1,401 - 2,062
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BV.AXAFUBERARFEES

33. Statement of financial position and
reserve movement of the Company

(a) Statement of financial position of the

S

FEVBHRRME

(a) KATHMBRRRAFEK

Company
2019 2018
20194 20184
Us$’000 US$’000
FE T FE T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES SEERERE
Non-current assets ERHEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB RAIMNEKRE —* —*
Current assets REEE
Cash and cash equivalents RekBEeEEY 38 —
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE g B B8 A B ZR IR 16,141 4,995
16,179 4,995
Current liabilities =K
Amounts due to shareholders J& 1~ B R 3R I8 3,500 3,500
Amounts due to subsidiaries N NG ] 4 16
3,504 3,516
Net current assets RENEEFHE 12,675 1,479
Net assets EEFE 12,675 1,479
EQUITY i
Share capital &% 2 1,032 —*
Reserves Gl 11,643 1,479
Total equity oA 12,675 1,479
2 ltem with value below US$1,000 * E{E K 1,000 TH HEE

The statement of financial position of the
Company were approved and authorised for
issue by the Board of Directors on 27 March
2020 and are signed on its behalf by:

Mr. Lam Keung
I A&

Director

EZE

AN B) B RS AR O 2R PR 20203 A
7THEE T A MIRAETE

HATEERREE:

Mr. Qing Haodong

SR E
Director

EF
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33. ;’Aﬂﬂ#ﬁﬂkiﬂ.&ﬁ%ﬁ@iﬂ
R (&)

33. Statement of financial position and
reserve movement of the Company
(Continued)

(b) XATEEET

(Accumulated

(b) Reserve movement of the Company

losses)/
Share Share retained
capital premium profits Total
(REtERE)/
& i 4} itk B REH -4
Usso00 USss$000 Uss000 USss000

FET FET FET FET

At 1 January 2018 H201851A1A —* — 1,495 1,495
Loss and total comprehensive loss EREER 2 AFRE

for the year ] — — (16) (16)
At 31 December 2018 12018 12A31B R

and 1 January 2019 20191818 =" = 1,479 1,479
Loss and total comprehensive loss FREER2HABE

for the year am — - (2,629) (2,629)
Issuance of shares by initial public  BBERAFREERT

offering (note 25(ii) {3 (47 i 25(ii) 258 13,567 - 13,825
Capitalisation issue (note 25(if)) BERLES

(K 25(i) 774 (774) - -

At 31 December 2019 #2019%12A31H 1,032 12,793 (1,150) 12,675

* Iltem with value below US$1,000
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
AEMBHME

RESULTS E 4
Year ended 31 December
BF12A3HILEE
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
20194 20184 20174 20164 20154
Uss$’00o US$'000 UsS$'000  US$000 US$'000
FETT FET FET FET FET
Revenue WA 101,461 67,279 53,806 36,372 45,563
Profit before tax 7% A1l A1 8 3,560 3,550 3,124 1,455 2,756
Income tax expense FTEHAX (1,047) (939) (601) (322) (448)
Profit for the year FEF 2,513 2,611 2,523 1,133 2,308
Profit attributable to: AR & H (L F)E

owners of the Company ZARAR#EA A 2,513 2,611 2547 1,173 2,300
non-controlling interests ~ 3F % A% 1 25 - = (24) (40) 8
Profit for the year FENE 2,513 2,611 2523 1,133 2,308

BEEMBERAF 2019F F#H
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AFEMBME

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

EERABRE

As at 31 December

#12H31H
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
20194 20184 20174 20164 20154
uss’oo0  US$000  US$000  US$000  US$'000
FETT FET FET FETT FETT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE 2,562 1,411 981 755 393
Current assets RBEE 55,903 32,130 29,519 20,350 16,856
Total assets BEBHE 58,465 33,541 30,500 21,105 17,249
LIABILITIES BfE
Current liabilities TEBAE 28,397 20,029 19,534 12,158 9,521
Non-current liabilities FRBAE 279 - - - -
Total liabilities BELERE 28,676 20,029 19,534 12,158 9,521
Net current assets RBEEFE 27,506 12,101 9,985 8,192 7,335
Net assets EEFE 29,789 13,512 10,966 8,947 7,728
EQUITY =
Equity attributable ARBEAA
to owners of the FE(h#E s :
Company:
Share Capital P& X 1,032 _* _* _ -
Reserves =] 28,757 13,512 10,966 8,702 7,435
29,789 13,512 10,966 8,702 7,435
Non-controlling interests ~ 3F 1% % 1 25 - - - 245 293
Total equity g ] 29,789 13,512 10,966 8,947 7,728

* ltem with value below US$1,000
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